
Online Board Packet 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

Tuesday, August 23, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

 

Pecan Campus 
Ann Richards Administration Building 

Board Room 
McAllen, Texas

 



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, August 23, 2022 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 
  

AGENDA 
“At anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session under Texas 
Government Code 551.071(2) to confer with its legal counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty 
of the attorney to the Board of Trustees under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of 
Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  Further, at anytime during the course of this 
meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at 
this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions to the Open Meetings Act set forth in Title 5, 
Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code.  At this meeting, the Board of Trustees may 
deliberate on and take any action deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees on the following subjects:” 

 
COVID-19 Public Health / Attendance Measures 

Due to COVID-19 and Social Distancing recommendations, members of the public are 
encouraged to watch the live broadcast of the meeting at: 
https://admin.southtexascollege.edu/president/agendas/live.html. 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Determination of Quorum 

III. Invocation 

IV. Public Comments 

V. Presentations ...................................................................................................... 8 
1. Recognition of Dr. Ricardo J. Solis for First Year of Presidency 
2. Presentation on Public Relations & Marketing 

VI. Update by the College President ....................................................................... 9 

VII. Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes .............................................................. 10 

a. July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting ............................................... 11 - 41 
b. August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting ............................................. 42 - 45 

2. Approval and Acceptance of Grant Award ............................................. 46 - 49 

1) Texas Department of Agriculture, Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Application Renewal in the amount of $50,526.70 

2) Texas Workforce Commission, Information Technology (IT) Registered 
Apprenticeship Expansion Grant in the amount of $119,886 

3) Texas Workforce Commission, Building Construction Trades Training 
Project in the amount of $60,000  

https://admin.southtexascollege.edu/president/agendas/live.html


August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

Page 2 of 6   

4) Texas Workforce Commission, Explore STEM! for Students with Disabilities 
additional funds in the amount of $40,022 

5) Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Texas Reskilling and 
Upskilling through Education (TRUE) Grant Program, in the amount of 
$385,500 

6) Region One Education Service Center, Adult Education and Family Literacy 
ACT Service Agreement, in the amount of $226,649.64 

7) The John G. and Marie Stella Kenedy Memorial Foundation, Scholarship in 
the amount of $15,000  

8) Any Additional Grant(s) Pending Official Award 

VIII. Consideration and Action on New Items 
1. Initial Review and Discussion of Proposed Policies for Adoption and Retirement 

of Current Policies .................................................................................. 50 - 53 
A-1.  Adopt New Policy: AB College District – Name and Definitions 
A-2.  Retire Current Policy #1000: Preamble & Definitions 

 
B-1.  Adopt New Policy: BA Board Legal Status 

 
C-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBB Board Members - Elections 
C-2.  Retire Current Policy #1300: Single-Member Districts  
C-3.  Retire Current Policy #1400: Elections  
C-4.  Retire Current Policy #1410: Oath of Office  

 
D-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBD Board Members – Orientation and Training 
D-2.  Retire Current Policy #1520: Orientation and Training of Trustees 
 
E-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBE Board Members - Authority 
E-2.  Retire Current Policy #1001: Authority & Functions of the Board, Committees 

and Individual Trustees 
E-3.  Retire Current Policy #1630: Texas Open Meetings Act 

 
F-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBF Board Members - Ethics 
F-2.  Retire Current Policy #1020: Goals for Trustees  
F-3.  Retire Current Policy #1510: Code of Ethics for Board Members  

 
G-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBG Board Members – Compensation and Expenses 
G-2.  Retire Current Policy #1530: Compensation and Expenses 

 
H-1.  Adopt New Policy: BBH Board Members – Conventions, Conferences, and 

Workshops 
 

I-1. Adopt New Policy: BCA Board Internal Organization – Board Officers and 
Officials 

I-2. Retire Current Policy #1100: Board Officers 
 

J-1.  Adopt New Policy: BCB Board Internal Organization – Board Committees 
J-2.  Retire Current Policy #1110: Board Committees 
 



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

Page 3 of 6   

K-1.  Adopt New Policy: BCC Board Internal Organization - Attorney 
K-2.  Retire Current Policy #2200: Legal Counsel 

 
L-1.  Adopt New Policy: BCG Board Internal Organization – Board Evaluation 
 
M-1.  Adopt New Policy: BD Board Meetings 
M-2.  Retire Current Policy #1610: Types of Meetings 
M-3.  Retire Current Policy #1620: Meeting Procedures 
M-4.  Retire Current Policy #1625: Notice of Meeting: Contents of Notice 
M-5.  Retire Current Policy #1640: Agenda 
M-6.  Retire Current Policy #1645: Consent Agenda 
M-7.  Retire Current Policy #1650: Quorum 
M-8.  Retire Current Policy #1660: Minutes 

 
N-1.  Adopt New Policy: BDB Board Meetings – Public Participation 
 
O-1.  Adopt New Policy: BE Policy and Bylaw Development 
O-2.  Retire Current Policy #1700: Board Policies 
O-3.  Retire Current Policy #2300: Developing, Recommending, and Implementing 

Policy 
 

P-1.  Adopt New Policy: BFA Chief Executive Officer Qualifications and Duties 
P-2.  Retire Current Policy #1010: Authority & Functions of the College President 
P-3.  Retire Current Policy #Policy 2100: Duties and Responsibilities of the 

President 
P-4.  Retire Current Policy #Policy 2110: Qualifications of the President 

 
Q-1.  Adopt New Policy: BFD Chief Executive Officer – Retirement or Resignation 
Q-2.  Retire Current Policy #2160: Retirement or Resignation of the President 

 
Policies Retired with No New Policy Adopted: 
R-1.  Retire Current Policy #1011: Relationship Between Board and President 
S-1.    Retire Current Policy #1200: Qualifications for Service as Trustee 
T-1.  Retire Current Policy #1210: Resignation of Trustee 
U-1.  Retire Current Policy #1220: Vacancy on the Board of Trustees 
V-1.    Retire Current Policy #1230: Removal from Office 
W-1.   Retire Current Policy #1511: Trustee Duty to Disclose Substantial Interests in 

a Business Entity or in Real Estate; Disclosure Requirements and Abstention 
X-1.   Retire Current Policy #1512: Nepotism: Public Officials 
Y-1.    Retire Current Policy #1670: Executive Sessions 
Z-1.    Retire Current Policy #1671: Executive Session Certified Agenda 
AA-1.   Retire Current Policy #1800: Position on Legislative Matters 

 

IX. Consideration and Action on Committee Items 
A. Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Items 

1. Review of Presentation to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 
Committee: ....................................................................................... 54 - 64 

a. Review and Discussion of South Texas College Proposed 2022 Tax 
Year Tax Rate 



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

Page 4 of 6   

2. Conduct a Record Vote to Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding Adoption 
of the Proposed Tax Rate that Exceeds the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
and/or the Voter-Approval Tax Rate ................................................. 65 - 71 

3. Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee .......................... 72 - 73 

a. Approval of Solicitation of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and 
Interlocal Agreement ................................................................... 74 - 85 
A. Solicitation of Proposals 

1) Campus Dining Services – Food Trucks (Solicit) 
2) District Wide Network Equipment Upgrade (Solicit) 
3)  Purchase of Portable Air Purifiers (Solicit) 

B. Purchases and Renewals (B-a. Technology Items) 
4) Banner Application Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
5) Communication Software Agreement (Renewal):  renew the 

communication software agreement with Hit Labs, Inc. (Lehi, UT), 
a sole source vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 
through August 31, 2023, at an estimated amount of $75,038.91; 

6)  Data Hosting and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
7)  Data Storage Hardware Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
8) Email Backup Online License Subscription (Renewal) 
9)  Email Security Software License Agreement (Renewal) 
10) Enterprise Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreements 

(Renewal) 
11)Internet Service Agreement – District Wide (Renewal) 
12) Network Hardware and Software Maintenance Agreement 

(Renewal) 
13)Oracle License Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
14)Public Website Hosting Services Agreement (Renewal) 

 15)Server Hardware Maintenance and Support Agreement 
(Renewal) 

16)Support Services Agreement (Renewal) 
17)System Appliances Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 

C. Interlocal Agreement  
18) Service Agreement (Interlocal Agreement) 

b. Approval of Vendor Registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals 
System for Receiving Notification of College Solicitations ........... 86 - 91 

c. Acceptance of Internal Auditor’s Annual Statement of Organizational 
Independence .............................................................................. 92 - 96 

d. Approval of Internal Audit Charter ............................................. 97 - 103 
e. Approval of Proposed Projects for Internal Auditor for FY 2022 – 2023

 ................................................................................................ 104 - 108 
4. Review and Action as Necessary on Contract Training Agreement with 

Pharr-San Juan-Alamo Independent School District .............................. 109 

5. Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposal for Cyber Liability 
Insurance ...................................................................................... 110 - 114 

 



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

Page 5 of 6   

B. Facilities Committee Items 

1. Review of Updates to the Facilities Committee: ............................ 115 - 117 

a. Review and Update on Project Scope Location for the Pecan Campus 
North Academic Humanities Building P Renovations for the 
Accountability, Risk, and Compliance Department and the Office of 
Institutional Equity 

b. Review and Update on Proposed Modifications and Phases for the Pecan 
Campus Library Building F 

2. Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Facilities Committee............................................................................... 118 

a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Civil Engineering Services for a 
Subdivision Plat for the Pecan Campus West Property ........... 119 - 121 

b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services and 
Selection of a Location for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education 
Building .................................................................................... 122 - 131 

c. Approval to Terminate the Architectural Services Contract with ERO 
Architects and Cancellation of the Pecan Campus Library Building F 
Renovation and Expansion ...................................................... 132 - 133 

d. Approval of Schematic Design of the Technology Campus Master Plan 
Phase I Welding Lab Building F .............................................. 134 - 144 

e. Approval to Contract Construction Services for the Starr County Campus 
Workforce Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion ............. 145 - 153 

3. Review and Action as Necessary to Contract Construction Services for the 
Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for the 
President’s Office .......................................................................... 154 - 155 

4. Review and Action to Approve Annual Facility Usage Agreements 
 ...................................................................................................... 156 - 157 

5. Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects and 
Renewals & Replacements Projects ............................................. 158 - 163 

X. Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports ........ 164 - 165 

XI. Executive Session 

A. Update and Action as Necessary Regarding Pending Litigation ................. 166 

a. Cause No. CL-21-0901-E; Deborah K. Villalon vs. South Texas College 

XII. Announcements ............................................................................................. 167 

A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 3:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

Page 6 of 6   

• Tuesday, September 27, 2022 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

B. Other Announcements: 

• The College will be closed on Monday, September 5, 2022, in observance 
of Labor Day. 

• Wednesday, September 7, 2022 is Fall 2022 Census Day 

• The College will be closed Friday, September 23, 2022 to conduct College 
Wide Professional and Organizational Development Day. 

 
 



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

Presentations 
1. Recognition of Dr. Ricardo J. Solis for First Year of Presidency

On July 15, 2021, Dr. Ricardo J. Solis commenced his duties as President of South
Texas College.

Dr. Solis has brought with him a strong drive for economic development and
partnership building, and is leading South Texas College to remain the premiere
institution to provide workforce skills training and higher education access and
success in South Texas.

Ms. Rose Benavidez, Chairman of the Board of Trustees, and her fellow trustees
will be provided the opportunity to reflect on his accomplishments in this first year,
and look forward to many more years with Dr. Solis.

PR & Marketing will share a brief video recognizing Dr. Solis’ first year of service
at South Texas College.

2. Presentation on Public Relations and Marketing
Ms. Lynda Lopez, Executive Director for Public Relations and Marketing, will
provide a preview of the ongoing rebranding initiative, including a discussion of
temporary branding colors and ongoing marketing efforts.

Ms. Lopez’ presentation will include a discussion of significant increases in the
College’s Advertising Value Equivalency (AVE), which measures the College’s
exposure to readers or viewers of traditional and social media at no cost to the
College.  This AVE is a cost-effective method to improve the public awareness of
the College, and is achieved through effective communication strategies and
strong relationship building with media partners.

These items are presented for the Board of Trustees’ information. No action is required 
from the Board of Trustees. 

8



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Update by the College President 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President, will provide an update to the Board of Trustees. 
 
No action is requested. 
  

9



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
The following Board Meeting Minutes are submitted for approval: 
 

1) July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
2) August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve the 
following Minute Order proposed for consideration:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and adopts the Minutes for the 
July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting and the August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting as 
presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

  

10



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 
The Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Tuesday, July 26, 2022 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the 
Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:37 p.m. with Ms. Rose 
Benavidez presiding. 
  
Ms. Benavidez announced that specific precautions had been taken due to the COVID-
19 / novel coronavirus, including social distancing recommendations. 
 
Members present: Ms. Rose Benavidez, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mrs. Victoria Cantú, Mr. 
Paul R. Rodriguez, Mrs. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar, and Mr. Danny Guzman 
  
Members absent: Mr. Rene Guajardo 
 
Also present: Dr. Ricardo J. Solis (via teleconference), Mr. Javier Villalobos, Mrs. Mary 
Elizondo, Dr. David Plummer, Mr. Matthew Hebbard, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Dr. Rodney 
Rodriguez, Ms. Lynda Lopez, Mr. Rick De la Garza, Mrs. Rebecca Cavazos, Dr. Carlos 
Margo, Mr. George McCaleb, Ms. Olivia De La Rosa, Mr. Lucio Gonzalez, Dr. Virginia 
Champion, Mrs. Laura Requena, Ms. Alicia Correa, Ms. Myriam Lopez, Mr. Frank Jason 
Gutierrez, Mr. Ken Lyons, Dr. Rebecca De Leon, Mr. Tony Matamoros, Ms. Samantha 
Uriegas, Ms. Brenda Munoz, Mr. Arturo Solano, Mrs. Gardena Perez, Mrs. Kelly Salazar, 
and Mr. Andrew Fish. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 
A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Invocation 
Dr. Virginia Champion, Executive Director for Resource Development, Management, and 
Compliance, said the invocation. 
 

  

11



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Public Comments 
No public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted. 

Presentations 
1. Recognition of Dr. Ricardo J. Solis for First Year of Presidency 

On July 15, 2021, Dr. Ricardo J. Solis commenced his duties as President of South 
Texas College. 
 
Dr. Solis has brought with him a strong drive for economic development and 
partnership building, and is leading South Texas College to remain the premiere 
institution to provide workforce skills training and higher education access and 
success in South Texas. 
 
Dr. Solis was unable to attend the July 26, 2022 meeting in person.  The Board 
postponed the recognition for the following Regular Board Meeting in August 2022. 

 
2. Presentation on A Night with the Stars Gala 

Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, presented on 
the upcoming A Night with the Stars Gala, which would raise funds for the Valley 
Scholars Program on October 13, 2022 at the Corinthian Event Center in Mission, 
from 6 – 9 p.m.  This would be the first in-person gala since 2019. 
 
Dr. Petrosian provided a highlight of funds raised in previous years, and the 
benefits provided to over 1,000 students participating in the Valley Scholars 
Program since its inception in 1997.  Benefits to Valley Scholars include 
scholarships of up to $2,000, mentorship in academics, leadership skills 
development, and community service. 
 
Dr. Petrosian also provided donorship information, and encouraged everyone to 
consider supporting this worthy cause. 

 
3. Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending 

May 31, 2022 
Ms. Kelly R. Salazar from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, provided the 
Board with the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the period of March 1, 2022 
through May 31, 2022. 
  
The Delinquent Tax Collection Report was included in the packet for the Board’s 
review.  

 
These items were presented for the Board of Trustees’ information. No action was 
required from the Board of Trustees. 

12



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 3, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Update by the College President 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President, was unable to attend the meeting in person, and 
the update was postponed. 
 
No action was requested. 
 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
The following Board Meeting Minutes were submitted for approval: 
 

1) June 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
2) July 13, 2022 Board Work Session 
3) July 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Danny Guzman and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the Minutes for the June 28, 
2022 Regular Board Meeting, July 13, 2022 Board Work Session, and July 13, 2022 
Special Board Meeting as presented. The motion carried. 
 

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Awards and Agreements 
Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards, including the use of 
related funds and execution of related agreements as necessary for each grant, was 
requested: 

 
1. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Accelerating Student Success 

Planning Grant, in the amount of $50,000.00 
Funding from this grant would help to expand existing re-engagement initiatives by 
developing and institutionalizing a comprehensive re-engagement support plan for 
students that have some college hours but no credentials. This grant would help 
provide enrollment staff with professional growth opportunities to increase knowledge 
for developing a comprehensive re-engagement plan, and it would expand existing 
institutional resources through the acquisition of emerging technologies that were 
intentionally designed to re-engage students. The grant period for this grant was from 
the date of execution to October 15, 2023. 
 
This award aligned with Strategic Goal 4: Foster Student Success, by providing 
students with accessible pathways and effective support structures that promote 
persistence, educational attainment, academic achievement, and personal and 
professional growth. 

 
 

13



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 4, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2. Texas Workforce Commission, Apprenticeship Texas Expansion Grant in the 
amount of $593,934.00 
Funding from this grant would help accelerate the expansion of apprenticeship 
programs for new and existing employers in key industry clusters and increase the 
marketability of the Apprenticeship Expansion program. This expansion included 
adding 297 new Apprentices, creating 7 new Registered Apprenticeships, expanding 
upon 6 Registered Apprenticeships, and creating 2 new Pre-Apprenticeships. This 
program would support the following state-prescribed targeted industries, including 
Advanced Manufacturing, Information and Computer Technology, Business 
Management and Operation, Construction, Healthcare and Information, and 
Computer Technology. The grant period was from July 18, 2022 to January 17, 2024.  
 
This award aligned with Strategic Direction #3: Creating Educational Opportunities for 
Students, by offering credentialing opportunities that align with emerging workforce 
needs. 

 
3. Department of Labor, Wagner-Peyser 7 (b), Texas Talent Grant Program in the 

amount of $254,167.00 
Funding from this grant would help to increase knowledge of safety, maintenance, 
robotics, and automation for 72 students that were enrolled in the Maintenance Repair 
program.  Completion of this program would result in Manufacturing Skill Standards 
Council (MSSC) Certifications that included Certified Production Technician (CPT) in 
Safety, Certified Production Technician (CPT) in Maintenance, Factory Automation 
Numerical Control (FANUC)/National Occupational Competency Testing Institute 
(NOCTI) Level I Robot Operator and FESTO, National Coalition of Certification 
Centers (NC3) Programmable Logic Controller Certification programs. The period of 
this grant was from September 1, 2022 to August 2023. 
 
This grant aligned with Strategic Direction 3, Creating Educational Opportunities for 
Students, by aligning programs with high-demand, high-value workforce and 
education training programs. 

 
 
4. Bank of America, South Texas College Progresando Grant in the amount of 

$250,000.00 
Funding from this program would help increase Hispanic-Latino representation in 
careers in health care and would also support enrollment efforts to expand the 
college’s institution's capacity to meet workforce demands. The South Texas College 
Foundation would receive $50,000 from this grant to help students enroll in healthcare 
programs by covering license and test fees. The remaining $200,000 would be used 
by the Department of Continuing, Professional, and Workforce Education to hire a 
Healthcare Instructor and two Student Success Specialists to support students in 
GED/non-credit Healthcare Pathway Programs.  Funds would also be used for 
curriculum development and to develop a non-credit to credit the Healthcare Pathway 
program. The period for this grant was from August 1, 2022 to August 31, 2024.  
 

14



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 5, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

This award aligned with Strategic Direction #3, Creating Educational Opportunities for 
Students, by aligning programs with emerging technologies and changing needs in 
the job market. 

 
5. The Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Perkins Basic Grant Program 

funds in the amount of $2,096,120.00 
This award focused on improving the academic and technical achievement of Career 
and Technical Education (CTE) students, strengthening the connections between 
secondary, and postsecondary education, employer engagement, and improving 
accountability. Funds would be used for instructional equipment, instructional 
supplements, professional development, CTE personnel, datahub software, and other 
program activities in the Divisions of Academic Affairs, Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management, Information Services, Planning, Performance, and Strategic Initiatives, 
and in Institutional Advancement and Economic Development. This formula-based 
allocation supported the Perkins V Act Postsecondary Level Core Indicators: 
Postsecondary Placement, Earned Recognized Postsecondary Credential, and Non-
traditional Program Concentration, based on strategies aligned to the College’s 
Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment. The award period was from September 1, 
2022 to August 31, 2023.  

 
This grant aligned with Strategic Directions #1, Clear Pathways, and Strategic 
Direction #2, Access and Success, by increasing community awareness and access 
to career and technical education programs that align with the Strengthening Career 
and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act. 

 
6. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA), 

American Rescue Plan Economic Adjustment Assistance Program grant in the 
amount of $1,500,000.00 
The Economic Development Administration’s investment would fund outside work that 
would be on the property adjacent to a new South Texas College Continuing 
Education building to be constructed with institutional funds in the City of McAllen. 
This grant aligned to the 2019-2024 Lower Rio Grande Valley Regional Strategic Plan 
by supporting workforce development programs to successfully prepare a well-
educated, highly-skilled professional and technical workforce to meet the demands of 
regional industry growth. The federal EDA investment amounted to 80% of the total 
project costs. South Texas College’s match contribution in the amount of $375,000 
met the federal match requirement of 20% of the project, which totals to $1,875,000. 
The match funds would be funded by South Texas College’s Department of 
Continuing Professional and Workforce Education reserve fund. Funds would cover 
the costs of site work, parking lot and drive, and landscaping for this project. South 
Texas College’s Department of Facilities Planning and Construction would oversee 
this project. The grant period for this project was from the date of execution of the 
federal grant award agreement for 60 months from the date of award.  

 
This award aligned with Strategic Goal 3, Create Educational Opportunities for 
Students, by providing accessible and inclusive educational opportunities that enable 
a seamless transfer to advanced degrees or align with emerging workforce needs. 

15



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 6, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

7. Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) III Supplemental Support 
under American Rescue Plan (SSARP) Program award in the amount of 
$6,803,772.00 
The SSARP program supported public and private nonprofit IHEs that the Secretary 
of Education determines have, after allocating other funds available under HEERF III, 
the greatest unmet needs related to the coronavirus. South Texas College’s award fell 
under the grant’s Absolute Priority #4, which was for community colleges and rural 
institutions of higher education serving a high percentage of low-income students and 
experiencing enrollment decline. Under Absolute Priority #4, the institution must use 
at least 50 percent of funds (or $3,401,886) awarded for Emergency Financial Aid 
Grants to Students, which may be used for any component of the student’s cost of 
attendance or for emergency costs that arise due to coronavirus, such as tuition, food, 
housing, healthcare (including mental health care), or child care.  
 
Emergency Financial Aid Grants must be distributed consistent with section 314C of 
CRRSAA (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021). 
The College may also use a portion of funds for institutional costs to defray expenses 
associated with coronavirus (including lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses 
already incurred, technology costs associated with a transition to distance education, 
faculty and staff trainings, and payroll). The funding period for this grant was from July 
14, 2022 to July 13, 2023. 
 
This award aligned with Strategic Goal 4, Foster Student Success, by providing 
students with access and support that promotes persistence, educational attainment, 
and personal growth. 

 
8. Texas Workforce Commission, Skills for Small Business Fund, additional funds 

in the amount of $208,000.00 
This award would provide training for employees of small businesses with less than 
100 employees. Funds would be used to cover tuition and fees for course offerings 
provided by South Texas College’s Department of Continuing, Professional and 
Workforce Education and the Institute for Advanced Manufacturing in an amount up 
to $1,800 in a 12-month period for a new employee and up to $900 for an existing 
employee. Courses in accounting, computers, strategic management, safety, medical 
front office skills, and customer service would be offered. In addition, $40,000 of the 
funds were set aside to provide training for employees of childcare centers. The 
funding period was from February 1, 2022 to January 31, 2023. 
 
This grant aligned to Strategic Direction #1, Lead Community Engagement, by 
aligning educational opportunities with community and workforce needs through 
training that will help employees increase their economic and social mobility. 

 
Summary of Grant Award Funding 
The presented grants would provide up to $11,755,993.00 in funding for the college to 
provide services and opportunities throughout the region. 
 

16



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 7, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Victoria Cantú and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized accepting the following 
grant awards, including the use of related funds and execution of related agreements as 
necessary for by each grant, contingent upon official award as appropriate: 
 

1. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Accelerating Credentials Planning 
Grant, in the amount of $50,000.00 

2. Texas Workforce Commission, Apprenticeship Texas Expansion Grant in the 
amount of $593,933.76 

3. Department of Labor, Wagner-Pyser 7 (b), Texas Talent Grant Program in the 
amount of $254,167.00 

4. Bank of America, South Texas College Progresando Grant in the amount of 
$250,000.00 

5. The Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Perkins Basic Grant Program 
funds in the amount of $2,096,120.00  

6. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA), 
American Rescue Plan Economic Adjustment Assistance Program grant in the 
amount of $1,500,000.00 

7. Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) III Supplemental Support 
under American Rescue Plan (SSARP) Program award in the amount of 
$6,803,772.00 

8. Texas Workforce Commission, Skills for Small Business Fund, additional funds in 
the amount of $208,000.00 

The motion carried. 

 

Approval and Adoption of Proposed FY 2022 – 2023 Board and Board 
Committee Meeting Schedule 

The Board of Trustees for South Texas College was asked to approve and adopt the 
following schedule of Board and Board Committee meetings for the period from 
September 2022 through September 2023. 
 
The proposed meeting schedule for the Board of Trustees was as follows:   
 
Month Committee Meeting Date Board Meeting Date 
September 2022 September 13, 2022 September 27, 2022 

October 2022 October 11, 2022 October 18, 2022 
November 2022 November 8, 2022 November 22, 2022 
December 2022 December 6, 2022 December 13, 2022 

January 2023 January 17, 2023 January 31, 2023 

17



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 8, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Month Committee Meeting Date Board Meeting Date 
February 2023 February 14, 2023 February 28, 2023 

March 2023 March 7, 2023 March 28, 2023 
April 2023 April 11, 2023 April 25, 2023 
May 2023 May 9, 2023 May 23, 2023 

June 2023 June 13, 2023 June 27, 2023 
July 2023 July 11, 2023 July 25, 2023 

August 2023 August 8, 2023 August 22, 2023 
September 2023 September 12, 2023 September 26, 2023 

 
A full calendar view of the proposed Committee and Board meeting schedule was 
provided in the packet for the Board’s information. 
 
There may be some variation during the scheduled period, to accommodate agenda items 
for scheduled meetings as necessary.  This schedule was reviewed by during the July 
12, 2022 Committee meetings, and all three committees recommended approval. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the Board and Board 
Committee meeting schedule for FY 2022 - 2023 as presented. The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Quarterly Investment Report for 
Quarter Ending May 31, 2022 

A report on the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter May 31, 2022, was 
presented. The Board was asked to approve the Investment Report as presented. 
 
Purpose – Ms. Susan Anderson from Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. presented the status 
of the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended May 31, 2022 at the 
meeting. Ms. Anderson presented an overview of the investments, the annual interest 
earnings, the quarterly interest earnings, and the economic overview. 
 
Justification – The report provided a brief review and update of the College’s Quarterly 
Investment Report for the Quarter Ended May 31, 2022 to the College’s Board of 
Trustees.  
 
Background – The Texas Public Funds Information Act (PFIA) and the College’s Policy 
#5120: Investment Policy and Investment Strategy Statement, requires an Investment 
Report to be prepared and submitted to the Board of Trustees and the President on a 
quarterly basis.  
 

18



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 9, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Reviewers - The Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Business Office 
staff, and Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. (Investment Advisor) reviewed the information 
being presented. 
 
Enclosed Documents – A copy of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended 
May 31, 2022 was provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President, and Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, attended the Board Meeting to address any questions. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the Quarterly Investment 
Report for the Quarter Ended May 31, 2022, as presented. The motion carried. 
 

Review of Presentations to the Education and Workforce 
Development Committee 

a. Presentation and Discussion of South Texas College Basic Needs Supports 
Mr. Matthew Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management, coordinated a series of presentations that will highlight the robust 
services South Texas College provides to support its students through their 
educational journey.   
 
At the June 14, 2022 Education and Workforce Development Committee meeting, 
Mr. Hebbard presented on South Texas College’s extensive offerings of Basic 
Needs Supports. 
 
Mr. Hebbard began with an overview of the diverse types of basic needs that can 
present challenges for students, including issues such as food or housing security, 
child care, technology and supplies, or other vital support structures. 
 
Mr. Hebbard highlighted the College’s participating in the #RealCollegeTX Project, 
in conjunction with the Texas Association of Community Colleges and The Hope 
Center. This led into a review of a Gap Analysis that identified existing services 
that STC offers to help students address their basic needs, and also identified 
opportunities to strengthen or develop new support services. 
 
Mr. Hebbard also discussed the next steps in the College’s partnership with The 
Hope Center and the development of other resources that will connect students to 
existing services, and allow the College to further improve its support of all 
students. 

 
 

19



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 10, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

b. Presentation and Discussion of South Texas College Summer Camps 
Offered in 2022 
Dr. Rebecca De Leon, Dean for Dual Credit Programs & School District 
Partnerships, and Ms. Olivia De La Rosa, Director of Continuing, Professional and 
Workforce Education, presented on the College’s Summer Camp offerings in 2022. 
 
Summer Camps have been a successful strategy to engage prospective and 
current students and partner with local school districts to provide a variety of 
educational and fun activities throughout our service area. 
 
This year, many of the camps have returned to providing in-person and hands-on 
experiences, while some have benefitted from online platforms. 
 
Dr. De Leon and Ms. De La Rosa reviewed the 18 Camps offered through 45 
sessions in June and July 2022, in subjects in: 

• Art; 
• Music; 
• Science & Engineering; 
• Workforce & Technology; 
• Leadership; and 
• Other Continuing Education offerings 

 
The presentation included a review of marketing efforts, including the dedicated 
website at www.southtexascollege.edu/summer-camps, and an overview of the 
registration process and pricing structure for camps. 

 
c. Presentation and Discussion of Continuing, Professional and Workforce 

Education at South Texas College 
Ms. Olivia De La Rosa, Director of Continuing, Professional and Workforce 
Education provided a presentation on the robust programs offered by the Office of 
Continuing, Professional and Workforce Education at South Texas College. 
 
The Office of Continuing, Professional, and Workforce Education (CPWE) 
provides a wide variety of non-credit programs that serve a large number of 
students in the region.  These programs are a critical component of the College’s 
strategic workforce initiatives, and include pathways that can help students earn a 
GED and industry-based credential, and then build upon that success to enter into 
a credit-bearing program. 
 
Ms. De La Rosa reviewed the history, mission and vision of CPWE at South Texas 
College, including a survey of current programs and the students served.  She 
provided details on the non-credit to credit pathways that offer tremendous 

20

http://www.southtexascollege.edu/summer-camps


July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 11, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

opportunities for previously underserved individuals to develop and attain goals for 
life-changing careers. 
 
Ms. De La Rosa also highlighted her team’s role supporting GED attainment for 
adults lacking their high school diploma and seeking new opportunities. 
 
The presentation concluded with a review of new programs under development to 
meet critical local need for short term credentials in the Rio Grande Valley. 

 
No action was requested. This information was presented to the Board of Trustees for 
discussion and feedback. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Education and Workforce Development Committee 

The following Consent Agenda item was thoroughly discussed by the Education and 
Workforce Development Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee 
or not, received all supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the 
deliberation on the item.  Non-committee members did not participate in Committee votes 
for recommendation of Board action. 
 
Administration believed that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda item were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the item was presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 
 
All trustees were given the opportunity to ask the item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board was asked to formally act on the full 
consent agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented for the item 
in the following pages 
 
The Education and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board action on 
the following item as presented. 

a. Approval of Proposed Joint Admission Agreement with UTRGV 
 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Victoria Cantú and a second by Mr. Danny Guzman, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized item a of the Education and 
Workforce Development Committee Consent Agenda as presented. The motion carried. 
 
  

21



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 12, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

a. Approval of Proposed Joint Admission Agreement with UTRGV 
Administration at South Texas College (STC) and at the University of Texas Rio Grande 
Valley (UTRGV) have agreed that both institutions, and their students, would benefit 
greatly from a seamless approach to admission to both institutions, built upon data-
sharing that will facilitate transition and analysis of student performance. 
 
The proposed joint admission agreement would include: 

1. A pathway will be created to help students who are not eligible for admission at 
UTRGV to complete coursework at STC to earn admission to UTRGV. 

2. Students who enroll directly with STC with an intention to transfer to UTRGV will 
be provided the opportunity to participate in the STC-UTRGV Admission Program 
to ease that transfer process. 

 
While at STC, joint admission students would be required to meet college readiness 
standards, earn 30 to 60 credit hours at STC while maintaining a 2.0 GPA and other 
requirements, and attend UTRGV orientation for the intended term of their transfer. 
 
The agreement would outline the responsibilities of STC and UTRGV to share student 
data in compliance with the protocols and policies of both institutions and relevant laws. 
 
Both institutions anticipated that this partnership would provide a significant benefit to 
students in the STC to UTRGV pipeline, and would support higher education access, 
success, and completion in the region. 
 
The Education and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board approval 
for the College President to finalize negotiations and execute a joint admission agreement 
with UTRGV as proposed. 

 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

The following Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed by the Finance, Audit, 
and Human Resources Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or 
not, received all supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the 
deliberation on each item.  Non-committee members did not participate in Committee 
votes for recommendation of Board action. 
 
Administration believed that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the items were presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 

22



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 13, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Trustees were invited to identify an item or items that should be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board was asked to formally act 
on the full consent agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented 
for each item in the following pages 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board action on 
the following items as presented. 
 
a. Approval of Award of Proposal for the Student / Faculty Medical Professional Liability 

Insurance, Voluntary Student Accident Insurance, Workforce Training Programs 
Student Accident Insurance, and Business, Public Safety & Technology Student 
Accident Insurance 

b. Approval of Award of Proposals for Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & Machinery, 
Crime, School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Automobile, 
Workers Compensation, Foreign Liability, and Reject Proposal for Cyber Liability 
Insurance 

c. Approval of Award of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal Agreements  
d. Approval to Disposal of Automotive Technology Program Donated Vehicles 
e. Approval of Proposed Budget Amendment for FY 2021 - 2022 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized items a – e of the Finance, 
Audit, and Human Resources Committee Consent Agenda as presented. The motion 
carried. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval of Award of Proposal for the Student / Faculty Medical Professional 
Liability Insurance, Voluntary Student Accident Insurance, Workforce Training 

Programs Student Accident Insurance, and Business, Public Safety & Technology 
Student Accident Insurance 

Approval was requested to award the student insurance proposal for Student / Faculty 
Medical Professional Liability Insurance, Voluntary Student Accident Insurance, 
Workforce Training Programs Student Accident Insurance and Business, Public Safety & 
Technology Student Accident Insurance. 
 
Purpose - The basic purpose of the student insurances were as follows: 
 

• Student / Faculty Medical Professional Liability Insurance - provides coverage for 
those students enrolled in the Nursing Allied Health and Child Development 
Programs as well as associated Faculty 
 

• Voluntary Student Accident Insurance – provides students with a low-cost option 
for accident insurance 
 

23



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 14, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

• Workforce Training Programs Student Accident Insurance – provides coverage for 
those students enrolled in the Continuing Education Training Programs 
 

• Business, Public Safety & Technology Student Accident Insurance – provides 
coverage for those students enrolled in the Business, Public Safety & Technology 
programs. 

 
Justification - Every year, the College requests proposals for an insurance program that 
provides the broadest coverage at the most competitive price available in accord with 
approved or acceptable insurance practices in the State of Texas. 
  
The College’s Insurance Consultant, Mr. Chase Carlisle, attended the July 12, 2022 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee meeting to address questions from the 
Committee.  
 
Mr. Carlisle recommended the following awards: 
 

• Student / Faculty Medical Professional Liability Insurance:   
Affinity Insurance Services, Inc. / American Casualty Company of Reading, PA for 
the period beginning August 26, 2022 through August 26, 2023. The premium is 
$23,750 which is approximately $10 per student. The recommendation is based 
on 2,375 students with limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence / $5,000,000 
aggregate. The cost for the Medical Professional Liability Insurance is paid 
by the students enrolled in the Nursing Allied Health and Child Development 
programs. The College and Faculty are insured parties at no additional cost 
to the student or to the College.  

o The cost per student ($10) is the same as the year prior. 
o The carrier remains unchanged from the year prior. 
o Students enrolled in the Nursing Allied Health and Child Development 

programs are automatically enrolled for this coverage. 
 

• Voluntary Student Accident Insurance: 
Student Insurance Plans / Pan American Life Insurance for the period beginning 
August 26, 2022 through August 26, 2023. The student accident insurance limit is 
$25,000. This is a voluntary product, so there is no cost to the College (same 
as year prior).   

o The carrier is different from the year prior. 
o Should a student elect to purchase this voluntary coverage, the costs to 

him/her would be as follows (costs are same as year prior): 
 $71.25 for school time coverage 
 $152.00 for full time (24 hour) coverage 
 $8.55 for dental coverage 

 
 
 

24



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 15, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

• Workforce Training Programs Student Accident Insurance: 
Student Insurance Plans / Pan American Life Insurance for the period beginning 
August 26, 2022 through August 26, 2023. The student accident insurance 
coverage limit is $25,000. The annual premium is $2,700 and includes all 
participants. The Workforce Training premium is based on 496 participants.   
These participants are enrolled in non-credit Continuing Education Training 
Programs such as Phlebotomy, Welding, Emergency Care Assistant, and Building 
Trades. The premium is paid by the students.  

o The premium is the same as the year prior. 
o The carrier is different from the year prior. 
o The premium is $2,700 based on an estimated 496 participants 

(approximately $5.06 per student) in the workforce training programs. 
Actual cost per student will be determined once enrollment numbers are 
received.  

o Participants in non-credit Continuing Education Training Programs are 
automatically enrolled for this coverage. 

 
• Business, Public Safety & Technology Student Accident Insurance: 

Student Insurance Plans / Pan American Life Insurance for the period beginning 
August 26, 2022 through August 26, 2023.  The student accident insurance 
coverage limit is $25,000. The annual premium is $15 per student and is based on 
1,833 participants. Participants are enrolled in Business, Public Safety & 
Technology programs. The premium is paid by the students.  

o This is a new line of coverage for students enrolled in Business, Public 
Safety & Technology programs 

o Students in Business, Public Safety & Technology programs are 
automatically enrolled for this coverage. 

 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on April 20, 2022 and April 27, 2022 
and issued to nine (9) vendors. Three (3) responses were received on May 5, 2022 and 
were evaluated by Mr. Chase Carlisle, Insurance Consultant. 
  

Reviewers – This item was reviewed by Mr. Chase Carlisle, Insurance Consultant, Mrs. 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Mr. Frank Jason 
Gutierrez, Director of Accountability, Risk, and Compliance, Mr. Ken Lyons, Risk 
Manager, and Rebecca Cavazos, Director of Purchasing. 
 
Enclosed Documents - The recommendations provided by Mr. Chase Carlisle were 
included in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the proposal awards for Student / Faculty Medical Professional Liability Insurance, 
Voluntary Student Accident Insurance, Workforce Training Programs Student Accident 
Insurance, and Business, Public Safety & Technology Student Accident Insurance as 
presented. 

25



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 16, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
b. Approval of Award of Proposals for Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & 

Machinery, Crime, School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement 
Liability, Automobile, Workers Compensation, Foreign Liability, and Reject 

Proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance 
Approval was requested to award the proposals for Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & 
Machinery, Crime, School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, 
Automobile, Workers Compensation, Foreign Liability, and reject proposal for Cyber 
Liability Insurance for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 
at a total cost of $1,608,080. 
  
Purpose - The purpose of insurance is to anticipate catastrophic losses that could 
financially impair South Texas College. Insurance allows the College to minimize risk of 
loss from circumstances beyond its control. 
  
Justification - Every year, prior to fiscal year end, the College requests proposals for an 
insurance program that provides the broadest coverage at the most competitive price 
available in accordance with approved or acceptable insurance practices in the State of 
Texas. 
 
The College’s Insurance Consultant, Mr. Chase Carlisle, attended the July 12, 2022 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee meeting to address questions from the 
Committee. Mr. Carlisle recommended the following awards: 
 
• Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & Machinery 

⇒ Request award of Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & Machinery Insurance 
coverage to The Hartford Fire Insurance Co. (Montalvo) at a total cost of 
$1,098,386. The policy offers a 5% wind/hail deductible. 

⇒ Flood insurance is included with a deductible of $100,000 for Zones X and C and 
$500,000 for Zone B. The deductible applies per occurrence and not per building. 

⇒ The proposed premium of $1,098,386 represents an increase of 7.9% from the 
prior year which is considered in line with the current marketplace. 

⇒ The carrier remains unchanged from the prior year. 
 
• Crime Insurance 

⇒ Request award of Crime Insurance coverage to The Hartford Fire Insurance Co. 
(Montalvo) at a cost of $7,988. 

⇒ The proposed premium of $7,988 represents a decrease of 6.9% from the prior 
year. 

⇒ The carrier is different from the prior year. 

26



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 17, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

• School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Automobile  
⇒ The College’s exposure is shown in the table below: 

 
 Liability Exposure 
State Sovereign immunity except for injuries arising out of operation of 

motor vehicles. Limits: $100,000 / $300,000. 
Federal Claims arising under US Constitution and federal statutes (covered 

under trustee coverage) No limits. 
 

⇒ Under state law, the College is immune from liability except for injuries arising from 
a motor vehicle accident ($100,000 per person / $300,000 per accident). Under 
Federal Law, the College has exposure under Section 1983 Clauses of Action 
(Civil Rights Statute); there is theoretically no limit of liability. Though there is no 
ceiling under civil rights cases, given the College’s comprehensive practices and 
procedures to avoid liability, reduce risk, and the experience of the College with 
these cases, the primary purpose is first to ensure the College has competent legal 
defense and coverage is within limits. Based on the College’s claim history, a 
$250,000 limit policy would be reasonable and sufficient coverage.  

⇒ School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Automobile 
Insurance to Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) at a cost of $224,806.  

⇒ The proposed premium of $224,806 represents an increase of 1.4% from the prior 
year. 

⇒ The TASB proposal is contingent upon concurrent participation in the Auto, Liability 
and Workers Compensation programs proposed. 

⇒ The carrier remains unchanged from the prior year. 
 

• Workers Compensation Insurance 
⇒ Workers Compensation Insurance to Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) 

at a total cost of $268,699. 

⇒ The proposed premium of $268,699 represents a decrease of 1.8% from the prior 
year. 

⇒ The carrier remains unchanged from the prior year. 
 

• Foreign Liability Insurance 
⇒ Foreign Liability Insurance to ACE American Insurance Co. (Montalvo) at a total 

cost of $8,201. 

⇒ Due to employee travel to Mexico, the purchase of an international insurance 
policy is recommended. 

⇒ Foreign Liability Insurance provides General Liability, Auto, Accidental Death & 
Dismemberment, and Property coverage in specific countries for employees 
during the normal scope of business, College-owned vehicles, vehicles leased by 

27



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 18, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

South Texas College, and equipment. General Liability includes the following 
limits: 
 
 $1,000,000 Each occurrence 
 $2,000,000 General aggregate 
 $2,000,000 Products-completed operations aggregate 
 $1,000,000 Personal and advertising injury 
 $1,000,000 Damage to premises rented to South Texas College 
 $25,000 Medical expenses (any one person) 
 

⇒ The proposed premium of $8,201 represents no increase from the prior year. 
 

⇒ The carrier remains unchanged from the prior year. 

• Cyber Liability Insurance 
⇒ One proposal was received for Cyber Liability Insurance from Texas Association 

of School Boards (TASB). TASB offered $1,000,000 of coverage however per the 
Insurance Consultant, this is not a sufficient limit for the College in today’s world. 
It is requested that this proposal be rejected. 

⇒ As such, College staff will work with the Insurance Consultant to solicit a new 
request for proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance which will be presented at the 
August 23, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting. 
 

The total recommended award to Montalvo was $1,114,575. The total recommended 
award to TASB was $493,505.  
 

 TASB Montalvo 
Property / Inland Marine and Boiler & Machinery  $1,098,386 
Crime  $7,988 
School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement $162,128  
Automobile $62,678  
Workers Compensation $268,699  
Foreign Liability  $8,201 
TOTAL $493,505 $1,114,575 

Grand Total $1,608,080 
 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on May 4, 2022 and May 11, 2022 
and issued to thirteen (13) vendors.  Three (3) responses were received on June 8, 2022 
and were evaluated by Mr. Chase Carlisle, Insurance Consultant, Accountability, Risk 
and Compliance, and the Purchasing Department. 
 
Funding Source - Funds for this expenditure were budgeted in the Insurance and Benefits 
budgets for FY 2022 - 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 

28



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 19, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Reviewers – This item was reviewed by Mr. Chase Carlisle, Insurance Consultant, Mrs. 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Mr. Frank Jason 
Gutierrez, Director of Accountability, Risk, and Compliance, Mr. Ken Lyons, Risk 
Manager, and Rebecca Cavazos, Director of Purchasing. 
 
Enclosed Documents – The recommendations and spreadsheets provided by Mr. Chase 
Carlisle were included in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval to 
award the proposals for Property / Inland Marine / Boiler & Machinery ($1,098,386), Crime 
($7,988), School Leaders E&O, General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Automobile 
($224,806), Workers Compensation ($268,699), and Foreign Liability ($8,201) Insurance 
for the period September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 at a total cost of $1,608,080 
and reject the proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
c. Approval of Award of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal 

Agreements 
Approval of the following award of proposals, purchases, renewals, and interlocal 
agreements was requested. 
 
The Director of Purchasing reviewed each item, including the procurement procedures 
and evaluation of all responses, and recommends approval as follows: 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the award of proposals, purchases, renewals, and interlocal agreements as listed below: 
 
A. Award of Proposals 

1) Childcare Services (Award):  award the proposal for childcare services for the 
period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated 
total Carl Perkins Grant amount of $105,500.00.  The fifty-six (56) qualifying 
vendors are as follows: 
 

Vendors (City, State) 
Angel Keepers (Alamo, 
TX) (New) 

Blessings Learning 
Academy of Alamo, 
TX, Inc. (Alamo, TX) 

iKids Academy (Alamo, 
TX) 

Kids Point Academy 
(Alamo, TX) (New) 

Kid’z First Child Care 
Center, Inc. #2 (Alton, 
TX) 

Garza’s Childcare and 
Development Center 
(Donna, TX) 

Stepping Stones Day 
Care II (Donna, TX) 

All About Kids 
Learning Center, LLC. 
(Edcouch, TX) (New) 

Alma’s Daycare Center 
(Edinburg, TX) (New) 

29



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 20, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Vendors (City, State) 
Brighter Future 
Learning Center 
(Edinburg, TX) 

Genesis Learning 
Center (Edinburg, TX) 

My Little Tree House 
Learning Center 
(Edinburg, TX) (New) 

The Children’s College 
Learning Center 
(Edinburg, TX) 

TCCLC North, Inc. 
(Edinburg, TX) 

The Learning Journey 
Day School (Edinburg, 
TX) 

VIP Learning Center 
(Edinburg, TX) 

Bright Smiles 
Learning Center 
(Elsa, TX) (New) 

Busy Bee Beehive 
Learning Center, LLC. 
(Elsa, TX) 

Adventureland 
Academy #2, LLC. 
(McAllen, TX) (New) 

Brackenridge 
Children’s Center, 
LLC. (McAllen, TX) 

Bright Beginnings 
(McAllen, TX) 

Easter Seals Child 
Development (McAllen, 
TX) 

Little Rockets 
Academy (McAllen, 
TX) (New) 

Little Shining Star 
Daycare, Inc. (McAllen, 
TX) 

Magic Child 
Development Daycare 
(McAllen, TX) (New) 

MommyLand 
Bilingual Academy 
(McAllen, TX) 

The Giving Tree 
S.T.E.M. Childcare, 
LLC. (McAllen, TX) 
(New) 

Tony’s Playhouse 
Discovery Center 
(McAllen, TX) 

City Kids Academy 
(Mercedes, TX) (New) 

Tiny Steps Learning 
Center (Mercedes, TX) 
(New) 

Bright Beginnings 
Learning Center 
(Mission, TX) 

His Little Ones 
Preschool and 
Daycare, LLC. 
(Mission, TX) (New) 

Honey’s Little Bee’s 
Learning Center 
(Mission, TX) 

Kidz Crusade Academy, 
LLC. (Mission, TX) 

Little Lobos Daycare 
(Mission, TX) (New) 

Little World Daycare 
and Learning Center, 
LLC. (Mission, TX) 
(New) 

Love Bugs CEC 
(Mission, TX) 

Martha A. Garcia 
Registered Childcare 
(Mission, TX) 

Ready, Set, and Learn 
Daycare (Mission, TX) 

Children’s Garden 
Daycare (Palmview, TX) 

Fisher Kids Academy 
(Palmview, TX) 

Lily’s Little Kids 
(Palmview, TX) 

Palmview Academy 
(Palmview, TX) (New) 

Campanitas Day Care 
(Pharr, TX) 

Evelyn N.K. Sackey-
Walker (Pharr, TX) 
(New) 

Futuros Lideres 
Learning Center (Pharr, 
TX) 

Kids Academy 
Daycare (Pharr, TX) 

Kids Academy Daycare 
Center #2 (Pharr, TX) 

Little Explorers 
Development & 
Learning Center (Pharr, 
TX) (New) 

Little Treasures 
Learning Center, LLC. 
(Pharr, TX) (New) 

Royal Education 
Center (Pharr, TX) 

30



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 21, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Vendors (City, State) 
Kami’s Cuddling Center 
(Rio Grande City, TX) 

Learning Zone (Rio 
Grande City, TX) 

Learning Zone II (Rio 
Grande City, TX) 

El Shaddi International 
Christian Day Care 
Center (Weslaco, TX) 

Little Miracles 
Learning Center , 
LLC. (Weslaco, TX) 

 

 
2) General Purpose Printing (Award):  award the proposal for general purpose 

printing for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at 
an estimated total amount of $100,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures.  The vendors are as follows: 
 

Vendor Vendor 

Border Press, Inc. (Brownsville, TX) Capital Spectrum/ dba 
Communications Specialist, Inc. 
(Buda, TX) 

Copy Craft/ dba Slate Group 
(Lubbock, TX) (New) 

Copy Plus, LLC. (McAllen, TX) 

FedEx Office and Print Services, 
Inc. (Plano, TX) 

Gateway Printing (Edinburg, TX) 

Promo Universal, LLC. (Corpus 
Christi, TX) 

San Antonio Printing (McAllen, TX) 

Taylor Print and Visual 
Impressions, Inc. (North Mankato, 
MN) 

UBEO, LLC./ dba Copy Zone 
(McAllen, TX) 

 
3) Travel Services (Award):  award the proposal for travel services to Echo Travel 

Agency (Edinburg, TX), for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through 
August 31, 2023, with two one-year options to renew, at a service fee of $35.00 
per airline ticket; 

 
B.  Purchases and Renewals (B-a. Instructional Item) 

4) Welding Gases, Metals, and Supplies (Renewal):  renew the welding gases, 
metals, and supplies contracts for the period beginning October 1, 2022 through 
September 30, 2023, at an estimated total amount of $130,000.00, which is based 
on prior year expenditures.  The vendors are as follows:   

Vendor Vendor 
Fastenal Company (McAllen, TX) Industrial Supplier Larey, Inc./ dba 

International Industrial Supply, Co. 
(Brownsville, TX) 

Matheson (San Benito, TX) Praxair Distribution, Inc. (McAllen, TX) 
Rio Grande CAS (Edinburg, TX) Rio Grande Steel (Edinburg, TX) 
Triple-S Steel Supply, LLC./ dba 
Alamo Iron Works (San Antonio, TX) 

 

 
  

31



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 22, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

B.  Purchases and Renewals (B-b. Non-Instructional Items) 
5)  Air Condition Filters and Installation (Purchase):  purchase air condition filters 

and installation from Joe W. Fly Company, Inc. (Dallas, TX/Harlingen, TX), a 
Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard and The Interlocal Purchasing 
System (TIPS) approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 
through August 31, 2023, at an estimated total monthly amount of $14,166.00 and 
an estimated total amount of $169,992.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures; 

6) Building Automation Control Equipment, Parts, and Equipment Maintenance 
(Purchase):  purchase building automation control equipment, parts, and 
equipment maintenance from Siemens Industry, Inc. (Buffalo Grove, IL/La Feria, 
TX), a Sourcewell and The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) purchasing 
cooperative approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through 
August 31, 2023, at an estimated total amount of $95,000.00, which is based on 
prior year expenditures; 

7) Chiller Chemicals and Maintenance (Purchase):  purchase chiller chemicals and 
maintenance from Kurita America, Inc. (Minneapolis, MN), a State of Texas 
Purchasing and Support Services (TPASS) – Term Contract approved vendor, for 
the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated 
total amount of $87,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures; 

8)  Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Related Services 
(Purchase):  purchase heating ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) related 
services from Pro Tech Mechanical, Inc. (Corpus Christi, TX), The Interlocal 
Purchasing System (TIPS) purchasing cooperative approved vendor, for the 
period beginning August 26, 2022 through August 25, 2023, at an estimated total 
amount of $50,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures; 

9)Library Furniture Upholstery Services (Purchase):  purchase library furniture 
upholstery and repair services from Library Design Systems, Inc. (Houston, TX), 
a Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, for the period 
beginning August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2023, at an estimated amount of 
$50,000.00; 

10)Parts and Supplies (Purchase):  purchase parts and supplies from W. W. 
Grainger, Inc. / dba Grainger (Austin, TX/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Multiple 
Award Schedule (TXMAS), Sourcewell, and the Texas Association of School 
Boards – Buyboard purchasing cooperative approved vendor, for the period 
beginning September 1, 2022 and August 31, 2023, at an estimated total amount 
of $120,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures; 

11)Public Adjuster Services Agreement (Purchase):  purchase a public adjuster 
services agreement with The Beneke Company Adjusters International (Austin, 
TX) (New), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning August 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022, at an estimated total amount of $50,000.00; 

12)Commercial Card Services (Accounts Payable Card) (Renewal):  renew the 
commercial card services (accounts payable card) contract with PNC Bank 
(McAllen, TX), for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 
2023, at no charge to the College; 

13) Elevator Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the elevator maintenance 
agreement with Otis Elevator Company (Dallas, TX), a Texas Association of 
School Boards – Buyboard purchasing cooperative approved vendor, for the 

32



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 23, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated 
total amount of $100,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures; 

14)Office Supplies (Renewal):  renew the office supplies contracts for the period 
beginning October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023, at an estimated total 
amount of $300,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures.  The vendors 
are as follows: 
 

Primary: Gateway Printing and Office Supplies, Inc. (Edinburg, 
TX) 

Secondary: Copy Plus, LLC. (McAllen, TX) 
 
B. Purchases and Renewals (B-c. Technology Items) 
 
 15)Online Digital Portfolio Application (Purchase):  purchase an online digital 

portfolio application from MeshNet, Inc./ dba MeshNet Licensing, Inc. 
(Philadelphia, PA) (New), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning August 
1, 2022 through July 31, 2025, at a total amount of $137,500.00.   The annual 
payments are as follows: Year 1: $49,500.00, Year 2: $44,500.00, and Year 3: 
$43,500.00; 

 16)Service for Mobile Devices (Renewal):  renew the service for mobile devices 
with AT&T Mobility, LLC. (Carol Stream, IL), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, at an estimated total amount of 
$52,480.00; 

 17)Syllabus Management Software (Renewal):  renew the syllabus management 
software agreement with Intellidemia, Inc. (New York, NY), for the period 
beginning October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023, at a total amount of 
$21,000.00; 

 
C. Interlocal Agreements 

18)Professional Development Services (Interlocal Agreement/Renewal):  renew 
the professional development services with Region One Education Service 
Center (Edinburg, TX), through an interlocal agreement, for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total amount of $18,250.00; 

19)Contract Training Agreement (Interlocal Agreement):  approve a contract 
training agreement with McAllen Independent School District (McAllen, TX), 
through an interlocal agreement, for the period beginning August 1, 2022 through 
July 31, 2023, at no charge to the College;  

 
Recommend Action - The total for all award of proposals, purchases, renewals, and 
interlocal agreements is $1,586,722.00. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

  

33



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 24, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Consent Agenda: 
d. Approval to Disposal of Automotive Technology Program Donated Vehicles 

Approval on disposal of three (3) automotive technology program donated vehicles from 
Ford Motor Company was requested. 
 
Purpose – The Automotive Program in the Division of Business, Public Safety, and 
Technology and Fixed Asset/Inventory Department requested approval for the disposal 
of three (3) instructional vehicles donated by Ford Motor Company as per Policy #5125: 
Disposal of Surplus Property and for these assets to be removed from the College’s fixed 
assets ledger as presented. 
  
Justification – After many years of use, the vehicles were no longer beneficial for student 
instruction due to the age of the vehicles and change in technology. 
 
The Ford Motor Company vehicle donation program required that all donated vehicles 
that are no longer beneficial for student instruction be returned to or transferred at the 
time of disposal.  When Ford Motor Company donates these vehicles to the College, it is 
with the understanding that the vehicles are strictly for student instruction and not to be 
driven on the road.  In order for Ford Motor Company to assure that these vehicles will 
never be driven on the road, they require all instructional institutions return or transfer to 
an entity designated by the Ford Motor Company. 
 
Ford Motor Company requested that these vehicles be transferred to the McAllen Fire 
Department. 
 
Enclosed Documents - A listing of the vehicles to be disposed/returned/transferred was 
included in the packet for Board’s information and review. 
  
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services and Becky 
Cavazos, Director of Purchasing, attended the July 12, 2022 Finance, Audit, and Human 
Resources Committee meeting to address any questions by the committee. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the disposal of three (3) automotive technology program donated from Ford Motor 
Company to the McAllen Fire Department and for these assets to be removed from the 
College’s fixed assets ledger as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
e. Approval of Proposed Budget Amendment for FY 2021 – 2022 

Approval of a proposed budget amendment for FY 2021 – 2022 was requested. 
 

34



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 25, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The proposed budget amendment was necessary to fund and process transfers from the 
Unrestricted Fund to the Plant Funds for the purpose of funding capital improvement 
projects and deferred maintenance. 
 
As a result of the proposed budget amendment, the total budgeted revenues and 
expenditures/fund balance for the Unrestricted and Plant Funds for Fiscal Year 2021 – 
2022 would increase as follows:  
 

Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022 
Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures/Fund Balance Net Effect 

Fund Exh. 
Amended 
Budget 

Proposed 
Amendment 

Amended  
Budget 

Unrestricted Fund A $191,234,348 $3,000,000 $194,234,348 
Unexpended Plant Fund – 
Construction  B 17,239,709 - 17,239,709 

Renewals and Replacements 
Plant Fund  C 6,590,868 - 6,590,868 

 
The budget amendment details and presentation was included in the packet for the 
Board’s information and review. 
 
The budget amendment was proposed as follows: 
 
1. Budget Amendment – Increase Unrestricted Fund Balance Carryover and 

Increase Unrestricted Fund Balance Transfer to Plant Funds  
 
A budget amendment was proposed to increase the Unrestricted Fund Balance Carryover 
Allocations by $3,000,000 for the purpose of transferring funds from the Unrestricted Fund 
Balance to the Unexpended Plant Fund - Construction and to the Renewals and 
Replacements Plant Fund, as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022  
Unrestricted Fund Balance Carryover Allocations 

Fund 
Amended 
Budget 

Proposed 
Amendment 

Amended  
Budget 

Unexpended Plant Fund – Construction  $4,345,336   $2,000,000 $6,345,336 
Renewals and Replacements Plant 
Fund - 1,000,000 1,000,000 

 
The budget amendment was proposed to transfer out from the Unrestricted Fund to the 
Unexpended Plant Fund – Construction and to the Renewals and Replacements Plant 
Fund in the amounts of $2,000,000 and $1,000,000, respectively.  
 

35



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 26, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2. Budget Amendment – Transfer Fund Balance from the Unrestricted Fund to the 
Plant Funds  
 

A budget amendment was proposed to transfer fund balance from the Unrestricted Fund 
to the Plant Funds for the purpose of funding capital improvement projects and deferred 
maintenance, as follows: 
 

• Transfer to the Unexpended Plant Fund - Construction from the Unrestricted 
Fund in the amount of $2,000,000 

• Transfer to the Renewals and Replacements Plant Fund from the Unrestricted 
Fund in the amount of $1,000,000. 
 

3. Summary of Proposed Transfer from Unrestricted Fund to Plant Funds 
 

Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022  
Summary of Proposed Transfers to Plant Funds 

Fund 

Original 
Budget 

Transfer 
In/(Out) 

Amendment 
Transfer 
In/(Out) 

Amended 
Budget Total 

Transfer 
In/(Out)  

Unrestricted Fund  $ (3,500,000) $  (3,000,000) $ (6,500,000) 
Unexpended Plant Fund - 
Construction $    3,500,000 $     2,000,000 $    5,500,000 

Renewals and Replacements Plant 
Fund $                   - $     1,000,000 $    1,000,000 

 
The budget amendment details and presentation were included in the packet for the 
Board’s information and review. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, presented 
the Proposed Budget Amendment for FY 2021 – 2022 to the Finance, Audit, and Human 
Resources Committee at their July 12, 2022 meeting. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the proposed budget amendment for FY 2021 – 2022 as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
  

36



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 27, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Discussion and Action as Necessary to Implement a Four-and-a-Half-
Day Work Week Schedule Starting August 1, 2022 and Ending on 

August 31, 2023 
Approval to extend the current pilot four-and-a-half-day work week schedule starting 
August 1, 2022 and ending August 31, 2023, was requested. 
 
Purpose – To revise working hours starting on August 1, 2022 and ending on August 31, 
2023, to a four-and-a-half-day work week schedule, while still meeting the forty (40) hour 
work week requirement. This time period will address the entire Fiscal Year of 2022-2023. 
 
Justification – The modified work week schedule is a common practice in community 
colleges and is recognized as a cost reduction measure and an incentive for employees. 
 
Background – On April 13, 2022, a survey was released to all employees to gain feedback 
regarding interest in the four-and-a-half-day work week. Feedback was positive and the 
four-and-a-half-day work week pilot was launched on May 16, 2022 after Board approval 
at the May 12, 2022 Special Board meeting.  
 
A second survey was released on June 27, 2022 to gain feedback from employees 
regarding the actual experience of the four-and-a-half-day work week. Feedback was 
again positive and 83% of employees who responded showed interest in extending the 
schedule and 7% of employees responded that they were neutral.  
 
The survey was issued and the responses provided valuable feedback on the following 
items: 

• Employee Satisfaction Factors  
o Work Productivity (Exhibit A-1) 
o Work/Life Balance (Exhibit A-2) 
o Lunch Schedules (Exhibit A-3) 
o Longer Weekend (Exhibit A-4) 
o Employee Morale (Exhibit A-5) 

• Extension to Fall Semester (Exhibit B) 
• Extension to Spring Semester (Exhibit C) 

 
All employees of the College were asked to participate in the survey and 465 responses 
were received by July 1st.  
 
The results are shown graphically on Exhibits A through C, that were included in the 
packet. 
 
  

37



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 28, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Recommendation – Administration recommended that employees work with their 
supervisors to continue implementing the four-and-a-half-day work week based on one of 
the previously approved schedules below while ensuring coverage of operations. 

• Monday – Thursday 8:00am – 5:30pm (Half hour Lunch) 
• Monday – Thursday 7:30am – 5:00pm (Half hour Lunch) 
• Monday – Thursday 7:45am – 5:15pm (Half hour Lunch)  
• Monday – Thursday 8:00am – 6:00pm (Full hour Lunch) 

 
Exceptions outside these schedules would be made at the discretion and approval of the 
supervisor. 
 
Reviewers - The proposed modified work week schedule was reviewed by administrative 
staff and cabinet members. 
 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services attended 
the Board Meeting to address any questions. 
  
On July 12, 2022, the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not make a 
recommendation on this item, asking that it be presented for deliberation by the full Board 
of Trustees. 
 
At the July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting, the Board requested additional information, 
specifically regarding potential adverse impact to the students, if this schedule were to be 
extended through the following year. 
 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, 
the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized an extension of 
the four-and-a-half-day work week for two weeks, to provide time for further review, asking 
for an update at the August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting. The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Facilities Committee 

The following Consent Agenda item was thoroughly discussed by the Facilities 
Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or not, received all 
supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the deliberation on the item.  
Non-committee members did not participate in Committee votes for recommendation of 
Board action. 
 
Administration believed that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda item were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the item was presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 

38



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 29, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

All trustees were provided the opportunity to ask the item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board was asked to formally act on the full 
consent agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented for the item 
in the following pages 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board action on the following item as presented. 

b. Approval of Final Completion of the District Wide Automatic Door Openers Phase 
IV 
 

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized item a of the Facilities 
Committee Consent Agenda as presented. The motion carried. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval of Final Completion of the District Wide Automatic Door Openers 

Phase IV 
Approval of final completion of the District Wide Automatic Door Openers Phase IV was 
requested. 
 

Project Completion 
Recommende

d 

Date Received 

1. District Wide Automatic Door Openers Phase 
IV Project No. 2020-019C 
 
Engineer: Ethos Engineering 
Contractor: R. E. Friedrichs Company 

Final 
Completion 

Recommended 

July 7, 2022 

 
This project was initiated to provide various building entrances with accessibility 
upgrades. It was reviewed by the Facilities Planning & Construction and Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance departments, and Administration.  This project was scheduled 
as a necessary improvement to install automatic door openers to improve access to 
building entrances district wide for users with disabilities, who may have difficulties 
opening doors, and for assisting safety precautions. This was the fourth and final phase 
of this project to upgrade all College facilities. 
 
Final Completion, including punch list items, was accomplished as required in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It was recommended that final completion 
and release of final payment for this project with R. E. Friedrichs Company be approved.  
The original cost approved for this project was $53,000. 
 
  

39



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 30, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The following table summarizes the current budget status: 
 

On July 7, 2022, Ethos Engineering verified that all punch list items were completed. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A copy of the final completion letter and photos were provided for the Board’s review and 
information.   
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of final completion and release 
of final payment of $9,775 to R. E. Friedrichs Company for the District Wide Automatic 
Door Openers Phase IV as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects 
and Renewals & Replacements Projects 

The Facilities Planning and Construction staff provided a design and construction update. 
This update summarized the status of each capital improvement and renewals & 
replacements project currently in progress, including a categorization based on priority. 
Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza were available to respond to questions and address 
concerns of the Board. 
 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
Board action was requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports 
for the month of June 2022.  The approval was for checks submitted for release in the 
amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 that 
were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, provided a 
review of the Financial Report for the month of June 2022, and was available to respond 
to questions posed by the Board. 
 
The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval were included in the Board 
packet under separate cover. 

District Wide Automatic Door Openers Phase IV 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Current 
Project Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$60,000 $53,000 $0 $53,000 $43,225 $9,775 

40



July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 31, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:06 PM 
 

   
07/26/2022 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the submitted checks for 
release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as authorized by 
Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports submitted for the month of June 2022. The 
motion carried. 
 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
 3:30 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:30 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

• Tuesday, August 23, 2022 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 

Adjournment 
There being no further business to discuss, the Regular Meeting of the South Texas 
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, July 26, 2022 
Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
X 
Mrs. Victoria Cantú 
Board Secretary 
 
 

41



August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:19 PM 
 

   
07/13/2022 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 

Tuesday, August 9, 2022 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 
The Special Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the 
Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:33 p.m. with Ms. Rose 
Benavidez presiding. 
 
Members present: Ms. Rose Benavidez, via teleconference, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul 
R. Rodriguez, Mrs. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar, Mr. Rene Guajardo, and Mr. Danny Guzman 
  
Members absent: Mrs. Victoria Cantú 
 
Also present: Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, Mr. Javier Villalobos, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Mr. Matthew 
Hebbard, Dr. Rodney Rodriguez, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Mrs. Laura Requena, Ms. Alicia 
Correa, Mr. Rick De La Garza, Mr. George McCaleb, Dr. Jesus Campos, Mrs. Myriam Lopez, 
Mr. Khalil Abdullah, Mrs. Lynda Lopez, Ms. Gardenia Perez, and Mr. Andrew T. Fish. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 
A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Public Comments 
Dr. Rodney Rodriguez provided a brief update on behalf of the South Texas College 
Foundation. 
 
No further public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted. 

Discussion and Action as Necessary to Extend the Current Pilot for the 
Four-and-a-Half-Day Work Week Schedule Starting August 1, 2022 and 

Ending on August 31, 2023 
Approval to extend the current pilot four-and-a-half-day work week schedule starting August 
1, 2022 and ending August 31, 2023, was requested. 
 

42



August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:19 PM 
 

   
07/13/2022 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Purpose – To revise working hours starting on August 1, 2022 and ending on August 31, 2023, 
to a four-and-a-half-day work week schedule, while still meeting the forty (40) hour work week 
requirement. This time period will address the entire Fiscal Year of 2022-2023. 
 
Justification – The modified work week schedule is a common practice in community colleges 
and is recognized as a cost reduction measure and an incentive for employees. 
 
Background – On April 13, 2022, a survey was released to all employees to gain feedback 
regarding interest in the four-and-a-half-day work week. Feedback was positive and the four-
and-a-half-day work week pilot was launched on May 16, 2022 after Board approval at the 
May 12, 2022 Special Board meeting. At that May 2022 meeting, the Board instructed 
administration to provide an update and any recommendation regarding potential extension of 
the schedule into the following academic year. 
 
To prepare the Board update, second survey was released on June 27, 2022 to gain feedback 
from employees regarding the actual experience of the four-and-a-half-day work week. 
Feedback was again positive and 83% of employees who responded showed interest in 
extending the schedule and 7% of employees responded that they were neutral.  
 
At the July 26, 2022 Regular Board Meeting, the Board requested additional information, 
specifically regarding potential adverse impact to the students, if this schedule were to be 
extended through the following year.  The Board approved an extension of the four-and-a-half-
day work week for two weeks, to provide time for further review, asking for an update at the 
August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting. 
 
Anticipated Student Impact 
Administration continually collects and monitors student traffic, including usage of specific 
resources and services and periods of high demand.  Areas that see periods of high demand 
include registration, advising, and financial aid during enrollment periods, and library and 
tutoring services throughout the academic semester. 
 
Prior to any four-and-a-half-day work week scheduling, administration provided teams the 
flexibility to schedule as necessary to meet anticipated student demand, including extended 
hours into evenings and on weekends as necessary.  During the recent pilot period utilizing 
the four-and-a-half-day work week, leadership continued to monitor traffic to ensure students’ 
needs were met.   
 
Online and after-hours services are also provided to ensure student requests for services are 
received, tracked, and responded to by appropriate departments. 
 
Administration has noted that historically, there has been a very low demand for student facing 
services on Friday afternoons throughout most of the year.  During those periods when high 
student demand is expected, flexible scheduling is routinely used to meet that demand.  

43



August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 3, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:19 PM 
 

   
07/13/2022 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Additionally, online and on-call options are provided to students who require services after-
hours, including on Friday afternoons. 
 
Administration anticipated no significant negative impact to students from the proposed 
continuation of the four-and-a-half-day work week into the Fall 2022 semester or beyond.   
 
While the data was not yet ready at the time of publication of meeting packet, Matthew 
Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management, and Dr. Jesus 
Campos, Dean for Library and Learning Support Services, attended the August 9, 2022 
Finance, Audit and Human Resources Committee to review current data regarding the booking 
of appointments for financial aid and enrollment offices to help identify trends in student traffic 
during a high-enrollment period and utilization of Library, CLE, and open labs resources. 
 
Adjustments to schedules would be made at the discretion and approval of individual 
supervisors responsible to ensure students’ needs are met, and monitored by executive 
administration. 
 
On August 9, 2022, the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended 
Board approval to extend the current four-and-a-half-day work week schedule for August 1, 
2022 through August 31, 2023. 
 
Reviewers - The proposed modified work week schedule was reviewed by administrative staff 
and cabinet members. 
 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, and Matthew 
Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management, attended 
the  Meeting to address any questions by the trustees. 
  
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Rene Guajardo and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized extending the current four-and-a-
half-day work week schedule for August 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023. The motion carried. 
 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, August 23, 2022 
 4:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Meeting 
 5:00 p.m. – Public Hearing and Special Board Meeting 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
  

44



August 9, 2022 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 4, Revised 08/18/2022 @ 3:19 PM 
 

   
07/13/2022 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Adjournment 
There being no further business to discuss, the Special Meeting of the South Texas College 
Board of Trustees adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, August 9, 2022 Special 
Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
X 
Mrs. Victoria Cantú 
Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 

45



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Awards and Agreements 
Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards, including the use of 
related funds and execution of related agreements as necessary for each grant, is 
requested: 
 

1. Texas Department of Agriculture, Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Application Renewal in the amount of $50,526.70 
This award provides reimbursements for nutritious meals and snacks for eligible 
children who are enrolled for care at the South Texas College Mid Valley Child 
Development Center. Authorization is requested to use the grant funds for 
reimbursement of the meals served, preparation of reports, and other activities 
related to this grant, not exceeding the amount awarded. The funding period is 
from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023.  
 
This award aligns with Strategic Direction #4, Foster Student Success, by 
providing effective support structures for students that promote persistence, 
educational attainment, and academic achievement.  

 
2. Texas Workforce Commission, Information Technology (IT) Registered 

Apprenticeship Expansion Grant in the amount of $119,886 
This award will help to create work-based learning opportunities for students in the 
Registered IT Apprenticeship Expansion Program (RAP). This program will 
engage approximately six IT-related businesses in the region to help support the 
state’s prescribed target IT occupations, Computer User Support Specialist and 
Computer Network Specialist.  The apprenticeship expansion program will offer 
students an opportunity to work toward a nationally recognized credential and help 
them gain the necessary skills and knowledge needed to be workforce ready. The 
funding period for this grant is from August 1, 2022 to July 31, 2023. 
  
This grant aligns with Strategic Direction #3, Create Educational Opportunities, 
by increasing community awareness and access to apprenticeship programs.  

 
3. Texas Workforce Commission, Building Construction Trades Training 

Project in the amount of $60,000  
 Funding from this program will help at least 20 participants in the Electrician 
Technician Construction Trades Industry earn (3) three Industry Building 
Certifications (IBC) such as the National Center for Construction Education and 
Research (NCCER) Core Curriculum, the OSHA-30 Safety Certification and the 
NCCER Electric Level 1 Certification. In addition, this 211-hour program will lead 
to additional IBCs, such as NCCER Electrical Level 2, NCCER Electrical Level 4, 
Electrician Technology certificate, and Electrician Technology Associates degrees. 
The aligns with one or more Target Occupations in BCT for the Electrician 
Technician and Construction Trades to help meet the needs of Texas employers 

46



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 5, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

in the Local Workforce Development Area. The funding period for this grant is from 
August 25, 2022 to November 30, 2023.  

  
This grant is aligned to Strategic Direction #3, Access and Success, by offering 
comprehensive academic and technical programs that are responsive to a regional 
workforce and high-demand occupation training that leads to gainful employment 
opportunities.  

  
4. Texas Workforce Commission, Explore STEM! for Students with Disabilities 

additional funds in the amount of $40,022 
The additional funds for this grant are based on the year two work plan that was 
originally submitted to the agency in December of 2021. The original award amount 
of $31,000 was approved by the board of directors in March of 2021 and awarded 
to the Institute for Advanced Manufacturing (IAM) to provide STEM-based summer 
camps for students ages 14-22.  Explore STEM camps are designed to provide 
students with disabilities the opportunity to learn about STEM occupations through 
hands-on modalities. This grant allows IAM an opportunity to work with students 
with disabilities, enhance their learning experience through interactive learning, 
and encourage students to persist in STEM-related studies. The funding period is 
from March 1, 2021 to December 31, 2022. 

   
This grant is aligned to Strategic Direction #1, Lead Community Engagement, by 
providing middle and high school students with disabilities the opportunity 
to engage in coherent educational experiences through Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Math (STEM) learning camps that encourage them to pursue 
higher education in STEM-related occupations.   

 
5. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Texas Reskilling and 

Upskilling through Education (TRUE) Grant Program, in the amount of 
$385,500  
This grant will support a training program for two in demand mechanic occupations 
that include Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning (HVAC), and Bus/Truck 
Mechanics. These two programs are considered target occupations by the Lower 
RGV Workforce Development Board (Workforce Solutions) and credibly viewed as 
high value/high need fields. The funding period for this grant is upon execution of 
the contract to August 31, 2023.   
  
This award aligns to Strategic Direction #1, Lead Community Engagement, by 
aligning educational opportunities with community and workforce needs. 

 
6. Region One Education Service Center, Adult Education and Family Literacy 

Act Service Agreement, in the amount of $226,649.64 
This agreement provides funding for post-secondary education/training services 
through an Integrated Education and Training model for 82 students. The college’s 
Department of Continuing, Professional and Workforce Education will provide 

47



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 6, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Adult Basic Education and Adult Secondary Education instructional services 
training in Educational Aide, Forklift Operator, Structural Welding, and Medical 
Office Specialist. The funding period is from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. 
 
This award aligns to Strategic Directions #1, Lead Community Engagement, by 
advancing mutually beneficial community and educational partnerships with 
Region One Education Service Center.  

 
7. The John G. and Marie Stella Kenedy Memorial Foundation, Scholarship in 

the amount of $15,000 
Funding from the Kenedy Memorial Foundation will provide scholarships for 
students in need of financial assistance to help support the completion of an 
Associate of Applied Science Degree in a technical field. The Division of Business, 
Public Safety, and Technology Department will manage the dissemination of these 
funds to students with support from Financial Aid Services at South Texas College 
(STC). The funding period is from September 1, 2022 to August 31, 2023.  
 
This grant aligns with Strategic Goal #4, Fostering Student Success, by providing 
scholarships to students wishing to pursue an Associate of Applied Science 
Degree. 

 
8. Any Additional Grants Pending Official Award 

Summary of Grant Award Funding 
The presented grants will provide up to $897,584.34 in funding for the college to provide 
services and opportunities throughout the region. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve the 
following Minute Order proposed for consideration:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes accepting the 
following grant awards, including the use of related funds and execution of related 
agreements as necessary for by each grant, contingent upon official award as 
appropriate: 

 
1. Texas Department of Agriculture, Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Application Renewal in the amount of $50,526.70 
2. Texas Workforce Commission, Information Technology (IT) Registered 

Apprenticeship Expansion Grant in the amount of $119,886 
3. Texas Workforce Commission, Building Construction Trades Training 

Project in the amount of $60,000 
4. Texas Workforce Commission, Explore STEM! for Students with Disabilities 

additional funds in the amount of $40,022 

48



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 7, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

5. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Texas Reskilling and 
Upskilling through Education (TRUE) Grant Program, in the amount of 
$385,500 

6. Region One Education Service Center, Adult Education and Family Literacy 
ACT Service Agreement, in the amount of $226,649.64 

7. The John G. and Marie Stella Kenedy Memorial Foundation, Scholarship in 
the amount of $15,000  

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

49



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 8, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Initial Review and Discussion of Proposed Policies for Adoption and 
Retirement of Current Policies 

The Board of Trustees is asked to review and discuss the proposed policies for adoption 
and the proposed policies for retirement.  For the August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting, 
this item is presented for discussion only, and no action is requested. 
 
Purpose – The proposed adoption of new policies and retirement of current policies is 
necessary to align with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual.  
 
Justification – The request to adopt and retire policies is needed to align the policies with 
the comprehensive, current, and legally sound policy manual, to strengthen the policies’ 
language, and transition policies to a standardized format. The adoption of new and/or 
retired policies are as follows: 
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) 
A-1.   AB College District – Name and 

Definitions 
A-2. Policy #1000: Preamble & Definitions 

• Replaced by AB (Local), BA (Local), 
and BBB (Local) 

B-1.   BA Board Legal Status  
C-1.   BBB Board Members - Elections 

 
C-2. Policy #1300: Single-Member Districts  

• Replaced by BBB (Local) 
C-3. Policy #1400: Elections  

• Replaced by BBB (Local) 
C-4. Policy #1410: Oath of Office  

• Replaced by BBB (Legal) 
D-1.  BBD Board Members – 

Orientation and Training 
 

D-2. Policy #1520: Orientation and Training of 
Trustees 
• Replaced by BBD (Local) and BBH 

(Local) 
E-1.   BBE Board Members - Authority 
 

E-2. Policy #1001: Authority & Functions of the 
Board, Committees and Individual 
Trustees 
• Replaced by BBE (Local) and BCG 

(Local) 
E-3. Policy #1630: Texas Open Meetings Act 

• Replaced by BBE (Local) and BDB 
(Local) 

F-1.   BBF Board Members - Ethics F-2. Policy #1020: Goals for Trustees  
• Replaced by BBF (Local) 

F-3. Policy #1510: Code of Ethics for Board 
Members  
• Replaced by BBF (Local) 

50



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 9, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) 
G-1.   BBG Board Members – 

Compensation and Expenses 
G-2. Policy #1530: Compensation and 

Expenses 
• Replaced by BBG (Local) 

H-1.   BBH Board Members – 
Conventions, Conferences, and 
Workshops 

 

I-1.   BCA Board Internal Organization 
– Board Officers and Officials 

I-2. Policy #1100: Board Officers 
• Replaced by BCA (Local) 

J-1.   BCB Board Internal Organization 
– Board Committees 

J-2. Policy #1110: Board Committees 
• Replaced by BCB (Local) 

K-1.   BCC Board Internal Organization 
– Attorney 

K-2. Policy #2200: Legal Counsel 
• Replaced by BCC (Local) 

L-1.   BCG Board Internal Organization 
– Board Evaluation 

 

M-1.   BD Board Meetings M-2. Policy #1610: Types of Meetings 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

M-3. Policy #1620: Meeting Procedures 
• Replaced by BD (Local) and BDB 

(Local) 
M-4. Policy #1625: Notice of Meeting: 

Contents of Notice 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

M-5. Policy #1640: Agenda 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

M-6. Policy #1645: Consent Agenda 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

M-7. Policy #1650: Quorum 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

M-8. Policy #1660: Minutes 
• Replaced by BD (Local) 

N-1.   BDB  Board Meetings – Public 
Participation 
• Administration requests 

Board feedback on whether 
to include or delete language 
requiring that anyone who 
wishes to address the Board 
in Public Comment must give 
prior indication of the topic or 
agenda item they wish to 
discuss. 

 

51



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 10, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) 
O-1.  BE Policy and Bylaw 

Development 
O-2. Policy #1700: Board Policies 

• Replaced by BE (Local) 
O-3. Policy #2300: Developing, 

Recommending, and Implementing Policy 
• Replaced by BE (Local) 

P-1.   BFA Chief Executive Officer 
Qualifications and Duties 

P-2. Policy #1010: Authority & Functions of 
the College President 
• Replaced by BFA (Local) 

P-3. Policy #Policy 2100: Duties and 
Responsibilities of the President 
• Replaced by BFA (Local) 

P-4. Policy #Policy 2110: Qualifications of the 
President 
• Replaced by BFA (Local) and Move 

to Procedure 
Q-1.   BFD Chief Executive Officer – 

Retirement or Resignation 
Q-2. Policy #2160: Retirement or Resignation 

of the President 
• Replaced by BFD (Local) 

 
The following policies are also recommended for retirement. They are duplicative with 
existing legal policies as maintained for South Texas College by TASB, or TASB 
recommends transitioning to a procedure, as deemed appropriate, by College staff based 
on internal operations and functions:  
 
R-1.   Retire Current Policy #1011: Relationship Between Board and President 

• TASB recommends development as a Procedure Document instead of a Board 
Policy 

 
S-1.   Retire Current Policy #1200: Qualifications for Service as Trustee 

• Replaced by BBA (Legal) – Board Members – Eligibility/Qualifications 
 
T-1.   Retire Current Policy #1210: Resignation of Trustee 

• Replaced by BBC (Legal) – Board Members – Vacancies and Removal from 
Office 

 
U-1.   Retire Current Policy #1220: Vacancy on the Board of Trustees 

• Replaced by BBC (Legal) – Board Members – Vacancies and Removal from 
Office 

 
V-1.   Retire Current Policy #1230: Removal from Office 

• Replaced by BBC (Legal) – Board Members – Vacancies and Removal from 
Office 
 

52



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 11, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

W-1.  Retire Current Policy #1511: Trustee Duty to Disclose Substantial Interests in a 
Business Entity or in Real Estate; Disclosure Requirements and Abstention 
• Replaced by BBFA (Legal) – Conflict of Interest Disclosures 

 
 
X-1.   Retire Current Policy #1512: Nepotism: Public Officials 

• Replaced by DBE (Legal) – Employment Requirements and Restrictions – 
Nepotism 

 
Y-1.   Retire Current Policy #1670: Executive Sessions 

• Replaced by BDA (Legal) – Board Meetings – Closed Meetings 
 
Z-1.   Retire Current Policy #1671: Executive Session Certified Agenda 

• Replaced by BDA (Legal) – Board Meetings – Closed Meetings 
 
AA-1.   Retire Current Policy #1800: Position on Legislative Matters 

• TASB recommends development as a Procedure Document instead of a Board 
Policy 

 
Background – On March 31, 2020, the Board of Trustees approved an interlocal 
agreement with TASB for Policy Management Service. Throughout FY 2022 and FY 2023, 
current College board policies will be reviewed, retired, and transitioned into the TASB 
formatted policies. TASB will then provide a comprehensive, current, and legally sound 
Policy Manual. 
 
Reviewers – The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, administrators, 
TASB staff, College staff, and STC Legal Counsel.  
 
Enclosed Documents - The new and or retired policies follow in the packet for the 
Committee’s information and review. 
 
Andrew Fish, Board Relations Officer, and Gardenia Perez, Chief of Staff, will be present 
at the Meeting to address questions by the Trustees.  
 
No action is requested at this time. Any feedback received from the Board of Trustees 
will be reviewed with administration, legal counsel, and TASB, and incorporated into 
policies proposed for Board action on September 27, 2022.  

53



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 12, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review of Presentation to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 
Committee: 

a. Review and Discussion of South Texas College Proposed 2022 Tax Year Tax 
Rate 

Chapter 26 of the Property Tax code requires taxing units to comply with truth-in-taxation 
laws in adopting the tax rate.  The laws have two purposes:  to make taxpayers aware of 
tax rate proposals and to allow taxpayers, in certain cases, to roll back or limit a tax 
increase.  The truth-in-taxation requires a taxing unit to calculate two (2) tax rates, no-
new-revenue tax rate and the voter-approval tax rate, after receiving its certified appraisal 
roll from the chief appraiser. 
 
Comparing a proposed tax rate to these two (2) rates determines which truth-in-taxation 
steps apply.  A taxing unit must publish special notices and hold a public hearing before 
adopting a tax rate that exceeds the no-new-revenue rate and/or the voter-approval rate.  
The College is proposing to adopt a tax rate that does exceed the no-new-revenue tax 
rate but does not exceed the voter-approval tax rate and therefore, is required to hold a 
public hearing. 
 
The Texas Tax Code 26.04(e) requires the taxing units to publish a Notice of Tax Rate 
and sets out the requirement for the format and content of the notice.  The notice shall be 
posted prominently on the home page of the taxing unit’s website in the form prescribed 
by the Texas State Comptroller’s office that include the statutory requirements.  In 
addition, the Texas Tax Code 26.06(c) requires the taxing unit to publish a Notice of Public 
Hearing in newspaper, website and on TV, if available, if the taxing unit proposes a tax 
rate that: 
 

• Exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate and the voter-approval tax rate; 
• Exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate but does not exceed the voter-approval 

tax rate; or 
• Does not exceed the no-new-revenue tax rate but exceeds the voter-approval 

tax rate. 
 
Use of Interest and Sinking Reserve Funds 
 
The Vice President for Financial Administrative Services and Business Office staff met 
with Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. to address options to continue using the Interest 
and Sinking reserved funds available. The following options were discussed with Estrada 
Hinojosa & Company, Inc.: 
 

• Option 1 – Use the Interest and Sinking reserve funds to lower the debt tax rate. 
• Option 2 – Do not use the Interest and Sinking reserve for potential bond election 

to be held prior to FY 2024-2025 when the tax rate will decrease because two 
bond issuances will be paid off resulting in a decreased debt requirement.  

54



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 13, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

 
Option 1 is based on the use of Interest and Sinking reserve funds to lower the debt tax 
rate. The table below reflects $2,600,000 Interest and Sinking reserve funds used for the 
bond payments which results in a rate of $0.0227: 
 

 M&O RATE DEBT RATE RATE REVENUE 
 
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) 

 
 

 
 

 
$0.1572 

 
$79,363,113 

 
Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0227 

 
$0.1615 

 
$81,351,314 

 
Proposed Tax Rate 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0227 

 
$0.1615 

 
$81,351,314 

 
Option 2 is based on zero use of Interest and Sinking reserve funds for the debt tax rate.  
With this option, the debt tax rate will collect the amount necessary to fully fund all debt 
service payments. The table below reflects zero use of Interest and Sinking reserve funds 
for bond payments which results in a debt tax rate of $0.0282: 
 

 M&O RATE DEBT RATE RATE REVENUE 
 
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) 

 
 

 
 

 
$0.1572 

 
$79,363,113 

 
Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0282 

 
$0.1670 

 
$83,894,361 

 
Proposed Tax Rate 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0282 

 
$0.1670 

 
$83,894,361 

 
The debt tax rate of both options is lower than the current debt tax rate of $0.0315.  As 
shown in the tables above, the debt tax rate with option 1 ($0.0227) is lower than debt tax 
rate of option 2 ($0.0282) by $0.0055. 
 
The proposed maintenance and operations (M&O) tax rate of $0.1388 is the maximum 
rate that the College can adopt to not exceed the voter-approval tax rate and not be 
required to hold an election to vote on the proposed tax rate.   
 
South Texas College is required to hold a public hearing and publish special notices 
before adopting the proposed tax rate of either $0.1615 or $0.1670 since this tax rate 
does exceed the no-new-revenue tax rate but does not exceed the voter-approval tax 
rate.   
 

55



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 14, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

In fiscal year 2022, South Texas College held a public hearing and published special 
notices before adopting the tax rate of $0.1715, $0.1400 cents for M&O and $0.0315 for 
I&S.   
 
The Notice of 2022 Tax Rates and a presentation on Proposed 2022 Property Tax Rate 
follow in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
Dr. Miguel De Los Santos, Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. will be present to discuss 
the options of using the Interest and Sinking Reserve funds.  
  

56



Notice about 2022 Tax Rates
Property tax rates in South Texas College.
This notice concerns the 2022 property tax rates for South Texas College. This notice provides 
information about two tax rates used in adopting the current tax year's tax rate. The no-new-revenue 
tax rate would Impose the same amount of taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed in both 
years. In most cases, the voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate a taxing unit can adopt without 
holding an election. In each case, these rates are calculated by dividing the total amount of taxes by 
the current taxable value with adjustments as required by state law. The rates are given per $100 of 
property value.

This year's no-new-revenue tax rate $0.1572/$100
This year's voter-approval tax rate $0.1615/$100

To see the full calculations, please visit South Texas College for a copy of the Tax Rate Calculation 
Worksheet.

Unencumbered Fund Balances
The following estimated balances will be left in the taxing unit's accounts at the end of the fiscal 
year. These balances are not encumbered by corresponding debt obligation.
Type of Fund Balance

Interest and Sinking Account 15,156,973

Current Year Debt Service
The following amounts are for long-term debts that are secured by property taxes. These amounts 
will be paid from upcoming property tax revenues (or additional sales tax revenues, if applicable).

Description of Debt
Principal or Contract 
Payment to be Paid 
from Property Taxes

Interest to be 
Paid from 
Property Taxes

Other Amounts 
to be Paid

Total Payment

Limited Tax Bonds, Series 

2014
2,760,000 138,000 0 2,898,000

Limited Tax Bonds, Series 

2015
5,465,000 445,450 0 5,910,450

Limited Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Taxable Series 2020
375,000 1,680,850 0 2,055,850

Limited Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Taxable Series 2021
235,000 2,099,223 0 2,334,223

Total required for 2022 debt service $13,198,523

- Amount (if any) paid from funds listed in
unencumbered funds $2,600,000

- Amount (if any) paid from other resources $0

- Excess collections last year $0

= Total to be paid from taxes in 2022 $10,598,523

+ Amount added in anticipation that the unit will
collect only 100.94% of its taxes in 2022

$-98,699 

= Total debt levy $10,499,824

This notice contains a summary of actual no-new-revenue and voter-approval calculations as 
certified by Mary G. Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services on 
08/18/2022 .

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can 
easily access information regarding your property taxes, including information about proposed tax 
rates and scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to 
limit the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

Option 1

57



Notice about 2022 Tax Rates
Property tax rates in South Texas College.
This notice concerns the 2022 property tax rates for South Texas College. This notice provides 
information about two tax rates used in adopting the current tax year's tax rate. The no-new-revenue 
tax rate would Impose the same amount of taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed in both 
years. In most cases, the voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate a taxing unit can adopt without 
holding an election. In each case, these rates are calculated by dividing the total amount of taxes by 
the current taxable value with adjustments as required by state law. The rates are given per $100 of 
property value.

This year's no-new-revenue tax rate $0.1572/$100
This year's voter-approval tax rate $0.1670/$100

To see the full calculations, please visit South Texas College for a copy of the Tax Rate Calculation 
Worksheet.

Unencumbered Fund Balances
The following estimated balances will be left in the taxing unit's accounts at the end of the fiscal 
year. These balances are not encumbered by corresponding debt obligation.
Type of Fund Balance

Interest and Sinking Account 15,156,973

Current Year Debt Service
The following amounts are for long-term debts that are secured by property taxes. These amounts 
will be paid from upcoming property tax revenues (or additional sales tax revenues, if applicable).

Description of Debt
Principal or Contract 
Payment to be Paid 
from Property Taxes

Interest to be 
Paid from 
Property Taxes

Other Amounts 
to be Paid

Total Payment

Limited Tax Bonds, Series 

2014
2,760,000 138,000 0 2,898,000

Limited Tax Bonds, Series 

2015
5,465,000 445,450 0 5,910,450

Limited Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Taxable Series 2020
375,000 1,680,850 0 2,055,850

Limited Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Taxable Series 2021
235,000 2,099,223 0 2,334,223

Total required for 2022 debt service $13,198,523

- Amount (if any) paid from funds listed in
unencumbered funds $0

- Amount (if any) paid from other resources $0

- Excess collections last year $0

= Total to be paid from taxes in 2022 $13,198,523

+ Amount added in anticipation that the unit will
collect only 100.94% of its taxes in 2022

$-122,911 

= Total debt levy $13,075,612

This notice contains a summary of actual no-new-revenue and voter-approval calculations as 
certified by Mary G. Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services on 
08/18/2022 .

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can 
easily access information regarding your property taxes, including information about proposed tax 
rates and scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to 
limit the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

Option 2

58



8/18/2022

1

Proposed 2022 
Property Tax Rates
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee
August 9, 2022

1

Proposed Tax Rates

Chapter 26 of the Property Tax
Code requires taxing units to
comply with truth‐in‐taxation
laws in adopting the tax rate.

Truth in taxation is designed to
inform the public of increases
in total tax revenues assessed
by taxing units.

2

59



8/18/2022

2

Proposed Tax Rates

Truth‐In‐Taxation 
requires a taxing 
unit to calculate 
two (2) tax rates 
after receiving its 
certified appraisal 
roll from the Chief 

Appraiser.

No‐New‐
Revenue 
Rate

(NNRR)
(Effective Tax Rate) 

Voter‐
Approval 
Rate
(VAR)

(Rollback Tax Rate) 3

Terminology

No‐New‐Revenue Tax Rate
The rate that will generate the same amount of tax revenue if applied 
to the same properties taxed in both years. 

No‐New‐Revenue Maintenance & Operations (M&O) Rate
The rate that will generate the same amount of Maintenance & 
Operations tax revenue if applied to the same properties taxed in 
both years. 

Voter‐Approval Tax Rate
The rate is the maximum rate allowed by law without requiring a 
petition or voter approval election.

4

60



8/18/2022

3

Special Notices & 
Public Hearing Requirement

A taxing unit must publish special notices and
hold one public hearing before adopting a tax
rate if the taxing unit proposes a tax rate that:

• Exceeds the no‐new‐revenue tax rate and the
voter‐approval tax rate;

• Exceeds the no‐new‐revenue tax rate but does
not exceed the voter‐approval tax rate; or

• Does not exceed the no‐new‐revenue tax rate
but exceeds the voter‐approval tax rate

5

Option 1: Proposed Total Tax Rate:  $0.1615

The College is required to hold 
one public hearing and publish                     
special notices before adopting                   
the proposed tax rate since the 
proposed rate ($0.1615) does  
exceed the lower of:
• the no‐new‐revenue rate of 
($0.1572) but does not exceed

• the voter‐approval rate of 
($0.1615)

6

61



8/18/2022

4

Option 1 ‐ Tax Rates Calculations

M&O Rate Debt Rate Rate Revenue

No‐New‐Revenue Rate
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) $0.1572 $79,363,113

Voter‐Approval Rate
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) $0.1388 $0.0227 $0.1615 $81,351,314

Proposed Tax Rate $0.1388 $0.0227 $0.1615 $81,351,314

7

Option 2: Proposed Total Tax Rate:  $0.1670

The College is required to hold 
one public hearing and publish                     
special notices before adopting                   
the proposed tax rate since the 
proposed rate ($0.1670) does  
exceed the lower of:
• the no‐new‐revenue rate of 
($0.1572) but does not exceed

• the voter‐approval rate of 
($0.1670)

8

62



8/18/2022

5

Option 2 ‐ Tax Rates Calculations

M&O Rate Debt Rate Rate Revenue

No‐New‐Revenue Rate
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) $0.1572 $79,363,113

Voter‐Approval Rate
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) $0.1388 $0.0282 $0.1670 $83,894,361

Proposed Tax Rate $0.1388 $0.0282 $0.1670 $83,894,361

9

Required Steps 

• July 25, 2022 – Deadline for chief appraiser to certify 
rolls to taxing units 

• Certification of anticipated collection rate by collector
• Calculation of no‐new‐revenue and voter‐approval tax       

rates
• August 23, 2022 – Meeting of governing body to discuss 

tax rate 
• August 23, 2022 – The recommended proposed tax rate 

does exceed the lower of the no‐new‐revenue but does 
not exceed the voter‐approval tax rate, take record vote 
and schedule one public hearing

• August 24, 2022 – Notice About 2022 Tax Rates  
published on South Texas College website 10

63



8/18/2022

6

Required Steps 

• September 14, 2022 – Publish Notice of Public Hearing 
on Tax Increase

• September 23, 2022 – Schedule and announced meeting 
to adopt tax rate

• September 27, 2022 – Public Hearing
• September 27, 2022 – Meeting to adopt tax rate

11

Thank You 
Questions?

12

64



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 15, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Conduct a Record Vote to Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding 
Adoption of the Proposed Tax Rate that Exceeds the No-New-

Revenue Tax Rate and/or the Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
Approval by record vote to schedule a public hearing regarding adoption of the proposed 
tax rate that exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate and/or the voter-approval tax rate is 
requested. 
 
A taxing unit is required to hold a public hearing and publish newspaper ads before 
adopting a tax rate if that tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate and/or the voter-
approval tax rate.  The Tax Assessors for Hidalgo County and Starr County determined 
South Texas College’s rates to be the following: 
 
Option 1 – based on use of $2,600,000 Interest and Sinking reserve funds 
  

 M&O RATE DEBT RATE RATE REVENUE 
 
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) 

 
 

 
 

 
$0.1572 

 
$79,363,113 

 
Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0227 

 
$0.1615 

 
$81,351,314 

 
Proposed Tax Rate 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0227 

 
$0.1615 

 
$81,351,314 

 
 
Option 2 – based on zero use of Interest and Sinking reserve funds 
 

 M&O RATE DEBT RATE RATE REVENUE 
 
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
(Formerly Effective Tax Rate) 

 
 

 
 

 
$0.1572 

 
$79,363,113 

 
Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
(Formerly Rollback Tax Rate) 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0282 

 
$0.1670 

 
$83,894,361 

 
Proposed Tax Rate 

 
$0.1388 

 
$0.0282 

 
$0.1670 

 
$83,894,361 

 
The proposed tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate but does not exceed the voter-
approval tax rate and, therefore, the Board must take record vote and schedule a public 
hearing.  
 
The Notice of Public Hearing and the Roll Call Vote of Members of the Board form follow in 
the packet for the Committee’s information and review. 

65



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 16, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee will meet on August 23, 2022, and 
will be asked to recommend Board approval by record vote to schedule a public hearing, and 
to identify the tax rate to be considered at that hearing. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes by record vote to 
schedule a public hearing, on September 27, 2022 at 5:15 PM before adopting the proposed 
tax rate of either $0.1615 or $0.1670 which exceeds the no-new-revenue rate and/or the 
voter-approval tax rate. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

66



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON TAX INCREASE 

A tax rate of $0.1615 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of South Texas College. 
PROPOSED TAX RATE $0.1615 per $100
NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE $0.1572 per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE $0.1615 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2022 tax year that will raise the same amount of property 
tax revenue for South Texas College from the same properties in both the 2021 tax year and the 2022 tax 
year.

The voter-approval rate is the highest tax rate that South Texas College may adopt without holding an 
election to seek voter approval of the rate.

The proposed tax rate is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that South Texas College is 
proposing to increase property taxes for the 2022 tax year.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON September 27, 2022 AT 
5:15 PM AT South Texas College Board Room Annex Bldg 2nd Floor 3201 W. Pecan, McAllen, Texas.

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the voter-approval tax rate. As a result, South Texas College is not 
required to hold an election at which voters may accept or reject the proposed tax rate. However, you may 
express your support for or opposition to the proposed tax rate by contacting the members of the South 
Texas College of South Texas College at their offices or by attending the public hearing mentioned above.
YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED 

AS FOLLOWS:

Property tax amount= (tax rate) x (taxable value of your property)/100 

FOR the proposal: 

AGAINST the proposal: 

PRESENT and not voting: 

ABSENT: 

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can easily 
access information regarding your property taxes, including information about proposed tax rates and 
scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit 
the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by South Texas 
College last year to the taxes proposed to be imposed on the average residence homestead by South Texas 
College this year.

2021 2022 Change

Option 1

67



Total tax rate (per 
$100 of value) 

$0.1715 $0.1615 decrease of -0.0100, or 
-5.83%

Average homestead 
taxable value 

$94,462 $111,009 increase of 16,547, or 
17.52% 

Tax on average 
homestead 

$162.00 $179.28 increase of 17.28, or 
10.67% 

Total tax levy on all 
properties 

$70,908,004 $74,673,109 increase of 3,765,105, or 
5.31% 

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for South Texas College at 956-872-3558 
or marye@southtexascollege.edu, or visit www.southtexascollege.edu for more information.

68



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON TAX INCREASE 

A tax rate of $0.1670 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of South Texas College. 
PROPOSED TAX RATE $0.1670 per $100
NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE $0.1572 per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE $0.1670 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2022 tax year that will raise the same amount of property 
tax revenue for South Texas College from the same properties in both the 2021 tax year and the 2022 tax 
year.

The voter-approval rate is the highest tax rate that South Texas College may adopt without holding an 
election to seek voter approval of the rate.

The proposed tax rate is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that South Texas College is 
proposing to increase property taxes for the 2022 tax year.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON September 27, 2022 AT 
5:15 PM AT South Texas College Board Room Annex Bldg 2nd Floor 3201 W. Pecan, McAllen, Texas.

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the voter-approval tax rate. As a result, South Texas College is not 
required to hold an election at which voters may accept or reject the proposed tax rate. However, you may 
express your support for or opposition to the proposed tax rate by contacting the members of the South 
Texas College of South Texas College at their offices or by attending the public hearing mentioned above.
YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED 

AS FOLLOWS:

Property tax amount= (tax rate) x (taxable value of your property)/100 

FOR the proposal: 

AGAINST the proposal: 

PRESENT and not voting: 

ABSENT: 

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can easily 
access information regarding your property taxes, including information about proposed tax rates and 
scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit 
the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by South Texas 
College last year to the taxes proposed to be imposed on the average residence homestead by South Texas 
College this year.

2021 2022 Change

Option 2

69



Total tax rate (per 
$100 of value) 

$0.1715 $0.1670 decrease of -0.0045, or 
-2.62% 

Average homestead 
taxable value 

$94,462 $111,009 increase of 16,547, or 
17.52% 

Tax on average 
homestead 

$162.00 $185.39 increase of 23.39, or 
14.44% 

Total tax levy on all 
properties 

$70,908,004 $77,216,156 increase of 6,308,152, or 
8.90% 

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for South Texas College at 956-872-3558 
or marye@southtexascollege.edu, or visit www.southtexascollege.edu for more information.

70



Roll Call Vote of Members of the Board 

Take Record Vote to Schedule A Public Hearing for Proposed Tax Rate that Exceeds the No-
New-Revenue Tax Rate and it is less than or equal to the Voter-Approval Tax Rate 

Public Hearing – September 27, 2022 at 5:15 p.m. 

August 23, 2022 

Rose Benavidez:  Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

Alejo Salinas, Jr.:  Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

Victoria Cantú:  Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

Paul R. Rodriguez: Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____ 

Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar: Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

Rene Guajardo:  Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

Danny Guzman:  Yea_____ Nay_____ Absent_____

71



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 17, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

The following Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed by the Finance, Audit, 
and Human Resources Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or 
not, received all supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the 
deliberation on each item.  Non-committee members did not participate in Committee 
votes for recommendation of Board action. 
 
Administration believes that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the items are presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 
 
On August 9, 2022, the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended 
Board approval of revised evaluation criteria for competitive procurement of products, 
services, and products and services.  Administration continues to review questions raised 
during the Committee discussion with Legal Counsel, and recommends no Board action 
at this time. 
 
Administration will return to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee for 
additional discussion and revisions as necessary 
 
Any trustee may identify an item or items that should be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board is asked to formally act on the full 
consent agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented for each 
item in the following pages 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board action on 
the following items as presented. 
 
a. Approval of Solicitation of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal Agreement 
b. Approval of Vendor Registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals System for 

Receiving Notification of College Solicitations  
c. Acceptance of Internal Auditor’s Annual Statement of Organizational Independence 
d. Approval of Internal Audit Charter 
e. Approval of Proposed Projects for Internal Auditor for FY 2022 – 2023 
 
  

72



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 18, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize items a – e of the 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 

 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President  

73



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 19, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval of Solicitation of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and 

Interlocal Agreement 
Approval of the following solicitation of proposals, purchases, renewals, and interlocal 
agreement is requested. 
 
The Director of Purchasing has reviewed each item and recommends approval as follows: 
 
A. Solicitation of Proposals 
 
1) Campus Dining Services - Food Trucks (Solicit) 
Solicit a request for proposals for campus dining services – food trucks for the Starr County 
Campus and the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence for services as needed. 
 
Purpose – Facilities Operations and Maintenance and the Purchasing Department are 
requesting campus dining services – food trucks to provide services from Monday through 
Friday, starting at 8:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m. 
 
Justification and Benefit –   Food Services must be available for the South Texas College 
faculty, staff, students, and the community at each campus.  
 
Background – A request for proposals for campus dining and food truck services was 
previously solicited and the College did not receive any responses for food trucks at these 
locations. 
 
2) District Wide Network Equipment Upgrade (Solicit) 
Solicit a request for proposals for the district wide network equipment upgrade using the 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) grant, at a total amount of 
$900,000.00. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to purchase network equipment and 
installation services for the district wide upgrade of its wireless network. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The equipment upgrade will improve the wireless connectivity 
and capacity inside all the South Texas College facilities. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds 
(HEERF) grant budget for FY 2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
3) Purchase of Portable Air Purifiers (Solicit) 
Solicit a request for proposals for the purchase of portable air purifiers using the Higher 
Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) grant, at a total amount of $200,000.00. 
 
Purchase – Academic Affairs, Finance and Administrative Services, Information Services, 
Planning, Performance and Strategic Initiatives, and Student Services and Enrollment 

74



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 20, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Management, are requesting to purchase two hundred (200) air purifiers for classrooms, 
common areas, and libraries. 
 
Justification and Benefit – As the Fall 2022 and Spring 2023 semesters begin, the portable 
air purifiers will create and maintain a safer environment for students, faculty, and staff 
and reduce the spread of COVID-19.  The two (2) different models requested are 
necessary due to the varying conditions of the environment in which they will be placed. 
 
Background – On August 24, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of one 
hundred twenty-five (125) portable air purifiers for classrooms.  On January 25, 2022, the 
Board of Trustees awarded the purchase of four hundred (400) portable air purifiers for 
classrooms and labs.  The additional two hundred (200) portable air purifiers are needed 
for the remaining classrooms, common areas, and libraries throughout the district in 
preparation for increased face-to-face instruction in the Fall Semester. In addition, on July 
13, 2022 the Board of Trustees approved the cancellation of the planned District Wide Air 
Handler Replacements project scheduled due to the completion date being after the end 
date of the use of the Higher Education Relief Funds (HEERF) grant. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds 
(HEERF) grant budget for FY 2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
B. Purchases and Renewals (B-a. Technology Items) 
 
4) Banner Application Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the Banner application maintenance agreement with Ellucian, Inc. through Texas 
A&M University – Corpus Christi (Corpus Christi, TX), acting by and through the State 
of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) for the Texas Connection 
Consortium (TCC), for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, 
at an estimated total amount of $415,774.05. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the Banner application 
maintenance and support for the Banner applications and existing third party applications 
that work with the Banner system. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The applications included in the renewal agreement are as 
follows: 
 

Applications 

Banner Financial Aid  Banner Finance Banner Finance Self-
Service  

Banner Human Resources Banner Employee Self-
Service 

Banner Student 

Banner Student Self-
Service 

Banner Faculty (and 
Advisor) Self-Service 

Electronic Data 
Interchange (EDI) Smart 

75



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 21, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Applications 

Banner Workflow Campus Loan Manager 
(CLM) (Campus 

Receivables Collector) 

Luminis Basic 

Banner Recruiting and 
Admission Performance 

Ellucian Degree Works Ellucian Degree Works 
Transfer Equivalency 

Ellucian Mobile Platform 
Edition 

Ellucian Intelligent 
Learning Platform 

Financial Aid FM Need 
Analysis 

Xtender Solutions Application Xtender AppWorx 

Document Management 
Suite 

Application Xtender Test 
Bundle 

Banner Enterprise Job 
Scheduler 

Application Xtender Web 
Services 

Banner Document 
Management Suite 

 

 
The Banner system applications collaborate across departments in fulfilling the day-to-
day operations and improving processes for faculty, staff, and students.  The three (3) 
main systems are Banner Finance, Banner Human Resources, and Banner Student. 
  
The agreement is a standing maintenance agreement with Ellucian, a sole source vendor. 
The contract is purchased through the Texas Connection Consortium (TCC) in order to 
purchase at a substantially discounted rate.  
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Application Development budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
5) Communication Software Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the communication software agreement with Hit Labs, Inc. (Lehi, UT), a sole 
source vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at 
an estimated total amount of $75,038.91. 
 
Purpose – Distance Education is requesting to renew the communication software 
agreement, which is used with Blackboard for communication with students taking online 
courses. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The communication software connects student and instructors 
with real-time chat, group video chat, allow for announcements, provides message 
language translation, file sharing and storage, and task management.  It supports the 
student in learning faster, working smarter, and the ability to communicate seamlessly.  
In addition, this software has instant translation so the instructor or student can create a 
message in English and the reader can enable the option to see that message in multiple 
language options.  Given our large number of English Second Language (ESL) students, 
this tool is a valuable option for student-instructor interactions. 

76



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 22, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Distance Learning budget for FY 2022 – 
2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
6) Data Hosting and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the data hosting and maintenance agreement with TouchNet Information 
Systems, Inc. (Atlanta, GA), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning September 
1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total amount of $259,763.00. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the annual data hosting and 
maintenance services for the College’s cashiering system.  
 
Justification and Benefit - The data hosting services provide a data-secure environment 
for all payments received at the College.  All personal, bank, and credit card information 
must be stored in a Payment Card Industry (PCI) certified data center to prevent fraud. 
The maintenance covers support issues for the cashiering system including online 
payments by credit cards and checks and for the equipment used by South Texas College 
staff.  
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Application Development budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
7) Data Storage Hardware Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the data storage hardware maintenance agreement with Dell Marketing, LP. 
(Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, for the period beginning August 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total 
estimated amount of $34,242.22. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the maintenance agreement 
for the College’s data storage devices for virtual desktops infrastructure (VDI) and Banner 
systems. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The storage device provides a central location to store the 
virtual desktops and the Banner applications that support student and faculty district wide.  
The maintenance includes twenty-four (24) hour, year-round support for the hardware 
and software. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
8) Email Backup Online License Subscription (Renewal) 
Renew the email backup online license subscription with Software House International 
(SHI) Government Solutions (Austin, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information 

77



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 23, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning August 31, 2022 through 
August 30, 2023, at an estimated amount of $37,141.01. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the email backup online license 
subscription, which supports email retention and archiving for faculty, staff, and students.  
Justification and Benefit – This subscription provides the functionality to backup, archive, 
and restore emails online.  The subscription will allow a longer retention period and 
provides recovery of emails. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
9) Email Security Software License Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the email security software license agreement with Software House 
International (SHI) Government Solutions (Austin, TX), The Interlocal Purchasing 
System (TIPS) approved vendor, for the period beginning September 30, 2022 through 
September 29, 2023, at a total estimated amount of $41,260.62. 
 
Purpose – Information Security is requesting to renew the email security cloud solution, 
Proofpoint, to protect the College’s Office 365 email services from inbound cyber-attacks, 
and to protect email users from malware, spam, and phishing attempts.  This software 
also provides secure messaging capabilities to be able to send sensitive data through 
email. 
 
Justification and Benefit – Email is widely used as a method to deliver malware, phishing 
attempts, and is constantly targeted by spammers.  The College needs to protect the 
service with a tool that provides protection against these threats.  This license provides a 
service for sharing sensitive information securely with trusted parties and can greatly 
reduce the probability of a successful phishing attempt. 
 
 

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Information Security budget for FY 2022 
– 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
10) Enterprise Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreements (Renewal) 
Renew the enterprise software licenses and maintenance agreements with Software 
House International (SHI) Government Solutions (Austin, TX), a Purchasing 
Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE), Texas Association of School Boards – 
Buyboard, and The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) approved vendor, for the period 
beginning September 1, 2022 through September 20, 2023, at an estimated total amount 
of $93,396.89. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology (IT) is requesting to renew various enterprise software 
licenses and maintenance agreements used on computers at all campuses, ticketing 

78



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 24, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

system licenses used by the Information Services and Planning (IS&P) Help Desk, 
monitoring and alert system licenses used to monitor the College’s Information Systems. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The enterprise software licenses are installed on the student 
lab computers and classroom computers throughout all the College’s campuses and 
remote sites.  The software retains the computer’s original settings and configurations in 
order to keep them running efficiently and to prevent hardware failures or downtime. 
The ticketing system licenses are used by the IT Service Desk to keep track of any 
technical support issue and assistance called in by South Texas College faculty, staff, 
and students. 
 
IT uses the monitoring and alert system to continuously monitor all systems (servers and 
switches) to prevent any service interruptions for faculty, staff, and students. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Information Technology Project 
Management, Risk and Security, Client Services, and Technology Support Services 
budgets for FY 2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
11) Internet Service Agreement – District Wide (Renewal) 
Renew the internet service agreement – district wide with Charter Communications 
Operating, LLC./dba Spectrum Gulf Coast through the State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) – TEXAN (Austin, TX), for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated monthly total amount of 
$15,000.00 and estimated annual total amount of $180,000.00. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the agreement for direct 
internet service to the Pecan Campus Building M Data Center. This service is also 
distributed throughout the College district from the Pecan Campus. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The service will be utilized by student, faculty, and staff to 
access the internet for use in classrooms, labs, and offices at all campuses and centers. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
12) Network Hardware and Software Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the network hardware and software maintenance agreement with Netsync 
Network Solutions, Inc. (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through 
August 31, 2023, at a total amount of $139,248.59. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the network hardware and 
software maintenance agreement for the College network hardware and software.  

79



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 25, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Justification and Benefit – The network equipment and software maintenance agreement 
will provide online phone support and software upgrades for all Cisco network equipment.  
It will cover equipment failure by providing equipment replacements within the next 
business day. The equipment is critical to the network infrastructure which provides 
faculty, staff, and students connectivity to the internet and intranet applications and 
services such as Blackboard and Banner. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
13) Oracle License Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the Oracle license maintenance agreement with Oracle America, Inc. (Dallas, 
TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for 
the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total amount of 
$550,248.65. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the support for database 
licenses, database security licenses, and database backup licenses at a quantity of 
24,318 for each type of license, which is used for the College’s administrative computing 
system.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The support services include maintenance and upgrades to the 
database licenses. The upgrades are needed so that the College stays up to date with 
the latest version of the software that supports the Banner system as well as other 
enterprise level software throughout the College. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
14) Public Website Hosting Services Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the public website hosting services agreement with Rackspace US, Inc. (San 
Antonio, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total 
estimated amount of $79,999.92. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the agreement for the College’s 
public website hosting services.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The public website hosting service hosts the South Texas 
College public and library websites in a secure off-site location. The maintenance 
agreement provides 24/7 technical support and the ability to keep the websites running 
during events such as hurricanes or routine systems maintenance. The service also 

80



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 26, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

provides redundancy to the College’s public website in the event of a shutdown of 
computing resources at the College.  
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
15) Server Hardware Maintenance and Support Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the server hardware maintenance and support agreement with Dell Marketing, 
LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total 
amount of $147,724.67. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the server hardware 
maintenance and support agreement for the Dell servers. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The Dell hardware maintenance agreement supports and 
maintains the College’s computer servers that include the servers used for the security 
cameras.  The agreement provides twenty-four (24) hour, year-round support. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
16) Support Services Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the support services agreement with Ellucian Company, LP. (Fairfax, VA), a sole 
source vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at 
an estimated total amount of $31,186.00. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the support services advantage 
plus agreement for the Banner applications and existing third-party applications that work 
the Banner system. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The extended support services add another level of service to 
the existing maintenance program the College has from Ellucian.  This extended plan 
provides 24/7 support which covers weekends and after normal business hours Monday 
through Friday.  It provides a faster response time and priority case escalation to any 
Banner related issues that may occur during hours outside of normal business hours. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Applications Development budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
 

17) System Appliances Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the system appliances maintenance agreement with Netsync Network Solutions, 
Inc. (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 

81



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 27, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an 
estimated total amount of $22,437.20. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the hardware maintenance 
agreement for the F5 system appliances. 
 
Justification and Benefit - The F5 system appliances provide high availability, security, 
and performance for critical business applications such as Luminis, JagPride, Outlook 
Web Access, JagParking, and Dual Enrollment.  The agreement covers the maintenance 
and technical support of the appliances and provides twenty-four (24) hour, year-round 
support. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and Networking budget for FY 
2022 – 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
C. Interlocal Agreement 
 
18)  Service Agreement (Interlocal Agreement) 
Approve a service agreement with Hidalgo County - Women, Infants, and Children 
(WIC) Program (Edinburg, TX), through an interlocal agreement, for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at no charge to the College. 
 
Purpose – Counseling and Student Access Services is requesting to enter into an 
agreement to provide nutrition education programs for student, faculty, and staff on a 
monthly basis.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The education programs will include supplemental foods, 
health care referrals, and nutrition education for pregnant, breastfeeding, and postpartum 
women as well as infants and children up to age five (5).  A mobile unit will provide 
monthly on-site services to qualifying STC students, faculty, and staff at the various STC 
campuses. 
 
Recommendation 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the solicitation of proposals, purchases, renewals, and interlocal agreement as listed 
below: 
 

A. Solicitation of Proposals 
1) Campus Dining Services – Food Trucks (Solicit):  solicit a request for proposals 

for campus dining services – food trucks for the Starr County Campus and the 
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence for services as needed; 

2) District Wide Network Equipment Upgrade (Solicit):  solicit a request for 
proposals for the district wide network equipment upgrade using the Higher 
Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) grant, at a total amount of 
$900,000.00; 

82



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 28, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

3)  Purchase of Portable Air Purifiers (Solicit):  solicit a request for proposals for 
the purchase of portable air purifiers using the Higher Education Emergency Relief 
Funds (HEERF) grant, at a total amount of $200,000.00; 

 
B. Purchases and Renewals (B-a. Technology Items) 

4) Banner Application Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the Banner 
application maintenance agreement with Ellucian, Inc. through Texas A&M 
University – Corpus Christi (Corpus Christi, TX), acting by and through the State 
of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) for the Texas Connection 
Consortium (TCC), for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 
31, 2023, at an estimated total amount of $415,774.05; 

5) Communication Software Agreement (Renewal):  renew the communication 
software agreement with Hit Labs, Inc. (Lehi, UT), a sole source vendor, for the 
period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated 
amount of $75,038.91; 

6)  Data Hosting and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the data hosting 
and maintenance agreement with TouchNet Information Systems, Inc. (Atlanta, 
GA), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through 
August 31, 2023, at a total amount of $259,763.00; 

7)  Data Storage Hardware Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the data 
storage hardware maintenance agreement with Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), 
a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for 
the period beginning August 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total estimated 
amount of $34,242.22; 

8)  Email Backup Online License Subscription (Renewal):  renew the email 
backup online license subscription with Software House International (SHI) 
Government Solutions (Austin, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning August 31, 2022 
through August 30, 2023, at an estimated amount of $37,141.01; 

9)  Email Security Software License Agreement (Renewal):  renew the email 
security software license agreement with Software House International (SHI) 
Government Solutions (Austin, TX), The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) 
approved vendor, for the period beginning September 30, 2022 through 
September 29, 2023, at a total estimated amount of $41,260.62; 

10) Enterprise Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreements (Renewal):  
renew the enterprise software licenses and maintenance agreements with 
Software House International (SHI) Government Solutions (Austin, TX), a 
Purchasing Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE), Texas Association of 
School Boards – Buyboard, and The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) 
approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through September 
20, 2023, at an estimated total amount of $93,396.89; 

11)Internet Service Agreement – District Wide (Renewal):  renew the internet 
service agreement – district wide with Charter Communications Operating, 
LLC./dba Spectrum Gulf Coast, through the State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) – TEXAN (Austin, TX), for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated monthly total amount 
of $15,000.00 and estimated annual total amount of $180,000.00; 

83



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 29, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

12) Network Hardware and Software Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew 
the network hardware and software maintenance agreement with Netsync 
Network Solutions, Inc. (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning 
September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total amount of $139,248.59; 

13)Oracle License Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the Oracle license 
maintenance agreement with Oracle America, Inc. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period 
beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total amount of 
$550,248.65; 

14)Public Website Hosting Services Agreement (Renewal):  renew the public 
website hosting services agreement with Rackspace US, Inc. (San Antonio, TX), 
a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for 
the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at a total 
estimated amount of $79,999.92; 

 15)Server Hardware Maintenance and Support Agreement (Renewal):  renew the 
server hardware maintenance and support agreement with Dell Marketing, Inc. 
(Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 
2023, at a total amount of $147,724.67; 

16)Support Services Agreement (Renewal):  renew the support services agreement 
with Ellucian Company, LP. (Fairfax, VA), a sole source vendor, for the period 
beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023, at an estimated total 
amount of $31,186.00; 

17)System Appliances Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the system 
appliances maintenance agreement with Netsync Network Solutions, Inc. 
(Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
approved vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 
2023, at an estimated total amount of $22,437.20. 

 
C. Interlocal Agreement  

18) Service Agreement (Interlocal Agreement):   approve a service agreement with 
Hidalgo County - Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) Program (Edinburg, 
TX), through an interlocal agreement, for the period beginning September 1, 2022 
through August 31, 2023, at no charge to the College. 

 
Recommend Action - The total for all solicitation of proposals, purchases, renewals, and 
interlocal agreement is $3,207,461.73. 
 
  

84



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 30, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the solicitation 
of proposals, purchases, renewals, and interlocal agreement totaling $3,207,461.73 
as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

85



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 31, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
b: Approval of Vendor Registration on the Electronic Bids and 

Proposals System for Receiving Notification of College Solicitations  
Approval of vendor registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals System for receiving 
notification of College Solicitations will be requested at the August 23, 2022 Board of 
Trustees meeting. 
 
Purpose – To allow vendors the option to register on the College’s Electronic Bids and 
Proposal System, Bonfire, to receive notifications of College solicitations.  Vendors will 
be notified via email when solicitations of the services or products they are registered for 
are available. Vendors also receive due date reminders via email from the System. 
 
Justification – The College’s Bonfire Electronic Bids and Proposal System that is currently 
used for the online evaluation of bids and proposals by the evaluation committee and to 
store and manage contracts electronically, may also be used as an option to notify 
registered vendors of College solicitations, such as Request for Proposals (RFPs) or 
Request for Qualifications (RFQs). 
 
Background - On May 10, 2022, the Facilities Committee members instructed 
Administration to discontinue the practice of using vendor information previously gathered 
entirely and solely rely on the legally required public advertisement for issuing bids, 
proposals, and qualifications. 
 
Due to the recent decline in vendor responses to College solicitations, Administration is 
requesting that in addition to the required advertisement, vendors be granted the option 
to register online in the College’s Bonfire system to receive email notifications of the 
solicitations. Once registered in the system, vendors will receive email notifications of 
solicitations related to their selected commodities  
 
The Purchasing Department purchased the Bonfire system in November 2020 to receive 
bids and proposals electronically, conduct committee online evaluations, and maintain 
and manage contracts.  The system is not currently used to receive bids and proposals 
electronically.  
 
The vendors that do not wish to register online, may submit a hard copy of the registration 
information to the Purchasing Department via email, mail, or in person. 
 
The College’s Bonfire Electronic Bids and Proposal System includes an online training 
and vendor help center.  The vendor help center provides a response to any questions 
and a list of frequently asked questions.  The Purchasing Department will also provide a 
monthly vendor training session, which will be held in-person at the Pecan Campus.  This 
training will be recorded and made available on the STC Purchasing Department website. 

86



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 32, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Enclosed Documents - The National Institute of Government Purchasing (NIGP) list of 
commodity codes follows in the packet for Board’s information and review. 
 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services and Becky 
Cavazos, Director of Purchasing will be present at the Committee meeting to address any 
questions by the Committee. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval 
of the vendor registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals System for receiving 
notification of College Solicitations as presented. 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the vendor 
registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals System for receiving notification of 
College Solicitations as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President  

87



N
at

io
na

l I
ns

tit
ut

e 
of

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
(N

IG
P)

 C
om

m
od

ity
 C

od
es

 
P

ro
du

ct
s 

&
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ub

-C
at

eg
or

ie
s

00
5

00
A

B
R

A
S

IV
E

S
01

0
00

A
C

O
U

S
T

IC
A

L 
T

IL
E

, I
N

S
U

LA
T

IN
G

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
01

5
00

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
IN

G
, C

O
P

Y
IN

G
, M

IM
E

O
G

R
A

P
H

, A
N

D
 S

P
IR

IT
 D

U
P

LI
C

A
T

IN
G

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: C

H
E

M
IC

A
LS

, I
N

K
S

, P
A

P
E

R
, E

T
C

.
02

0
00

A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, I
M

P
LE

M
E

N
T

S
, A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 0
22

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

T
S

)
02

2
00

A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 IM

P
LE

M
E

N
T

 P
A

R
T

S
02

0
89

A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, I
M

P
LE

M
E

N
T

S
, A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 0
22

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

T
S

)
02

5
00

A
IR

 C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

O
R

S
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

03
1

00
A

IR
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

IN
G

, H
E

A
T

IN
G

, A
N

D
 V

E
N

T
IL

A
T

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, P
A

R
T

S
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 7
40

 A
LS

O
)

04
5

00
A

P
P

LI
A

N
C

E
S

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, H

O
U

S
E

H
O

LD
 T

Y
P

E
05

0
00

A
R

T
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
06

0
00

A
U

T
O

M
O

T
IV

E
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
IL

E
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

T
S

06
5

00
A

U
T

O
M

O
T

IV
E

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

IL
E

R
 B

O
D

IE
S

, B
O

D
Y

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

, A
N

D
 P

A
R

T
S

07
0

00
A

U
T

O
M

O
T

IV
E

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

R
A

IL
E

R
S

) 
(E

F
F

E
C

T
IV

E
 1

-1
-0

6 
T

H
IS

 C
LA

S
S

 IN
A

C
T

IV
A

T
E

D
, R

E
F

E
R

 T
O

 
C

LA
S

S
E

S
 0

71
, 0

72
 A

N
D

 0
73

)
07

1
00

A
U

T
O

M
O

B
IL

E
S

, S
C

H
O

O
L 

B
U

S
E

S
, S

U
V

S
, A

N
D

 V
A

N
S

 (
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 D

IE
S

E
L,

 G
A

S
O

LI
N

E
, E

LE
C

T
R

IC
, H

Y
B

R
ID

, A
N

D
 A

LL
 O

T
H

E
R

 F
U

E
L 

T
Y

P
E

S
)

07
2

00
T

R
U

C
K

S
 (

In
cl

. D
ie

se
l, 

G
as

ol
in

e,
 E

le
ct

ric
, H

yb
rid

, a
nd

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

F
ue

l U
ni

ts
)

07
3

00
T

R
A

IL
E

R
S

07
5

00
A

U
T

O
M

O
T

IV
E

 S
H

O
P

 A
N

D
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
08

0
00

B
A

D
G

E
S

, A
W

A
R

D
S

, E
M

B
LE

M
S

, N
A

M
E

 T
A

G
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
T

E
S

, J
E

W
E

LR
Y

, E
T

C
.

08
5

00
B

A
G

S
, B

A
G

G
IN

G
, T

IE
S

, A
N

D
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 S

H
E

E
T

IN
G

, E
T

C
.

10
0

00
B

A
R

R
E

LS
, D

R
U

M
S

, K
E

G
S

, A
N

D
 C

O
N

T
A

IN
E

R
S

10
5

00
B

E
A

R
IN

G
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 0
60

 F
O

R
 W

H
E

E
L 

B
E

A
R

IN
G

S
)

11
0

00
B

E
LT

S
 A

N
D

 B
E

LT
IN

G
: A

U
T

O
M

O
T

IV
E

 A
N

D
 IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
12

0
00

B
O

A
T

S
, M

O
T

O
R

S
, A

N
D

 M
A

R
IN

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
13

5
00

B
R

IC
K

S
, C

LA
Y

, R
E

F
R

A
C

T
O

R
Y

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
, S

T
O

N
E

, A
N

D
 T

IL
E

  P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

14
5

00
B

R
U

S
H

E
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 4
85

 F
O

R
 J

A
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
T

Y
P

E
)

15
0

00
B

U
IL

D
E

R
'S

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
15

5
00

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

: F
A

B
R

IC
A

T
E

D
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
F

A
B

R
IC

A
T

E
D

16
5

00
C

A
F

E
T

E
R

IA
 A

N
D

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
17

5
00

C
H

E
M

IC
A

L 
LA

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

19
2

00
C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

S
, D

E
T

E
R

G
E

N
T

S
, S

O
LV

E
N

T
S

, A
N

D
 S

T
R

IP
P

E
R

S
 -

 P
R

E
P

A
C

K
A

G
E

D
19

5
00

C
LO

C
K

S
, W

A
T

C
H

E
S

, T
IM

E
P

IE
C

E
S

, J
E

W
E

LR
Y

 A
N

D
 P

R
E

C
IO

U
S

 S
T

O
N

E
S

20
0

00
C

LO
T

H
IN

G
: A

T
H

LE
T

IC
, C

A
S

U
A

L,
 D

R
E

S
S

, U
N

IF
O

R
M

, W
E

A
T

H
E

R
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

20
1

00
C

LO
T

H
IN

G
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
 (

S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
 8

00
 F

O
R

 S
H

O
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
O

O
T

S
)

20
4

00
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 A

N
D

 P
E

R
IP

H
E

R
A

LS
 F

O
R

 M
IC

R
O

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
20

6
00

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

IP
H

E
R

A
LS

 F
O

R
 M

IN
I A

N
D

 M
A

IN
 F

R
A

M
E

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
20

7
00

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

20
8

00
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 F

O
R

 M
IC

R
O

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
 (

P
R

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

D
)

20
9

00
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 F

O
R

 M
IN

I A
N

D
 M

A
IN

F
R

A
M

E
 C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
S

 (
P

R
E

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
D

)
21

0
00

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 A
N

D
 M

E
T

A
L 

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

, C
U

LV
E

R
T

S
, P

IL
IN

G
S

, S
E

P
T

IC
 T

A
N

K
S

, A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

22
0

00
C

O
N

T
R

O
LL

IN
G

, I
N

D
IC

A
T

IN
G

, M
E

A
S

U
R

IN
G

, M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

, A
N

D
 R

E
C

O
R

D
IN

G
 IN

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
22

5
00

C
O

O
LE

R
S

, D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

T
E

R
 (

W
A

T
E

R
 F

O
U

N
T

A
IN

S
)

25
0

00
D

A
T

A
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 C
A

R
D

S
 A

N
D

 P
A

P
E

R
25

5
00

D
E

C
A

LS
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
M

P
S

N
IG

P
 

C
od

e

P
ag

e 
1

88



28
0

00
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
C

A
B

LE
S

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E

S
 (

N
O

T
 E

LE
C

T
R

O
N

IC
)

28
5

00
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
 (

E
X

C
E

P
T

 C
A

B
LE

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E

)
28

7
00

E
LE

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
S

, P
A

R
T

S
, A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 7
30

 F
O

R
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
 O

R
 A

N
A

LY
Z

IN
G

 T
Y

P
E

)
29

5
00

E
LE

V
A

T
O

R
S

,  
E

S
C

A
LA

T
O

R
S

, A
N

D
 M

O
V

IN
G

 W
A

LK
S

 (
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 T

Y
P

E
)

30
5

00
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
A

L 
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, D

R
A

W
IN

G
 IN

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
31

0
00

E
N

V
E

LO
P

E
S

, P
LA

IN
 (

S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
E

S
 5

25
, 6

15
, 6

40
, 6

55
, 6

65
, A

N
D

 9
66

 F
O

R
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
)

31
2

00
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IV
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
IN

S
ID

E
 A

N
D

 O
U

T
S

ID
E

)
31

5
00

E
P

O
X

Y
 B

A
S

E
D

 F
O

R
M

U
LA

T
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 A

D
H

E
S

IV
E

S
, C

O
A

T
IN

G
S

, A
N

D
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 A

G
E

N
T

S
31

8
00

F
A

R
E

 C
O

LL
E

C
T

IO
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

32
0

00
F

A
S

T
E

N
E

R
S

: B
O

LT
S

, N
U

T
S

, P
IN

S
, R

IV
E

T
S

, S
C

R
E

W
S

, E
T

C
. (

IN
C

L.
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
, S

T
R

A
P

P
IN

G
 A

N
D

 T
Y

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

)
33

0
00

F
E

N
C

IN
G

33
5

00
F

E
R

T
IL

IZ
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
IL

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
E

R
S

34
0

00
F

IR
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
34

5
00

F
IR

S
T

 A
ID

 A
N

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
 (

E
X

C
E

P
T

 N
U

C
LE

A
R

 A
N

D
 W

E
LD

IN
G

)
35

0
00

F
LA

G
S

, F
LA

G
 P

O
LE

S
, B

A
N

N
E

R
S

, A
N

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
36

0
00

F
LO

O
R

 C
O

V
E

R
IN

G
, F

LO
O

R
 C

O
V

E
R

IN
G

 IN
S

T
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L 
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
36

5
00

F
LO

O
R

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

S
, P

A
R

T
S

, A
N

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
39

0
00

F
O

O
D

S
: P

E
R

IS
H

A
B

LE
39

5
00

F
O

R
M

S
, C

O
N

T
IN

U
O

U
S

: C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 P
A

P
E

R
, F

O
R

M
 L

A
B

E
LS

, S
N

A
P

-O
U

T
 F

O
R

M
S

, A
N

D
 F

O
LD

E
R

S
 F

O
R

 F
O

R
M

S
40

0
00

F
O

U
N

D
R

Y
 C

A
S

T
IN

G
S

, E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

40
5

00
F

U
E

L,
 O

IL
, G

R
E

A
S

E
 A

N
D

 L
U

B
R

IC
A

N
T

S
42

0
00

F
U

R
N

IT
U

R
E

: C
A

F
E

T
E

R
IA

, C
H

A
P

E
L,

 D
O

R
M

IT
O

R
Y

, H
O

U
S

E
H

O
LD

, L
IB

R
A

R
Y

, L
O

U
N

G
E

, S
C

H
O

O
L

42
5

00
F

U
R

N
IT

U
R

E
: O

F
F

IC
E

43
0

00
G

A
S

E
S

, C
O

N
T

A
IN

E
R

S
, E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
: L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
, M

E
D

IC
A

L,
 A

N
D

 W
E

LD
IN

G
44

0
00

G
LA

S
S

 A
N

D
 G

LA
Z

IN
G

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
44

5
00

H
A

N
D

 T
O

O
LS

 (
P

O
W

E
R

E
D

 A
N

D
 N

O
N

-P
O

W
E

R
E

D
),

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

45
0

00
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 IT
E

M
S

46
0

00
H

O
S

E
, A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L,

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L,
 A

N
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

47
5

00
H

O
S

P
IT

A
L,

 S
U

R
G

IC
A

L,
 A

N
D

 M
E

D
IC

A
L 

R
E

LA
T

E
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
48

5
00

JA
N

IT
O

R
IA

L 
S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

, G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
LI

N
E

49
3

00
LA

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

,  
A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: B

IO
C

H
E

M
IS

T
R

Y
, C

H
E

M
IS

T
R

Y
, E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L 
S

C
IE

N
C

E
, E

T
C

.
49

5
00

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 A

N
D

 F
IE

LD
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: B

IO
LO

G
Y

, B
O

T
A

N
Y

, G
E

O
LO

G
Y

, M
IC

R
O

B
IO

LO
G

Y
, Z

O
O

LO
G

Y
, E

T
C

.
51

5
00

LA
W

N
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 (
S

E
E

 C
LA

S
S

 0
20

 F
O

R
 A

G
R

IC
U

LT
U

R
A

L 
T

Y
P

E
S

)
54

0
00

LU
M

B
E

R
, S

ID
IN

G
,  

A
N

D
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
54

5
00

M
A

C
H

IN
E

R
Y

 A
N

D
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
, I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

55
0

00
M

A
R

K
E

R
S

, P
LA

Q
U

E
S

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

D
E

V
IC

E
S

56
0

00
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L 

H
A

N
D

LI
N

G
, C

O
N

V
E

Y
O

R
S

, S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

57
0

00
M

E
T

A
LS

: B
A

R
S

, P
LA

T
E

S
, R

O
D

S
, S

H
E

E
T

S
, S

T
R

IP
S

, S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

A
L 

S
H

A
P

E
S

, T
U

B
IN

G
, A

N
D

 F
A

B
R

IC
A

T
E

D
 IT

E
M

S
57

8
00

M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
 (

N
O

T
 O

T
H

E
R

W
IS

E
 C

LA
S

S
IF

IE
D

)
59

5
00

N
U

R
S

E
R

Y
 (

P
LA

N
T

S
) 

S
T

O
C

K
, E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
60

0
00

O
F

F
IC

E
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
S

, E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
N

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
60

5
00

O
F

F
IC

E
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

A
ID

S
, S

M
A

LL
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
S

, A
N

D
 A

P
P

A
R

A
T

U
S

E
S

61
0

00
O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: C

A
R

B
O

N
 P

A
P

E
R

 A
N

D
 R

IB
B

O
N

S
, A

LL
 T

Y
P

E
S

61
5

00
O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
, G

E
N

E
R

A
L

62
0

00
O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
: E

R
A

S
E

R
S

, I
N

K
S

, L
E

A
D

S
, P

E
N

S
, P

E
N

C
IL

S
, E

T
C

.
62

5
00

O
P

T
IC

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

, A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

63
0

00
P

A
IN

T
, P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IV
E

 C
O

A
T

IN
G

S
, V

A
R

N
IS

H
, W

A
LL

P
A

P
E

R
, A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

63
5

00
P

A
IN

T
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

64
0

00
P

A
P

E
R

 A
N

D
 P

LA
S

T
IC

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

, D
IS

P
O

S
A

B
LE

P
ag

e 
2

89



64
5

00
P

A
P

E
R

 (
F

O
R

 O
F

F
IC

E
 A

N
D

 P
R

IN
T

 S
H

O
P

 U
S

E
)

65
0

00
P

A
R

K
, P

LA
Y

G
R

O
U

N
D

, R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
A

R
E

A
 A

N
D

 S
W

IM
M

IN
G

 P
O

O
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

65
5

00
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, F
IL

M
,  

A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

 (
N

O
T

 G
R

A
P

H
IC

 A
R

T
S

, M
IC

R
O

F
IL

M
, A

N
D

 X
-R

A
Y

)
65

8
00

P
IP

E
, T

U
B

IN
G

, A
N

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
 (

N
O

T
 F

IT
T

IN
G

S
)

65
9

00
P

IP
E

 A
N

D
 T

U
B

IN
G

 F
IT

T
IN

G
S

66
5

00
P

LA
S

T
IC

S
, R

E
S

IN
S

, F
IB

E
R

G
LA

S
S

: C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, F

O
R

M
IN

G
, L

A
M

IN
A

T
IN

G
, A

N
D

 M
O

LD
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
67

0
00

P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, F
IX

T
U

R
E

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
67

5
00

P
O

IS
O

N
S

: A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

A
N

D
 IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
68

0
00

P
O

LI
C

E
 A

N
D

 P
R

IS
O

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
69

0
00

P
O

W
E

R
 G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

, A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

69
1

00
P

O
W

E
R

 T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L,
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L,

 A
IR

 A
N

D
 H

Y
D

R
A

U
LI

C
)

70
0

00
P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 P

LA
N

T
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
 (

E
X

C
E

P
T

 P
A

P
E

R
)

71
5

00
P

U
B

LI
C

A
T

IO
N

S
,  

A
U

D
IO

V
IS

U
A

L 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

, B
O

O
K

S
, T

E
X

T
B

O
O

K
S

  (
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

 O
N

LY
)

72
0

00
P

U
M

P
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

72
5

00
R

A
D

IO
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

, T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

, A
N

D
 T

E
LE

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
, A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
 (

S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
 8

40
 F

O
R

 T
E

LE
V

IS
IO

N
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

)
73

0
00

R
A

D
IO

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 T
E

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

 T
E

S
T

IN
G

, M
E

A
S

U
R

IN
G

, A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
Z

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

73
5

00
R

A
G

S
, S

H
O

P
 T

O
W

E
LS

, A
N

D
 W

IP
IN

G
 C

LO
T

H
S

74
0

00
R

E
F

R
IG

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
74

5
00

R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

 (
A

S
P

H
A

LT
IC

)
75

0
00

R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

 (
N

O
T

 A
S

P
H

A
LT

IC
)

75
5

00
R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
S

P
H

A
LT

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 H

A
N

D
LI

N
G

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

75
6

00
S

P
R

E
A

D
E

R
S

76
0

00
R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

: E
A

R
T

H
 H

A
N

D
LI

N
G

, G
R

A
D

IN
G

, M
O

V
IN

G
, P

A
C

K
IN

G
, E

T
C

.
76

5
00

R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 (

E
X

C
E

P
T

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 IN
 C

LA
S

S
E

S
 7

55
 A

N
D

 7
60

)
77

0
00

R
O

O
F

IN
G

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
77

5
00

S
A

LT
 (

S
O

D
IU

M
 C

H
LO

R
ID

E
) 

(S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
 3

93
 F

O
R

 T
A

B
LE

 S
A

LT
)

78
0

00
S

C
A

LE
S

 A
N

D
 W

E
IG

H
IN

G
 A

P
P

A
R

A
T

U
S

 (
S

E
E

 1
75

-0
8 

F
O

R
 L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
S

)
79

0
00

S
E

E
D

, S
O

D
, S

O
IL

, A
N

D
 IN

O
C

U
LA

N
T

S
80

0
00

S
H

O
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
O

O
T

S
80

1
00

S
IG

N
S

, S
IG

N
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

, S
IG

N
 M

A
K

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

, A
N

D
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

80
3

00
S

O
U

N
D

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
, C

O
M

P
O

N
E

N
T

S
, A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

: G
R

O
U

P
 IN

T
E

R
C

O
M

, M
U

S
IC

, P
U

B
LI

C
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

, E
T

C
.

81
0

00
S

P
R

A
Y

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
E

X
C

E
P

T
 H

O
U

S
E

H
O

LD
, N

U
R

S
E

R
Y

 P
LA

N
T

, A
N

D
 P

A
IN

T
)

81
5

00
S

T
E

A
M

 A
N

D
 H

O
T

 W
A

T
E

R
 F

IT
T

IN
G

S
, A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
, A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
82

0
00

S
T

E
A

M
 A

N
D

 H
O

T
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
O

IL
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 S

T
E

A
M

 H
E

A
T

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

83
0

00
T

A
N

K
S

 (
M

E
T

A
L,

 P
LA

S
T

IC
, W

O
O

D
, A

N
D

 S
Y

N
T

H
E

T
IC

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

LS
):

 M
O

B
IL

E
, P

O
R

T
A

B
LE

, S
T

A
T

IO
N

A
R

Y
, A

N
D

 U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 T

Y
P

E
S

83
2

00
T

A
P

E
 (

N
O

T
 D

A
T

A
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

, M
E

A
S

U
R

IN
G

, O
P

T
IC

A
L,

 S
E

W
IN

G
, S

O
U

N
D

, O
R

 V
ID

E
O

)
84

0
00

T
E

LE
V

IS
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

IE
S

84
5

00
T

E
S

T
IN

G
 A

P
P

A
R

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 IN

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 (

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 E
LE

C
T

R
IC

A
L 

O
R

 E
LE

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
S

)
85

0
00

T
E

X
T

IL
E

S
, F

IB
E

R
S

, H
O

U
S

E
H

O
LD

 L
IN

E
N

S
, A

N
D

 P
IE

C
E

 G
O

O
D

S
86

0
00

T
IC

K
E

T
S

, C
O

U
P

O
N

 B
O

O
K

S
, S

A
LE

S
 B

O
O

K
S

, S
T

R
IP

 B
O

O
K

S
, E

T
C

.
86

3
00

T
IR

E
S

 A
N

D
 T

U
B

E
S

 (
IN

C
L.

 R
E

C
A

P
P

E
D

/R
E

T
R

E
A

D
E

D
 T

IR
E

S
)

86
5

00
T

W
IN

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

R
IN

G
88

0
00

V
IS

U
A

L 
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
 (

E
X

C
E

P
T

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

IO
N

 L
A

M
P

S
 -

S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
 2

85
)

88
5

00
W

A
T

E
R

 A
N

D
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

IN
G

 C
H

E
M

IC
LA

S

89
0

00
W

A
T

E
R

 S
U

P
P

LY
, G

R
O

U
N

D
W

A
T

E
R

, S
E

W
A

G
E

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
, A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
N

O
T

 F
O

R
 A

IR
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

IN
G

, S
T

E
A

M
 B

O
IL

E
R

, O
R

 L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 
R

E
A

G
E

N
T

 W
A

T
E

R
)

89
5

00
W

E
LD

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

90
6

00
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
A

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L

P
ag

e 
3

90



90
7

00
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
A

L 
A

N
D

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, N
O

N
-P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

90
9

00
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, N

E
W

  (
IN

C
L.

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
)

91
0

00
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
, I

N
S

T
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
A

IR
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

91
2

00
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

(I
N

C
L.

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
)

91
3

00
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, H

E
A

V
Y

  (
IN

C
L.

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
)

91
4

00
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, T

R
A

D
E

 (
N

E
W

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
)

91
5

00
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 M
E

D
IA

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
91

8
00

C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
92

0
00

D
A

T
A

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
, C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
, P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
IN

G
, A

N
D

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
92

5
00

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
92

6
00

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L 

A
N

D
 E

C
O

LO
G

IC
A

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

92
8

00
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
A

IR
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 F
O

R
 A

U
T

O
M

O
B

IL
E

S
, T

R
U

C
K

S
, T

R
A

IL
E

R
S

, T
R

A
N

S
IT

 B
U

S
E

S
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S

92
9

00
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
A

IR
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 F
O

R
  A

G
R

IC
U

LT
U

R
A

L,
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

,  
H

E
A

V
Y

 IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L,

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L 
H

A
N

D
LI

N
G

, A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
93

4
00

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 L
A

U
N

D
R

Y
, L

A
W

N
, P

A
IN

T
IN

G
, P

LU
M

B
IN

G
, A

N
D

 S
P

R
A

Y
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
93

6
00

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
93

9
00

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
, O

F
F

IC
E

, P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
, A

N
D

 R
A

D
IO

/T
E

LE
V

IS
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
94

1
00

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

, R
E

P
A

IR
, A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

O
R

 P
O

W
E

R
 G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

N
S

M
IS

S
IO

N
 E

Q
U

IP
.

94
6

00
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
94

8
00

H
E

A
LT

H
 R

E
LA

T
E

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 (
F

O
R

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 S
E

E
 C

LA
S

S
 9

52
)

95
2

00
H

U
M

A
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
95

3
00

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 (
 A

LL
 T

Y
P

E
S

)
95

4
00

LA
U

N
D

R
Y

 A
N

D
 D

R
Y

 C
LE

A
N

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
95

6
00

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 (

IN
C

L.
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
)

95
8

00
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

95
9

00
M

A
R

IN
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
; M

A
R

IN
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
P

A
IR

96
1

00
M

IS
C

E
LL

A
N

E
O

U
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, N

O
. 1

 (
N

O
T

 O
T

H
E

R
W

IS
E

 C
LA

S
S

IF
IE

D
)

96
2

00
M

IS
C

E
LL

A
N

E
O

U
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, N

O
. 2

  (
N

O
T

 O
T

H
E

R
W

IS
E

 C
LA

S
S

IF
IE

D
)

96
3

00
N

O
N

-B
ID

D
A

B
LE

 M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 IT

E
M

S
96

5
00

P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

S
: E

T
C

H
IN

G
, P

H
O

T
O

E
N

G
R

A
V

IN
G

, A
N

D
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 M

A
T

S
, N

E
G

A
T

IV
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
LA

T
E

S
96

6
00

P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

Y
P

E
S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

96
8

00
P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S
 A

N
D

 R
E

LA
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
97

1
00

R
E

A
L 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 R
E

N
T

A
L 

O
R

 L
E

A
S

E
97

5
00

R
E

N
T

A
L 

O
R

 L
E

A
S

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
F

 A
G

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L,

 A
IR

C
R

A
F

T
, A

IR
P

O
R

T
, A

U
T

O
M

O
T

IV
E

, M
A

R
IN

E
,  

A
N

D
 H

E
A

V
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

97
7

00
R

E
N

T
A

L 
O

F
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 T
O

O
LS

97
9

00
R

E
N

T
A

L 
O

R
 L

E
A

S
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 O

F
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

, H
O

S
P

IT
A

L,
 L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
, P

R
E

C
IS

IO
N

 IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
S

, R
E

F
R

IG
E

R
A

T
IO

N
, S

C
A

LE
S

, A
N

D
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
98

1
00

R
E

N
T

A
L 

O
R

 L
E

A
S

E
 O

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 (
H

V
A

C
, A

T
H

LE
T

IC
, F

IR
E

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, E

T
C

.)
98

3
00

R
E

N
T

A
L 

O
R

 L
E

A
S

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
F

 C
LO

T
H

IN
G

, J
A

N
IT

O
R

IA
L,

 L
A

U
N

D
R

Y
, L

A
W

N
, P

A
IN

T
IN

G
, S

P
R

A
Y

IN
G

, L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 A
N

D
 T

E
X

T
IL

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
98

4
00

R
E

N
T

A
L 

O
R

 L
E

A
S

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
, D

A
T

A
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

, A
N

D
 W

O
R

D
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

98
5

00
R

E
N

T
A

L 
O

R
 L

E
A

S
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 O

F
 O

F
F

IC
E

, P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
, P

R
IN

T
IN

G
, R

A
D

IO
/T

E
LE

V
IS

IO
N

/T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

98
8

00
R

O
A

D
S

ID
E

, G
R

O
U

N
D

S
, R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

A
L 

A
N

D
 P

A
R

K
 A

R
E

A
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

98
9

00
S

A
M

P
LI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

A
M

P
LE

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 (

F
O

R
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
)

99
0

00
S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

, F
IR

E
, S

A
F

E
T

Y
, A

N
D

 E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 (
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 D

IS
A

S
T

E
R

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

)
99

2
00

T
E

S
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 -

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
99

8
00

S
A

LE
S

, T
A

B
U

LA
T

IN
G

 C
A

R
D

S
, U

S
E

D

P
ag

e 
4

91



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 33, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
c. Acceptance of Internal Auditor’s Annual Statement of 

Organizational Independence 
Mr. Khalil Abdullah, Internal Auditor, has confirmed the organizational independence of 
the internal audit activity to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee as 
required by applicable IIA Standard 1110 as listed below.  
 
The audit organization and the individual auditor should be free in both fact and 
appearance from personal, external, and organizational impairments to independence.  
Internal auditors are independent when they can carry out their work freely and objectively.  
Independence permits internal auditors to render the impartial and unbiased judgments 
essential to the proper conduct of audits.  It is achieved through organizational structure 
and objectivity.  
 
South Texas College’s Office of Internal Audits expects our auditors to comply with 
professional standards and internal policies and procedures; maintain independence of 
mental attitude in the conduct of all assigned work; to be objective, fair, and impartial; and 
to conduct themselves so that auditees and third parties will see our office in this way. 
Each staff member must promptly notify the Chief Audit Executive (CAE), in writing, 
concerning any situation that would impair the staff member’s or the office’s independence 
on an audit, or that might lead others to question it.  The Chief Audit Executive (CAE) 
describes the person responsible for effectively managing the internal audit activity.  At 
South Texas College, those responsibilities reside with the Internal Auditor.  
 
IIA Standard 1110 Organizational Independence – The CAE must report to a level within 
the organization that allows the internal audit activity to fulfill its responsibilities. The CAE 
must confirm to the board, at least annually, the organizational independence of the 
internal audit activity.  
 
IIA Standard 1100 Independence and Objectivity – The internal audit activity must be 
independent, and internal auditors must be objective in performing their work.  
 
Interpretation of Standard 1100 – “Independence is the freedom from conditions that 
threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to carry out internal audit responsibilities in 
an unbiased manner. To achieve the degree of independence necessary to effectively 
carry out the responsibilities of the internal audit activity, the chief audit executive has 
direct and unrestricted access to senior management and the board. This can be achieved 
through a dual-reporting relationship. Threats to independence must be managed at the 
individual auditor, engagement, functional, and organizational levels. Objectivity is an 
unbiased mental attitude that allows internal auditors to perform engagements in such a 
manner that they believe in their work product and that no quality compromises are made. 
Objectivity requires that internal auditors do not subordinate their judgment on audit 
matters to others. Threats to objectivity must be managed at the individual auditor, 
engagement, functional, and organizational levels.”  
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board acceptance 
of the Internal Auditor’s Statement of Organizational Independence as presented. 

92



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 34, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College accepts the Internal Auditor’s Statement 
of Organizational Independence as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

93



94



Office of Internal Audits 
3201 W. Pecan Blvd. 
McAllen, TX 78501 
(956) 872-6709 
kabdullah@southtexascollege.edu         
 

 

 

 

Institute of Internal Auditor’s (IIA)  

Mission of Internal Audit: 
To enhance and protect organizational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 
advice, and insight.  
 
Definition of Internal Auditing: 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organization’s operations.  It helps an organization accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.  
 
 
Code of Ethics: 
The purpose of The Institute’s Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the profession of 
internal auditing.   

 
Principles 

 

Internal auditors are expected to apply and uphold the following principles: 
 

1. Integrity – The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis 
for reliance on their judgment. 

 
2. Objectivity – Internal auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in 

gathering, evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined.  Internal auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant 
circumstances and are not unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in 
forming judgments.  

 
3. Confidentiality – Internal auditors respect the value and ownership of information they 

receive and do not disclose information without appropriate authority unless there is a 
legal or professional obligation to do so.  

 
4. Competency – Internal auditors apply the knowledge, skills, and experience needed in the 

performance of internal audit services. 
 

95



Office of Internal Audits 
3201 W. Pecan Blvd. 
McAllen, TX 78501 
(956) 872-6709
kabdullah@southtexascollege.edu

Rules of Conduct 

Integrity: 
Internal auditors… 
1.1 Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence, and responsibility. 
1.2 Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the profession. 
1.3 Shall not knowingly be a part to any illegal activity or engage in acts that are 

discreditable to the profession of internal auditing or to the organization. 
1.4 Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organization 

Objectivity: 
Internal auditors… 
2.1 Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be presumed to 

impair their unbiased assessment.  This participation includes those activities or 
relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the organization. 

2.2 Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their professional 
judgment. 

2.3 Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort the 
reporting of activities under review.  

Confidentiality: 
Internal auditors… 
3.1 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course of their 

duties. 
3.2 Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be contrary 

to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organization. 

Competency: 
Internal auditors… 
4.1 Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary knowledge, skills, 

and experience. 
4.2 Shall perform internal audit services in accordance with the International Standards for 

the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 
4.3 Shall continually improve their proficiency and the effectiveness and quality of their 

services.  

96



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 35, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

Consent Agenda: 
d. Approval of Internal Audit Charter

Approval of the Internal Audit Charter for the period of September 1, 2022 through August 
31, 2023 is requested.

Purpose – An Internal Audit Charter is required by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) 
Standards.  Specifically, IIA Attribute Standard 1000 states that “The purpose, authority, 
and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be formally defined in an Internal Audit 
Charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the 
Standards. The chief audit executive must periodically review the Internal Audit Charter 
and present it to senior management and the board for approval.”

Justification – Approval of the Internal Audit Charter aligns South Texas College’s internal 
audit function with the IIA Standards as prescribed in Manual of Policy 5460. 

Background – The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the internal 
audit activity’s purpose, authority, and responsibility.  The charter establishes the internal 
audit activity’s position within the organization, including the nature of the internal auditor’s 
functional reporting relationship with the board; authorizes access to records, personnel, 
and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the 
scope of internal audit activities.  Final approval of the Internal Audit Charter resides with 
the board.  

Enclosed Documents – The Internal Audit Charter follows in the packet for the Board’s 
review and discussion. 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President, Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, and Khalil Abdullah, Internal Auditor, attended the August 9, 2022 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee meeting to address any questions by 
the committee. 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the Internal Audit Charter for the period of September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 
as presented. 

97



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 36, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the Internal Audit 
Charter for the period of September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President  

98



 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Internal Auditing is an independent and objective assurance and consulting activity that is guided 

by a philosophy of adding value to improve the operations of the College.  It assists the College in 

accomplishing its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and 

improve the effectiveness of the organization’s risk management, governance, and internal 

controls. 
 

ROLE 

The internal audit function is established by the College Board of Trustees, Finance, Audit, and 

Human Resources Committee (hereafter referred to as the Board).  The internal audit function’s 

responsibilities are defined by the Board as part of their oversight role.   
 

AUTHORITY  

The internal audit function, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records 

and information, is authorized full, free, and unrestricted access to any and all of the College’s 

property, records (manual or electronic), and personnel pertinent to carrying out authorized 

engagements.  All employees are requested to assist the internal audit function in fulfilling its roles 

and responsibilities.  The internal audit function will also have free and unrestricted access to 

executive management and the Board.  
 

INDEPENDENCE & OBJECTIVITY 

The internal audit function will remain free from interference by any element in the organization, 

including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, or report content to 

permit maintenance of a necessary independent and objective mental attitude. Internal auditors 

will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the activities audited.  

Accordingly, they will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install systems, 

prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair the internal auditor’s independence 

or objectivity. Internal auditors are not authorized to perform any operational duties, initiate or 

approve accounting transactions external to the internal audit function, or direct the activities of 

any employee not employed by the internal audit function, except to the extent such employees 

have been appropriately assigned to auditing teams or otherwise assist the internal audit function. 

Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, 

and communicating information about the activity or process being examined.  Internal auditors 

must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced 

by their own interests or by others in forming judgments.  

 

The Internal Auditor will confirm to the Board, at least annually, the organizational independence 

of the internal audit activity.  

 
 

99



 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

At least annually, the Internal Auditor will submit to senior management and the Board an internal 

audit plan for review and approval.  The internal audit plan will consist of a work schedule as well 

as budget and resource requirements for the next fiscal year.  The Internal Auditor will 

communicate the impact of resource limitations and significant interim changes to senior 

management and the Board. The internal audit plan will be developed based on a prioritization of 

the audit universe using a risk-based methodology, including input of senior management and the 

Board.  The Internal Auditor will review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to changes 

in the College’s risks, operations, programs, systems, and internal controls.  Any significant 

deviation from the approved internal audit plan will be communicated to senior management and 

the Board.    

 

ORGANIZATION 

The Internal Auditor will report functionally to the President and the Board and administratively 

(i.e. day to day operations) to the Vice President of Finance and Administrative Services.   

 

The Board will 

• Approve the internal audit charter; 

• Approve the risk-based annual audit plan; 

• Approve decisions regarding the appointment and removal of the Internal Auditor; 

• Approve the remuneration of the Internal Auditor;  

• Complete an annual performance appraisal of the Internal Auditor; 

• Approve the internal audit budget and resource plan; 

• Receive communications from the Internal Auditor on the internal audit activity’s 

performance relative to its plan and other matters; and 

• Make appropriate inquiries of management and the Internal Auditor to determine whether 

there are inappropriate scope or resource limitations. 

 

The Internal Auditor will communicate and interact directly with the Board, including in executive 

sessions and between Board meetings as appropriate.  

 

SCOPE OF ACTIVIES 

Assurance Services are objective examinations of evidence for the purpose of providing an 

independent assessment.  The scope of work for assurance services is to determine whether the 

College’s risk management, governance, and control processes as designed and represented by 

management, is adequate and functioning in a manner to help ensure: 

 

• Risks are appropriately identified and managed; 

• Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable, and 

timely; 

• Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standard, procedures, and applicable 

laws and regulations; 

100



 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

• Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and adequately protected; 

• Established objectives and goals are met and whether operations or activities are being 

conducted as planned; 

• Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the institution’s control process.  

 

Consulting Services are advisory and include other service activities such as counsel, advice, 

facilitation, training, and participation on standing or temporary management committees or 

project teams. The objective of consulting services is to add value in the development or 

modification of organization processes, procedures, and controls to minimize risk and achieve 

department objectives.  Accepted consulting engagements will be included in the audit plan.  

 

STANDARDS OF AUDIT PRACTICE 

The internal audit function will govern itself by adherence to The Institute of Internal Auditors’ 

mandatory guidance including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the 

International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards).  This 

mandatory guidance constitutes principles of the fundamental requirements for the professional 

practice of internal auditing and for evaluating the effectiveness of the internal audit activity’s 

performance.  The Institute of Internal Auditors’ Practice Advisories, Practice Guides, and Position 

Papers will also be adhered to as applicable to guide operations.  In addition, the internal audit 

activity will adhere to the College’s relevant policies and procedures and the internal audit 

activity’s audit manual.  

 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Internal Auditor has a responsibility to: 

• Develop a flexible, annual work plan using an appropriate risk-based methodology, 

including any risks or control concerns identified by management, and submit that plan to 

the President, and the Board of Trustees’ Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 

Committee for review and approval as well as periodic updates; 

• Implement the annual work plan, as approved by the Finance, Audit, and Human 

Resources Committee; 

• Issue periodic reports to the President and the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 

Committee summarizing results of audit activities, annual work plans, sufficiency of 

office resources, and emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing;  

• Review systems to verify compliance with established policy, procedures, and applicable 

regulations; 

• Review compliance with guidelines for ethical professional conduct. 

• Maintain a follow-up process to monitor management actions on reported engagement 

observations and whether recommendations have been effectively implemented; 

• Identify indicators of fraud and facilitate the investigation of suspected fraudulent 

activities within the organization; 

• Act as liaison between the College and external auditors, including the review of their 

findings and the follow-up on necessary corrective action; 

101



 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont.) 

• Identify necessary training to improve the knowledge, skills, and competencies necessary 

for the internal auditors to have sufficient proficiency for auditing with the organization 

and maintaining professional certifications; 

• Obtain competent advice and assistance necessary for the engagement when needed or 

decline the engagement; 

• Ensure that an external review of the internal audit function in accordance with the 

Standards is conducted at least once every five years.  

• Evaluate specific operations at the request of the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 

Committee or the President, as appropriate.  

 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The internal audit function will maintain a quality assurance and improvement program that covers 

all aspects of the internal audit activity.  The program will include an evaluation of the internal 

audit function’s conformance with the Definition of Internal Auditing and the IIA Standards and 

an evaluation of whether internal auditors apply the Code of Ethics.  The program also assesses 

the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit function and identifies opportunities for 

improvement.  The Internal Auditor will communicate to senior management and the Board on the 

internal audit activity’s quality assurance and improvement program, including results of ongoing 

internal assessments and external assessments conducted at least every five (5) years.  

 

The results of internal audit reviews as well as a report on Internal Audit’s activities shall be 

presented to the President, and the Board of Trustees. The report shall include:  

 

1) Internal audit finding(s); 

2) Internal audit recommendation(s); 

3) Management response(s); 

4) Date of implementation of audit recommendation(s). 

 

The Internal Auditor verifies corrective action has been taken by management and reports on the 

corrective action to the Board of Trustees’ Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102



 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

_____________________________________     ____________ 

Khalil M. Abdullah         Date 

Internal Auditor 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________     ____________ 

Maria G. Elizondo         Date 

Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services  

 

 

 

 

______________________________________     ____________ 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis         Date 

President 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________     ____________ 

Rene Guajardo                         Date 

Chair, Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________     ____________ 

Rose Benavidez                 Date 

Chair, Board of Trustees 

 

103



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 37, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
e. Approval of Proposed Projects for Internal Auditor for FY 2022 – 

2023 
Approval of proposed projects for the Internal Auditor for FY 2022 - 2023 is requested. 

Purpose – Staff is recommending projects for the Board’s consideration for the Internal 
Auditor’s review for Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023.  The projects listed below are proposed as 
the assignments for the Internal Auditor. 

• FY 2022 - 2023 (Scheduled) 
 
1. Fraud Survey 

2. Financial Aid – Federal Awards 

3. Faculty Overloads & Stipends 

4. Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery 

5. Title IX 

6. HR Processes – Employee Hiring and Staffing 

7. Emergency Medical Technology (EMT) Program 

8. Surprise Cash Counts 

9. Purchasing – Proposal Evaluation Criteria 

10. Quality Assurance Review – External QAR 

 
Enclosed Documents - The list of Internal Audits conducted for FY 2012 through FY 2022 
follows in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President, Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, and Khalil Abdullah, Internal Auditor, attended the August 9, 2022 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee meeting to address any questions by 
the committee. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the proposed projects for the Internal Auditor for FY 2022 - 2023 as presented. 
 
  

104



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 38, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
projects for the Internal Auditor for FY 2022 - 2023 as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

  

105



A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
F

Y
 2

0
1
3

F
Y

 2
0
1
4

F
Y

 2
0
1
5

F
Y

 2
0
1
6

F
Y

 2
0
1
7

F
Y

 2
0
1
8

F
Y

 2
0
1
9

F
Y

 2
0
2
0

F
Y

 2
0
2
1

F
Y

 2
0
2
2

F
Y

 2
0
2
3

1
F

ra
u

d
 S

u
rv

e
y

1
0

/1
8

/1
2

1
1

/0
8

/1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

m
p

le
te

1
2

/0
7

/1
6

1
0

/1
8

/1
7

1
0

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

/0
8

/1
9

1
0

/1
2

/2
0

1
0

/0
6

/2
1

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

2
F

ra
u

d
 H

o
tl
in

e
 C

a
lls

/I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s

1
0

/2
9

/1
3

3

C
a

s
h

-C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

s

-B
a

n
k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n

-C
h

e
c
k
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
o

s
it
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n

4
C

a
s
h

-B
a

n
k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n

5
S

u
rp

ri
s
e

 C
a

s
h

 C
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 C
a

s
h

 H
a

n
d

lin
g

 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
T

u
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 F
e

e
s
 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
1

1
/0

4
/1

6
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

6
F

o
o

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

C
a

s
h

 H
a

n
d

lin
g

 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

1
1

/0
4

/1
6

7

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

R
e

c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
/ 

T
h

ir
d

 P
a

rt
y

-B
ill

in
g

-C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s

-R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n

8

S
c
h

o
la

rs
h

ip
 F

u
n

d
s

-V
a

lle
y
 S

c
h

o
la

rs

-P
le

d
g

e
s

-A
w

a
rd

s

-O
th

e
r 

S
c
h

o
la

rs
h

ip
s

0
8

/2
2

/1
3

9
G

ra
n

ts
- 

T
it
le

 V

1
0

G
ra

n
ts

- 
W

ir
e

d

1
1

G
ra

n
ts

 -
 F

e
d

e
ra

l 
W

o
rk

-s
tu

d
y
, 

F
e

d
e

ra
l 
P

e
ll 

G
ra

n
t,

 C
a

rl
 P

e
rk

in
s
, 

a
n

d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
A

c
t

1
2

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 T

a
x
e

s
 -

R
e

c
. 

&
 R

o
llb

a
c
k
 T

a
x
e

s
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

1
3

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 T

a
x
e

s
 -

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

f 

H
id

a
lg

o
 a

n
d

 S
ta

rr
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
a

x
 A

s
s
e

s
s
o

r-

C
o

lle
c
to

r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

0
6

/2
0

/1
7

1
4

A
P

 -
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 /

 P
ro

m
p

t 
P

m
t.

 A
c
t

1
5

A
P

 -
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
C

a
rd

 U
s
e

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 I
n

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

0
1

/2
9

/1
9

1
6

F
u

e
l 
C

a
rd

 U
s
e

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 I
n

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

1
0

/2
3

/1
8

1
7

T
ra

v
e

l
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

1
8

M
ile

a
g

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

0
2

/1
7

/1
7

1
9

P
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

0
7

/1
2

/2
2

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

2
0

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

-S
o

lic
it
a

ti
o

n
/R

e
n

e
w

a
l 
P

ro
c
e

s
s

-R
e

c
o

rd
 k

e
e

p
in

g

2
1

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l A
id

 -
 S

ta
te

 A
w

a
rd

s
 

0
5

/0
7

/1
3

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
1

/0
7

/2
0

2
2

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l A
id

 -
 F

e
d

e
ra

l A
w

a
rd

s
 

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

S
o

u
th

 T
e
x
a
s
 C

o
ll
e
g

e

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

F
Y

 2
0
1
3
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 F

Y
 2

0
2
3

P
ag

e 
1 

o
f 

3 
--

 8
/3

/2
02

2
  -

- 
vp

fa
s

106



A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
F

Y
 2

0
1
3

F
Y

 2
0
1
4

F
Y

 2
0
1
5

F
Y

 2
0
1
6

F
Y

 2
0
1
7

F
Y

 2
0
1
8

F
Y

 2
0
1
9

F
Y

 2
0
2
0

F
Y

 2
0
2
1

F
Y

 2
0
2
2

F
Y

 2
0
2
3

S
o

u
th

 T
e
x
a
s
 C

o
ll
e
g

e

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

F
Y

 2
0
1
3
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 F

Y
 2

0
2
3

2
3

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts

-C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

-C
o

lla
te

ra
l 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n

-T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

o
r 

D
e

b
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e

-S
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 M

a
tu

ri
ti
e

s

2
4

D
e

b
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e

-B
o

n
d

 P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

-C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 D

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

-A
rb

it
ra

g
e

-B
o

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s

2
5

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
a

y
ro

ll 

-C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 &
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls

2
6

H
R

 -
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
- 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 V

e
ri

fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
rm

 I
-9

 (
U

.S
. 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 I
m

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
)

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

0
2

/1
7

/1
7

2
7

H
R

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 -

 F
a

c
u

lt
y
 C

re
d

e
n

ti
a

ls
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
6

/1
0

/2
2

2
8

H
R

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 -

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 H

ir
in

g
 &

 

S
ta

ff
in

g
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

2
9

T
im

e
C

lo
c
k
 P

lu
s
 [

T
im

e
 K

e
e

p
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

]

-D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
T

im
e

fo
rc

e
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 I
n

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

1
0

/0
4

/1
8

3
0

T
im

e
C

lo
c
k
 P

lu
s
 [

T
im

e
 K

e
e

p
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

]

-I
n

te
rn

a
l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

3
1

F
ix

e
d

 A
s
s
e

ts
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
- 

N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
1

1
/0

8
/1

7

3
2

C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

3
3

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

- 

W
o

rk
o

rd
e

rs
 a

n
d

 P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 O
rd

e
rs

0
7

/1
8

/1
3

3
4

C
u

s
to

d
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
- 

W
o

rk
 O

rd
e

rs
, 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 O
rd

e
rs

 a
n

d
 I
n

v
e

n
to

ry

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

0
6

/0
6

/1
9

3
5

E
n

ro
llm

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 (

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
)

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 I
n

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

0
7

/2
6

/1
8

3
6

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 &

 W
e

lln
e

s
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

1
2

/0
1

/1
7

3
7

M
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 o

f 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 [

M
O

U
]

-E
a

rl
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

ls

-D
u

a
l 
C

re
d

it

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
1

/1
1

/2
1

3
8

B
lu

e
p

ri
n

t 
E

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

E
a

rl
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

ls

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

3
9

S
c
ie

n
c
e

 L
a

b
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
6

/1
0

/2
2

4
0

R
e

d
 F

la
g

 R
u

le
s

4
1

IT
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

0
9

/0
5

/1
3

4
2

IT
 -

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 /

 D
is

a
s
te

r 

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

4
3

T
e

x
a

s
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 C
o

d
e

 S
e

c
. 

2
0

2

4
4

B
a

n
n

e
r 

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 

A
c
c
e

s
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
1

/1
1

/2
1

4
5

In
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
a

l 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 I
n

v
e

n
to

ry
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

1
1

/0
6

/1
4

4
6

C
o

p
ie

rs

P
ag

e 
2 

o
f 

3 
--

 8
/3

/2
02

2
  -

- 
vp

fa
s

107



A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
F

Y
 2

0
1
3

F
Y

 2
0
1
4

F
Y

 2
0
1
5

F
Y

 2
0
1
6

F
Y

 2
0
1
7

F
Y

 2
0
1
8

F
Y

 2
0
1
9

F
Y

 2
0
2
0

F
Y

 2
0
2
1

F
Y

 2
0
2
2

F
Y

 2
0
2
3

S
o

u
th

 T
e
x
a
s
 C

o
ll
e
g

e

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

F
Y

 2
0
1
3
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 F

Y
 2

0
2
3

4
7

C
e

ll 
P

h
o

n
e

s

4
8

C
le

ry
 A

c
t,

  
a

n
d

 V
A

W
A

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
7

/1
4

/2
0

4
9

T
it
le

 I
X

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

5
0

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
s
 -

 (
Q

A
IP

)
0

7
/1

3
/2

1

5
1

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
s
 -

 (
Q

A
IP

)

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d

5
2

F
a

c
u

lt
y
 O

v
e

rl
o

a
d

s
 &

 S
ti
p

e
n

d
s

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 

N
o

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

5
3

T
e

a
c
h

e
r 

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 (

T
R

S
)

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
1

1
/1

5
/2

1

5
4

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 M

e
d

ic
a

l 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 (

E
M

T
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m

R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 -

 N
o

t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

5
5

C
h

ild
 a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt
 C

a
re

 F
o

o
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 -

 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

1
0

/0
1

/1
9

5
6

S
A

O
 -

 C
a

tc
h

 t
h

e
 N

e
x
t 

C
o

m
p

la
in

t:
 2

0
-0

0
4

4
1

1
/0

7
/1

9

5
7

C
A

R
E

S
 A

c
t 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

In
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

0
8

/2
6

/2
0

T
o

ta
l 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
u

d
it

s
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

4
3

1
0

6
4

6
6

5
4

O
th

e
r 

A
c

ti
v

it
ie

s

A
n
n
u
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 [
C

A
F

R
]

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
&

 A
u
d

it
 P

la
n

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 A

n
n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt

P
ag

e 
3 

o
f 

3 
--

 8
/3

/2
02

2
  -

- 
vp

fa
s

108



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 39, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contract Training Agreement 
with Pharr-San Juan-Alamo Independent School District 

The Board of Trustees is asked to approve a contract training agreement with Pharr San 
Juan Alamo Independent School District (Pharr, TX), an interlocal agreement, for the 
period beginning August 15, 2022 through July 31, 2023, at no charge to the College. 
 
Purpose – Continuing, Professional, and Workforce Education is requesting to enter into 
a training agreement in the amount of $75,625.00 with the PSJA ISD Department of 
Career and Technical Education for the FY2022 – 2023 school year.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The training services will include the Real Estate Program and 
Dental Assistant Program.  The participants will be high school juniors and seniors 
identified by the PSJA ISD Career and Technology Education Department.  Upon 
successful completion of training, participants will receive a certificate of completion and 
will be eligible to sit for the Real Estate Sales Agent certification exam (Texas Real Estate 
Commission) or the Dental Assistant certification exam (Texas State Board of Dental 
Examiners). 
 
This item was not available for presentation to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 
Committee.  It is presented to the Board without a Committee recommendation. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes a training 
agreement in the amount of $75,625.00 with the PSJA ISD Department of Career and 
Technical Education for the FY2022 – 2023 school year. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

109



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 40, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposal for Cyber 
Liability Insurance 

Approval is requested to award the proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance for the period 
beginning September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 at a total cost of $50,000.00. 
  
Purpose - The purpose of cyber liability insurance is to help the College recover from 
potential financial losses caused by cyberattacks and data breaches. 
  
Justification - Companies have an obligation to keep their customers’ protected health 
information and personally identifiable information confidential. They may face potential 
liability if the information is exposed in a data breach. This coverage protects the College 
for liability to others and reimburses for expenses related to a data breach. 
 
The College’s Insurance Consultant, Mr. Chase Carlisle, will attend the August 23, 2022 
Board meeting to address questions from the Board. Mr. Carlisle recommends the 
following award: 
 
Cyber Liability Insurance 

• Request to award Cyber Liability Insurance to Homeland Insurance Company of 
New York (Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.), at a total cost of 
$50,000.00. 

• Coverage includes (but is not limited to) invoice manipulation, data recovery costs, 
funds transfer fraud, etc. 

• Limit of liability is $2,000,000. 
• The proposed premium of $50,000.00 represents a decrease of 3.6% from the 

prior year. 
• The carrier is different from the prior year. 
• Some sub-limits are lower than last year. 

 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on July 27, 2022 and August 3, 2022. 
Three (3) responses were received on August 11, 2022 but one (1) response was 
incomplete, therefore, not evaluated. The proposals were evaluated by Mr. Chase 
Carlisle, Insurance Consultant, Accountability, Risk and Compliance, and the Purchasing 
Department. 
 
Funding Source – Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Insurance and Benefits 
budgets for FY 2022 - 2023, pending Board approval of the budget. 
 
Reviewers – This item was reviewed by Mr. Chase Carlisle, Insurance Consultant, Mrs. 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Mr. Frank Jason 
Gutierrez, Director of Accountability, Risk, and Compliance, Mr. Ken Lyons, Risk 

110



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 41, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Manager, Mr. Luis Gonzalez, Chief Information Security Officer, and Rebecca Cavazos, 
Director of Purchasing. 
 
Enclosed Documents – The recommendations and spreadsheets provided by the 
insurance consultant follow in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not review this item, as 
proposals were received past the date of the Committee meeting.  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes awarding the 
proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance to Homeland Insurance Company of New York 
(Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.) for the period September 1, 2022 
through August 31, 2023, at a total cost of $50,000.00. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 
  

111



August 17, 2022

Ms. Mary Elizondo

Vice President- Finance & Administrative Services

South Texas College

PO Box 9701

McAllen, Texas 78501

RE: Cyber Liability Insurance

Effective September 1, 2022

Dear Ms. Elizondo,

Two complete proposals were received by the college in reference to Cyber Liability

Insurance. The following options were submitted:

Montalvo Insurance Agency

AIG Specialty Insurance Company (AXV)

Annual Premium $65,106

$2,000,000 Limit of Liability

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.

Homeland Insurance Company of New York (A+ XV)

Annual Premium of $50,000

$2,000,000 Limit of Liability

Recommendation:

On behalf of South Texas College, we recommend the purchase for Cyber Liability

Insurance from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. for the policy

term September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023 at a total premium of $50,000.00.

Sincerely,

Chase Carlisle, CIC, CMIP, CPCU

Vice President

112



O
p

ti
o

n
 1

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
M

on
ta

lv
o 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
A

ge
nc

y

A
rt

hu
r 

J.
 G

al
la

gh
er

 R
is

k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

A
rt

hu
r 

J.
 G

al
la

gh
er

 R
is

k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

M
on

ta
lv

o 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

A
ge

nc
y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
20

8 
S

 T
ex

as
 B

lv
d

41
8 

E
 T

yl
er

 A
ve

 S
te

 B
41

8 
E

 T
yl

er
 A

ve
 S

te
 B

20
8 

S
 T

ex
as

 B
lv

d

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

W
es

la
co

, T
X

  7
85

96
H

ar
lin

ge
n,

 T
X

  7
85

50
H

ar
lin

ge
n,

 T
X

  7
85

50
W

es
la

co
, T

X
  7

85
96

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
R

am
on

 M
on

ta
lv

o
D

av
id

 C
al

vi
llo

D
av

id
 C

al
vi

llo
R

am
on

 M
on

ta
lv

o

C
Y

B
E

R
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
P

ro
p

o
se

d
P

ro
p

o
se

d
P

ro
p

o
se

d

In
su

ra
nc

e 
C

om
pa

ny
B

rit

H
om

el
an

d 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 o
f 

N
ew

 Y
or

k
A

ce
 A

m
er

ic
an

 In
s 

C
o

A
IG

 S
pe

ci
al

ty
 In

s 
C

o

A
.M

. B
es

t R
at

in
g

N
ot

 R
at

ed
A

+
 X

V
A

+
+

 X
V

A
X

V

A
dm

itt
ed

/N
on

 A
dm

itt
ed

N
on

 A
dm

itt
ed

N
on

 A
dm

itt
ed

A
dm

itt
ed

N
on

 A
dm

itt
ed

C
yb

er
 L

ia
bi

lit
y

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

Le
ga

l, 
F

or
en

si
c,

 &
 P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 C

ris
is

/M
an

ag
em

en
t

1,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
In

cl
ud

ed
In

cl
ud

ed
In

cl
ud

ed

F
ir

st
 P

ar
ty

 L
o

ss

B
us

in
es

s 
In

te
rr

up
tio

n 
Lo

ss
 (

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 S
ec

ur
ity

 B
re

ac
h)

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

P
ay

m
en

t C
ar

d 
Li

ab
ili

ty
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

P
en

di
ng

 C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n

C
yb

er
 E

xt
or

tio
n 

Lo
ss

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

D
at

a 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

C
os

ts
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

L
ia

b
ili

ty
 C

o
ve

ra
g

e

   
  D

at
a 

&
 N

et
w

or
k 

Li
ab

ili
ty

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
P

en
di

ng
 C

la
rif

ic
at

io
n

   
  R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
D

ef
en

se
 &

 P
en

al
ty

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

C
la

im
s 

In
cl

ud
ed

 A
bo

ve
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

   
  P

ay
m

en
t C

ar
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

   
  M

ed
ia

 L
ia

bi
lit

y
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

eC
ri

m
e 

C
o

ve
ra

g
e

F
ra

ud
ul

en
t I

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

E
xc

lu
de

d

F
un

ds
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

F
ra

ud
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

E
xc

lu
de

d

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 F

ra
ud

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
E

xc
lu

de
d

R
et

en
ti

o
n

Le
ga

l, 
F

or
en

si
c 

&
 P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 C

ris
is

/M
an

ag
em

en
t

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

B
us

in
es

s 
In

te
rr

up
tio

n 
W

ai
tin

g 
P

er
io

d
8 

ho
ur

s
12

 h
ou

rs
8 

ho
ur

s 
pl

us
 $

15
0,

00
0

24
 h

ou
rs

C
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y 

D
at

e
F

ul
l P

rio
r 

A
ct

s
9/

13
/2

02
2

T
B

D
P

ol
ic

y 
In

ce
pt

io
n

O
th

er
 C

o
ve

ra
g

e 
R

eq
u

es
te

d
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l L
os

s
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pu
te

r 
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t C
os

t
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ry

pt
o-

ja
ck

in
g 

E
nd

or
se

m
en

t
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

no
E

xc
lu

de
d

In
vo

ic
e 

M
an

ip
ul

at
io

n 
C

ov
er

ag
e

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
no

E
xc

lu
de

d

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
 A

M
O

U
N

T
31

,6
32

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
72

,5
68

.0
0 

65
,1

05
.9

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S
95

.5
 *

**
* 

77
.5

7

R
A

N
K

IN
G

1
 *

**
* 

2

T
he

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

S
O

U
T

H
 T

E
X

A
S

 C
O

L
L

E
G

E

C
Y

B
E

R
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 2
2-

23
-1

01
5

**
**

G
al

la
gh

er
 R

is
k 

M
gm

t O
pt

io
n 

2 
di

d 
no

t m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, t

he
re

fo
re

 n
ot

 e
va

lu
at

ed
.

113



60 46.07

60 46.07

60 46.07

60 46.07

7 7

7 8

7 7

7 7

14 9

14 14

12 10

13 12

14 10

14 12

12 9

13 9

2 3

2 3

2 3

2 3

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

CONTACT David Calvillo

CITY/STATE/ZIP Harlingen, TX  78550

VENDOR

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk 

Management Services. Inc.

ADDRESS 418 E Tyler Ave Ste B

1
The purchase price.

(up to 60 points)
60

2
The reputation of the vendor and the vendor's 

goods or services. (up to 8 points)
7

3
The quality of the vendor's goods and/or 

services. (up to 14 points)
13.25

4

The extent to which the vendor's goods and/or 

services meet the College's needs.

(up to 14 points)

13.25

1

5
The vendor's past relationship with the College.

(up to 3 points)
2

6

The impact on the ability of the College to 

comply with laws relating to Historically 

Underutilized Businesses. (up to 1 point)

0

77.57

2

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE

CYBER LIABILITY INSURANCE

PROJECT NO. 22-23-1015

EVALUATION SUMMARY

46.07

7.25

11.25

10

3

0

Montalvo Insurance Agency

208 S Texas Ave

Weslaco, TX  78596

Ramon Montalvo

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 95.5

RANKING

114



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 42, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

Review of Updates to the Facilities Committee 
a. Review and Update on Project Scope Location for the Pecan Campus North

Academic Humanities Building P Renovations for the Accountability, Risk,
and Compliance Department and the Office of Institutional Equity
An update on the project scope location for the Pecan Campus North Academic
Humanities Building P Renovations for the Accountability, Risk, and Compliance
(ARC) Department and the Office of Institutional Equity (OIE) was discussed at the
August 9, 2022 Facilities Committee meeting.

Purpose
College Administration reported a proposed change of scope regarding the
relocation of the project from the west side to the east side of the Pecan Campus
North Academic Humanities Building P.

Justification
A change in scope was required to reorient the design of the project due to a
change in department relocation needs.

Background
On May 26, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved contracting architectural
services with Able City, LLC.  The project scope included the renovation of the
Pecan Campus North Academic Humanities Building P for the relocation of staff
from Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building D.

Staff from the ARC department and the OIE would be relocated to the east side of
the third floor of Building P in lieu of the west side as originally planned to
accommodate Academic Affairs needs. The existing classrooms were identified as
available for office conversion by the Academic Affairs Division.

The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows:
• Interior design and construction of the renovation
• Approximate square feet: 4,551 sf.

The total revised budget is itemized in the table below: 

Pecan Campus North Academic Humanities Building P 
Renovation for the ARC and the OIE 

Total Revised Project Budget 
Budget Item Revised Project Budget 

Construction $455,100 
Design 45,510 
Miscellaneous 5,000 
FFE 90,000 
Technology 50,000 
Contingency 91,020 
Total $736,630 

115



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 43, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a presentation of the project with the revised scope location 
and a preliminary layout of the space for the Committee’s review and information. 

 
b. Review and Update on Proposed Modifications and Phases for the Pecan 

Campus Library Building F 
Plans for the proposed modifications and phases for the Pecan Campus Library 
Building F Expansion and Renovation project were reviewed and discussed at the 
August 9, 2022 Facilities Committee Meeting.  
 
Background 
On February 23, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved the schematic design of the 
project as designed by ERO Architects. On September 28, 2021, the Board 
approved a revision of the proposed project and an increase in the construction 
budget, proposed design changes from Administration and College staff.  The 
estimated cost of the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion 
exceeded available funding and current construction priorities for the College.   
 
As discussed at the July 12, 2022 Facilities Committee meeting, College staff 
proposes that the project proceed as a series of internal space modification projects 
and possible smaller capital improvement projects over the next few years 
beginning with those deficiencies in the existing building that limit the adequacy and 
appropriateness of the facility to meet user needs.  This targeted and phased 
approach addressing key improvement needs will help ensure ongoing compliance 
with the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges 
(SACSCOC) requirements while at the same time providing substantial savings to 
the College.  The Facilities Committee requested for staff to provide more 
information about the plan. The planned phases and timeline are as follows: 
 
Phase I – FY 2022-2023: 

• Create silent study area on 2nd floor  
• Build two (2) staff offices on 2nd floor  
• Convert two (2) staff offices on 1st floor into group study rooms 
• Enhance capacity of extended hours room as a self-service open computer 

lab 
• Convert a room into a multipurpose training, meeting, and event room 
• Repaint the Open Lab on the 1st floor  

 
Phase II – FY 2023-2024: 

• Create seven group study rooms on 1st floor by relocating one of three 
compact shelving systems to the Technology Campus Library and 
consolidating operations of two 1st floor service desks 

• Create a Center for Learning Excellence (CLE) communications studio and 
an adjoining study room along the north wall of the 1st floor 

116



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 44, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

• Add power to CLE writing center area  
• Repaint Educational Technologies spaces  

 
Phase III – FY 2024-2025: 

• Create a staff office within the Learning Commons and Open Labs 
administrative area  

• Convert a room into a CLE Writing Center huddle room 
• Remodel instructional lab, staff office, and door placement along 

administrative area walkway to improve staff workspace capacity and 
improve operational workflow 

• Create a makerspace to provide resources and services aligned with 
evolving curriculum needs  

 
Funding Source 
Funds would be available in the FY 2022-2023 Unexpended Plant Fund for 
proposed Phase I. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A presentation of the proposed modifications and phases was provided for the 
Committee’s review and information. 

 

No action is requested. This information is presented to the Board of Trustees for 
discussion and feedback. 
  

117



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 45, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Facilities Committee 

The following Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed by the Facilities 
Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or not, received all 
supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the deliberation on each item.  
Non-committee members did not participate in Committee votes for recommendation of 
Board action. 
 
Administration believes that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the items are presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Any trustee may identify an item or items that should be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board is asked to formally act on the full 
consent agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented for each 
item in the following pages 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board action on the following items as 
presented. 
 
a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Civil Engineering Services for a Subdivision 

Plat for the Pecan Campus West Property  
b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services and Selection of a 

Location for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building  
c. Approval to Terminate the Architectural Services Contract with ERO Architects and 

Cancellation of the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion   
d. Approval of Schematic Design of the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding 

Lab Building F 
e. Approval to Contract Construction Services for the Starr County Campus Workforce 

Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize items a – e of the 
Facilities Committee Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

118



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 46, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Civil Engineering Services 

for a Subdivision Plat for the Pecan Campus West Property  
Approval of authorization to proceed with the solicitation of a Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) for civil engineering services for a subdivision plat for the Pecan Campus West 
Property is requested. 
 
Purpose 
The Board is asked to approve the solicitation of civil engineering services for the 
development of a subdivision plat.   
 
Justification 
In order for the City of McAllen to authorize future construction projects on the Pecan 
Campus West Property, a subdivision plat must be prepared and recorded with the 
County of Hidalgo. Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for civil engineering 
services is necessary to procure a design team to prepare the subdivision plat. Once the 
statements of qualifications are received, an evaluation team would evaluate the 
responses using the currently approved procurement process and propose an engineer 
to the Facilities Committee at a later date. 
 
Background 
The Board of Trustees is asked to approve the solicitation of architectural services for a 
new Continuing Education Building to be constructed at the Pecan Campus West 
Property.  The West Property has not previously been platted and therefore a subdivision 
plat is required before new construction can proceed. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these services are available in the FY 2022-2023 Unexpended Plant Fund. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A property map is enclosed for the Committee’s review and information. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to solicit civil engineering 
services for a subdivision plat for the Pecan Campus West Property project as presented. 
 
  

119



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 47, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes solicitation of 
civil engineering services for a subdivision plat for the Pecan Campus West Property 
project as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

120



NWEST PECAN - SITE PLAN PROPERTY LINE

121



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 48, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services and 
Selection of a Location for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education 

Building  
Approval of authorization to proceed with the publication of a Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) to solicit architectural services for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education 
Building, contingent upon execution of a grant award contract with the Economic 
Development Administration (EDA), and the selection of a location option is requested. 
 
Purpose 
The Board is asked to approve the solicitation of architectural services for a new 
Continuing Education building at the Pecan Campus –West Property.  
 
Justification 
Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for architectural services is necessary to 
procure a design team to prepare all necessary design development drawings and 
specifications in preparation for construction. Once the statements of qualifications are 
received, an evaluation team would evaluate the responses using the currently approved 
procurement process and propose an architect to the Facilities Committee at a later date. 
 
Scheduling Priority 
This project was requested by the Continuing Education Department. It has been 
reviewed by the Facilities Operations & Maintenance, Purchasing, and Facilities Planning 
& Construction departments, Administration, and the Coordinated Operations Council. 
This project is scheduled as an educational improvement to construct a new facility for 
the Continuing Education Program. 
 
Background 
The Continuing Education (CE) Program was awarded a grant by the EDA to partially 
fund the construction of a 10,000 square foot facility for CE instruction and training. The 
CE Program has since requested to add an additional 10,000 square feet to the building 
due to the College’s intention to vacate staff from their current location at Pecan Plaza. 
The approval of the grant and the plan to relocate CE from Pecan Plaza have prompted 
the prioritization of the project.  
 
The proposed Continuing Education Building would be located at the Pecan Campus –
West Property, which is a currently undeveloped property located west of Ware Road and 
south of Pecan Boulevard. It would provide the following spaces: 

• Nine (9) classrooms  
• Seven (7) labs  
• Ten (10) offices  
• Storage spaces  
• Administrative work areas 
• Conference room 
• Cashier space  
• Student lounge  

122



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 49, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

• Breakroom 
• Registration space 
• Trainer space 
• Support spaces 

 
The Testing Center will also be relocated from Pecan Plaza and included as part of the 
proposed Continuing Education Building.  The Testing Center area would contain the 
following spaces: 

• Two (2) testing labs 
• Three (3) offices 
• Administrative work area 
• Waiting area 
• Storage space 

 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Design and construction of the Continuing Education Building 
• Sitework: Parking, drives, utilities, and infrastructure 
• Approximate square feet: 24,500 s.f. 

 
The total project budget is $8,684,718 and itemized in the table below: 
 

Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building 
Total Project Budget 

Budget Item Budget Amount 
Construction $6,257,850 
Design  625,785 
Miscellaneous 167,361 
FFE 495,855 
Technology 512,082 
Owner Contingency 625,785 
Total Project Budget $8,684,718 

 
Funding Source 
Funds for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building Project 2021-002C are 
budgeted in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund for available use in FY 2021-2022.   
 
Of the $8,684,718 total project budget, the College has budgeted $7,184,718 in the 
Unexpended Construction Plant Fund as part of the Capital Improvement Proposal (CIP) 
and funds in the amount of $1,500,000 from an Economic Development Administration 
(EDA) grant will be included as part of the project budget. The EDA grant was awarded 
to the College and accepted by the Board on July 26, 2022 and is pending execution of 
the grant award contract. 
 
  

123



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 50, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Estimated Project Timeline 
The project design phase, which includes the approval of a design firm, is projected to 
last until August 2023, with construction to commence in November 2023 and Substantial 
Completion in September 2024.  
 
Enclosed Documents 
Facilities Planning & Construction staff has prepared a presentation of the project and a 
preliminary layout of the space for the Board’s review and information. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to solicit architectural services 
for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building, contingent upon execution of a 
grant award contract with the Economic Development Administration (EDA), and the 
selection of a location option for the building as presented. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes solicitation of 
architectural services for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building, contingent 
upon execution of a grant award contract with the Economic Development Administration 
(EDA), and the selection of a location option for the building as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

124



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

125



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n P
R

O
JE

C
T

 
LO

C
A

T
IO

N

O
P
TI
O
N
 ‐
1

126



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n

V
ie
w
 L
o
o
ki
n
g 
So
u
th
 f
ro
m
 P
ec
an

 B
o
u
le
va
rd

127



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 
LO

C
A

T
IO

N

O
P
TI
O
N
 ‐
2

128



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n

V
ie
w
 L
o
o
ki
n
g 
W
es
t 
fr
o
m
 W

ar
e 
R
o
ad

129



Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ec

an
 W

es
t P

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
co

pe
 &

 B
ud

ge
t

Sc
op

e 
of

 W
or

k
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
 w

ith
 c

la
ss

ro
om

s,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 la

bs
, c

om
pu

te
r 

la
bs

, s
ta

ff 
&

 fa
cu

lty
 o

ffi
ce

s,
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 s

pa
ce

s.

To
ta

l S
qu

ar
e 

F
ee

t A
re

a 
=

 2
4,

50
0 

s.
f.

E
st

im
at

ed
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t p
er

 S
qu

ar
e 

F
oo

t =
 $

22
5/

sq
.ft

.

Es
tim

at
ed

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

ud
ge

t
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

$ 
6,

25
7,

85
0

D
es

ig
n 

62
5,

78
5

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
  

   
   

   
   

   
 1

67
,3

61
F

F
E

49
5,

85
5

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

12
,0

82
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
10

%
62

5,
78

5
To

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 B

ud
ge

t  
  $

 8
,6

84
,7

18

130



Project Fact Sheet

8/3/2022

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Project Budget

FY 21-22

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 22-23

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

-$                         -$                  -$                     -$                      -$                 -$                      

-                           -                    -                       480,630.00          -                   480,630.00          

355,500.00             -                    355,500.00         42,660.00             -                   42,660.00             

42,660.00               -                    42,660.00           -                        -                   -                        

-                           -                    -                       -                        -                   -                        

-                           -                    -                       -                        -                   -                        

398,160.00$           -$                  398,160.00$      523,290.00$        -$                 523,290.00$        

Project Budget

FY 23-24

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

5,031,870.00$        -$                  5,031,870.00$   -$                   

745,350.00             -                    745,350.00         -                     

583,125.00             -                    583,125.00         -                     

167,361.00             -                    167,361.00         -                     

495,855.00             -                    495,855.00         -                     

512,082.00             -                    512,082.00         -                     

7,535,643.00$       -$                  7,535,643.00$   -$                   

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: TBD Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: TBD TBD -$                 -$                      -$                   

TBD -$                 -$                      -$                   

Contractor: TBD
Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval 

of Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

8/23/2022 10/25/2022 TBD TBD

Fiscal Year Construction Site Work FFE Tech Contingency

2021-22                                 -                      -   -                       -                        -                   

2022-23                                 -                      -   -                       -                        -                   

Project Total  $                             -    $                -    $                      -    $                        -    $                   -   

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Project TotalDesign 

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date FFE Completion of Move In

TBD TBD TBD

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

TBD

Design and construction of a new facility for Continuing Education. Design and construction of a new 20,000 square foot facility to provide classroom and office space for the programs serviced by 

Continuing Education.

Project ScopeProject Description

David Valdez

Current Agenda Item

08/09/2022 Facilities Committee Meeting: Review and Recommend Action on Authorization to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building 

08/09/2022 Facilities Committee Meeting: Review and Recommend Action on Authorization to Proceed with Solicitation of Civil Engineering Services for a Subdivision Plat for the Pecan Campus West Property 

-                                                        -$                                                     

 $                                                        -   -$                                                     

                                  -   

 $                               -   

                                  -   -                                                        -$                                                     

Pecan Campus - Continuing Education Building 2021-002C

Unexpended Plant Fund

FY 21-22 FY 22-23*

Board Status

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

TBD

Project Team

FY 23-24

*Pending Board Approval of FY23 Budget

Miscellaneous:

FFE:

Technology:
Total:

495,855.00                 

512,082.00                 

8,058,933.00$           

Total

Project Budget

6,257,850.00$            

-                               

625,785.00                 

167,361.00                 

Construction:

Site Work:

Design:

Total:

Miscellaneous:

FFE:

Technology:

Construction:

Site Work:

Design:

131



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 51, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
c. Approval to Terminate the Architectural Services Contract with 

ERO Architects and Cancellation of the Pecan Campus Library 
Building F Renovation and Expansion   

Approval to terminate the architectural services contract with ERO Architects, Inc. and 
cancel the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion project is 
requested. 
 
Purpose 
College Administration is requesting that the Board officially terminate any contractual 
obligations with ERO Architects regarding Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation 
and Expansion Project 2016-018C and cancel the project. 
 
Justification 
Approval of the termination is necessary because the services of the architect will no 
longer be needed due to the Library and Learning Support Services Department’s and 
Administration’s proposal to cancel the project after an evaluation of College and student 
needs. 
 
Background 
On June 25, 2019, the Board approved contracting architectural design services with 
ERO Architects to serve as the architect of record for this project.  The College has 
reevaluated the scope needed for this project, and determined the College would benefit 
more greatly from canceling the project and moving forward instead with a series of 
internal space modification projects and possible smaller capital improvement projects.   
 
The total project budget for the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and 
Expansion Project was $17,015,000.00. The remaining project budget is $16,114,339.99. 
The expenditures in the amount of $857,318.04 were for design, testing, and advertising 
services. An additional $43,341.97 is still owed to the architect for design services 
performed. The architect will not be paid for the construction administration services 
phase. No further expenditures or encumbrances are expected. 
 
The remaining budgets for the project are summarized in the table below: 
 

Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion 
Item  Total Project 

Budget Expenses Pending 
Payments 

Balance of 
Project Budget 

Construction $12,400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,400,000.00 
Design 1,240,000.00 840,584.33 43,341.97 356,073.70 
Miscellaneous 345,000.00 16,733.71 0.00 328,266.29 
FFE 1,095,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,095,000.00 
Technology 1,335,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,335,000.00 
Contingency 600,000.00 0.00 0.00 600,000.00 
Total $17,015,000.00 $857,318.04 $43,341.97 $16,114,339.99 

132



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 52, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Enclosed Documents 
A fact sheet is enclosed for the Board’s review and information. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion Project 2016-
018C are budgeted in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund for use in FY 2021-2022. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the termination of the 
architectural services contract with ERO Architects and the cancellation of the Pecan 
Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion project as presented. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the termination 
of the architectural services contract with ERO Architects and the cancellation of the 
Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion project as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

133



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 53, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
d. Approval of Schematic Design of the Technology Campus Master 

Plan Phase I Welding Lab Building F 
Approval of schematic design prepared by EGV Architects, Inc. for the Technology 
Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Expansion Building F project is requested. 
 
Purpose 
Schematic design is the first phase of basic design services provided by the project design 
team. In this phase, the design team prepares schematic drawings based on the Owner’s 
project program and design meetings with staff. The approval of this phase is necessary 
to establish the basis on which the project design team is given authorization to proceed 
with design development and construction document phases.   
 
Scheduling Priority 
This project was requested by the Division of Business, Public Safety, and Technology. It 
has been reviewed by the Facilities Operations & Maintenance, Purchasing, and Facilities 
Planning & Construction departments, Administration, and the Coordinated Operations 
Council. This project is scheduled as an educational improvement to accommodate the 
current and future needs of the welding program.  
 
Justification 
Once schematic design is approved, EGV Architects, Inc. will proceed to prepare all 
necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for the 
construction documents phase using College design standards as well as all applicable 
codes and ordinances. Construction documents will then be issued for solicitation of 
construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals will be evaluated and 
submitted to the Board of Trustees with a recommendation to award a construction 
contract. 
 
Background 
On February 22, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved contracting architectural services 
with EGV Architects, Inc. for this project. The architect has worked with College staff to 
develop a schematic design to meet the program’s current needs.   
 
The project consists of constructing a new facility that will provide sixty (60) additional 
welding stations, storage space, office space, and support space. 

• Square feet: 6,413 s.f.  
 
The construction budget and the estimated construction cost for the project are shown in 
the following table: 
 

Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Expansion Building F 
Construction Budget and Estimated Cost 

Construction Budget Estimated Construction Cost Variance 
$1,204,000 $1,795,640 ($591,640) 

 

134



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 54, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Funding Source 
Funds for the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Expansion Building 
F Project 2022-036C are budgeted in the FY 2021-2022 Unexpended Construction Plant 
Fund.  The total construction budget is $1,204,000. EGV Architects, Inc. has estimated 
the construction costs to be $1,795,640. Additional funds are available in the FY 2022-
2023 Unexpended Construction Plant Fund to cover the estimated shortfall, in the form 
of budget transfers from funds available in other projects. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposed schematic design has been reviewed by staff from the Division of Business, 
Public Safety, & Technology, Facilities Planning & Construction department, Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance department, and the Coordinated Operations Council. 
 
Estimated Project Timeline 
The project design phase is projected to last until January 2023, with construction to 
commence in May 2023 and Substantial Completion in February 2024.  
 
Enclosed Documents 
EGV Architects, Inc. has developed a schematic presentation describing the proposed 
design. The packet includes drawings of the site plans, a floor plan, exterior views, and a 
fact sheet. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from EGV Architects, Inc. attended the Facilities Committee meeting to 
present the schematic design of the project. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed schematic 
design of the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Expansion Building 
F project as presented. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
schematic design of the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab 
Expansion Building F project as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

135



SO
U

TH
 T

EX
AS

 C
O

LL
EG

E
TE

CH
NO

LO
GY

 C
AM

PU
S 

W
EL

DI
NG

 LA
B 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 F
AU

GU
ST

 0
9,

 2
02

2

136



B

A

D

E

O
VE

RA
LL

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN

EM
ER

GI
NG

 
TE

CH
NO

LO
GI

ES

SH
IP

PI
NG

 A
ND

 
RE

CE
IV

IN
G 

AD
VA

NC
ED

 T
EC

HN
IC

AL
 

CA
RE

ER
S

LE
GE

N
D

IN
ST

IT
UT

E 
FO

R 
AD

VA
NC

ED
 

M
AN

UF
AC

TU
RI

NG

A B D E
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

W
EL

DI
NG

 
BU

IL
DI

NG
 F

F
F

137



PR
O

PO
SE

D 
W

EL
DI

NG
 

LA
B 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 F

LE
GE

N
D

SI
TEE

 P
LA

N
:W

EL
DI

N
G

A

E
B

F

FU
TU

RE
 W

EL
DI

NG
 E

XP
AN

SI
ON

138



PR
O

PO
SE

DD 
FL

O
O

RR 
PL

AN
:

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
W

EL
DI

NG
 LA

BS

LE
GE

N
D

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

ST
RO

O
M

S

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
O

FF
IC

ES

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
M

EP
 R

O
O

M
S

PR
OP

OS
ED

 S
TO

RA
GE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 IT
 R

OO
M

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
HA

LL

BU
IL

DI
NG

 S
Q

UA
RE

 F
EE

T 
6,

41
3 

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

CO
ST

 E
ST

IM
AT

E:
$1

,7
95

,6
40

 W
EL

DI
NG

FU
TU

RE
 W

EL
DI

NG
 E

XP
AN

SI
ON

EX
IS

TI
NG

 
W

EL
DI

N
G 

LA
BS

139



PPR
O

PO
SE

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

S:

N
O

RT
H 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N

SO
UT

H 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

140



PPR
O

PO
SE

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

S:

EA
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

141



WW
ES

TT 
VI

EW

142



SSO
U

THH
 V

IE
W

143



Project Fact Sheet

8/4/2022

Project Name: Technology Campus Phase I Welding Lab Expansion Building Project No. 2022‐036C

Funding Source Unexpended Plant Fund

Total

Project Budget    Project Budget
FY 21‐22 Actual 

Expenditures 

Variance of Project 

Budget vs. Actual 

Expenditures    Project Budget
FY 22‐23 Actual 

Expenditures 

Variance of Project 

Budget vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 1,204,000.00$          ‐$                           $                               ‐     $                           ‐    ‐$                        $                             ‐     $                             ‐    ‐$                       

Design: 120,400.00$             105,000.00                                                 ‐                                  ‐    100,400.00$          $                             ‐     $                             ‐    ‐                          

Miscellaneous: 30,100.00$               22,500.00                                           456.12                                ‐    22,000.00$            $                             ‐     $                             ‐    456.12                   

FFE: 102,340.00$             ‐                                                              ‐                                  ‐    ‐$                        $                             ‐     $                             ‐    ‐                          

Technology: 102,340.00$             ‐                                                              ‐                                  ‐    ‐$                        $                             ‐     $                             ‐    ‐                          

Total: 1,559,180.00$          127,500.00$             $                      456.12   $                           ‐     $       122,400.00   $                             ‐     $                             ‐    456.12$                 

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer:

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design TBD Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: EGV Architects 75,250.00$                ‐$                            75,250.00$            

TBD ‐$                            ‐$                            ‐$                       

Contractor:

Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:
Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval of 

Architect / Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor Constuction Start Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date

2/22/22 8/23/22 3/28/23 5/1/23 3/27/24

Design Misc. Tech

‐$                          456.12$                        ‐$                           

‐$                          ‐$                              ‐$                           

‐$                           $                      456.12   $                             ‐   

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

Construction

Project Team

FY 21‐22

 Board Status 

*FY 22‐23

 *Pending Board approval of FY 23 Budget 

FFE

8/09/2022 ‐ Facilities Committee ‐ Review and Recommend Action on Approval of Schematic Design of the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Building F

Projected Timeline

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Project Total

456.12$                                                       

FFE Completion Date of Move In

4/27/24

 $                                                       456.12 

9/28/21

Project Total  $                                                                     ‐   

 $                                                                     ‐   

Fiscal Year

2022‐22

‐$                                                          

Board Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer

 $                                                            ‐   

Current Agenda Item

9/28/2021

EGV Architects

Project Scope

New Building for the welding progam to the west of Building B.                                 

60 new welding stations, outdoor storage area, indoor ATF storage area, offices 

and restrooms

Development of a new building for the welding program to include welding lab for 60 new welding stations, restrooms, offices, indoor and 

outdoor storage areas

TBD

Project Description

Samuel Saldana

2021‐23  $                                                                     ‐    ‐$                                                              

Board Approval of Substantial Completion 

Date

2/27/24

‐$                                                          

144



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 55, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consent Agenda: 
e. Approval to Contract Construction Services for the Starr County 

Campus Workforce Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion 
Approval to contract construction services for the Starr County Campus Workforce Center 
Building D Welding Lab Expansion project is requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a contractor will provide for construction services necessary for the 
project.   
 
Scheduling Priority 
This project was submitted by the Business, Public Safety, and Technology Division in 
2019, and was reviewed by the Facilities Planning & Construction department, the 
Welding Program, the Coordinated Operations Council, Administration, the Facilities 
Committee, and the Board of Trustees.  It is scheduled as an educational space 
improvement to provide more welding stations for the existing Welding Lab. 
 
Background 
On November 23, 2021, the Board approved the schematic design of this project as 
prepared by Gignac & Associates, LLP.   
 
Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on June 15, 2022.  A 
total of four (4) sets of construction documents were issued to plan rooms and a vendor.  
A total of one (1) proposal was received on July 28, 2022. 
 

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals 

June 15, 2022 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began. 

July 28, 2022 One (1) proposal was received.   

 
Highest Ranked Vendor 
College staff reviewed and evaluated the competitive sealed proposal and recommend 
Kimber 1985 as the highest ranked in the amount of $1,070,000. 
 
Funding Source 

Source of Funding 
Original 

Construction 
Budget 

Highest Ranked 
Proposal 

Kimber 1985 
Original Budget 

Variance 
Unexpended 
Construction Plant 
Fund 

$355,200 $1,070,000 ($714,800) 

Total Amount $355,200 $1,070,000 ($714,800) 

145



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 56, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Funds for the Starr County Campus Workforce Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion 
Project 2022-006C are budgeted in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund for 
available use in FY 2021-2022 in the amount of $355,200 for construction. Additional 
funds are available in the FY 2022-2023 Unexpended Construction Plant Fund to cover 
the shortfall, in the form of budget transfers from funds available in other projects. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals have been reviewed by College staff from the Facilities Planning & 
Construction, Maintenance & Operations, and Purchasing departments. 
 
Estimated Project Timeline 
Construction for this project is to commence in September 2022 and Substantial 
Completion in July 2023.  
 
Enclosed Documents 
A presentation of the project is included within the packet.  The evaluation team members 
completed evaluations for the firms and prepared the enclosed scoring and ranking 
summary. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services 
with Kimber 1985 in the amount of $1,070,000 for the Starr County Campus Workforce 
Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion project as presented. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting 
construction services with Kimber 1985 in the amount of $1,070,000 for the Starr County 
Campus Workforce Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion project as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 
  

146



147



148



149



150



Kimber 1985

302 S Taylor Rd

Mission, TX 78572

956-606-4436

956-715-3356

Joshua Belgum

# Description Proposed

1
Base Bid:
Starr County Campus Welding Lab Expansion

 $                     1,070,000.00 

2
Alternate 1: Deduct - Proposal Ruskin Company 
Wind Driven Rain Resistant Stationary Louver 
Model EME220DD

 $                        (10,000.00)

3
Alternate 2: Add - Proposal Ruskin ELM6WD 
Drainable Adjustable Warehouse Louver Extruded 
Aluminum

 $                          70,000.00 

4 Begin Work Within 14 Working Days

5 Completion of Work Within 220 Calendar Days

1,070,000.00$                     

89.5

1

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

TOTAL AMOUNT PROPOSED

RANKING

CONTACT

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
STARR COUNTY CAMPUS WELDING LAB EXPANSION

PROJECT NO. 21-22-1072

FAX

NAME

ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP

PHONE

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

151



45

45

45

45
45

7

8

5

8
8

7

8.5

7

8
8

4

4

4

4
4

7

7

7

6
7

7

7

7

7
7

5

5

5

5
4

7

7

7

7
7

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

The quality of the Respondent's goods or services.
(up to 10 points)

7.7

RANKING 1

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 89.5

8
The Respondent's time frame for completing the project. (up 
to 7 points)

7

PHONE

7
The Respondent's organization and approach to the project. 
(up to 6 points)

4.8

6
The Respondent's financial capability in relation to the size 
and scope of the project.
(up to 9 points)

7

FAX 956-715-3356

5
The Respondent's proposed personnel.
(up to 8 points)

6.8

4
The Respondent's safety record
(up to 5 points)

4

3

956-606-4436

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
STARR COUNTY CAMPUS WELDING LAB EXPANSION

PROJECT NO. 21-22-1072
EVALUATION SUMMARY

VENDOR Kimber 1985

2
The Respondent's experience and reputation.
(up to 10 points)

7.2

ADDRESS 302 S Taylor Rd

CITY/STATE/ZIP Mission, TX 78572

CONTACT Joshua Belgum

1
The Respondent's price proposal.
(up to 45 points)

45

152



Project Fact Sheet

8/3/2022

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Revised Total

Project Budget Project Budget

FY 19-20

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 20-21

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 21-22

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Construction: 355,200.00$                 $        150,000.00 -$                  150,000.00$        $      150,000.00 -$                  150,000.00$       75,000.00$         -$                  75,000.00$         

Other Construction Costs                              -   -                       

Design 35,520.00                                  15,000.00 -                    15,000.00                        15,000.00 -                     15,000.00           30,000.00           25,574.40        4,425.60              

Miscellaneous: 15,000.00                                    3,200.00 820.40             2,379.60                            5,000.00 5,000.00              11,000.00           1,438.01          9,561.99              

FFE: 165,000.00                                50,000.00 -                    50,000.00                        50,000.00 -                     50,000.00           15,000.00           -                    15,000.00           

Technology: 10,000.00                                  10,000.00 -                    10,000.00                        10,000.00 -                     10,000.00           8,000.00              -                    8,000.00              

Total: 580,720.00$                228,200.00$         820.40$           227,379.60$       230,000.00$       -$                  230,000.00$       139,000.00$       27,012.41$     111,987.59$       

Project Budget

FY 22-23

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 355,200.00$         -$                  355,200.00$       -$                    

Design 6,394.00                -                    6,394.00              25,574.40          

Miscellaneous: 11,000.00             -                    11,000.00            2,258.41            

FFE: 15,000.00             -                    15,000.00            -                      

Technology: 8,000.00                -                    8,000.00              -                      

Total: 395,594.00$         -$                  395,594.00$       27,832.81$       

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: 9/24/2019
Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: Gignac Associates Gignac 31,968.00$     25,574.40$         6,393.60$          

TBD -$                  -$                     -$                    

Contractor: TBD
Substantial 

Completion TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

9/24/2019 12/10/2019 9/27/2022 9/28/2022

Fiscal Year FFE

2019-20
-$                     

2020-21 -                       

2021-22 -                       

2022-23

Project Total  $                       -   

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

-$                                                     

1,438.01$                                           

Renovation of Room D1.128 and outdoor welding labs.

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Tech Project Total

-$                                                    -$                                                   -$                                                     

Construction

 $                                                                    -   

Design 

 $                                                      -   

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date

Project Team

Project Description

Martin Villarreal

FY 22-23*

*Pending Board Approval of FY23 Budget

Current Agenda Item

N/A

-                                                      -                                                     -$                                                     

 $                                         1,438.01  $                                                     -   1,438.01$                                           

                                                                       -   

 $                                                                    -   

                                                         -   

 $                                                      -   

                                                                       -                                                            -   1,438.01                                            -                                                     

FFE Completion of Move In

9/26/2023 10/24/2023 9/26/2023

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

11/23/2021

Original Scope:  Expansion of existing welding lab to add approximately 1,000 sq ft to accommodate ten (10) more welding 

stations. The existing space will be renovated to incorporate automotive lab space and welding lab space.

Revised Scope: Design and Construction of Welding lab Expansion for Additional (22) Welding Stations, storage room, 

mobile work station area, wash basin work area, and grinding station area.

Board Status

Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

11/23/2021

Project Scope

Starr County Campus - Workforce Building D Welding Lab Expansion 2022-006C

Unexpended Plant Fund

FY 20-21 FY 21-22FY 19-20

153



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 57, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Review and Action as Necessary to Contract Construction Services 
for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A 

Renovation for the President’s Office 
Approval to contract construction services for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards 
Administration Building A Renovation for the President’s Office is requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a contractor will provide for construction services necessary for the 
Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for the President’s 
Office.   
 
Scheduling Priority 
This project was requested by the College President and has been reviewed by the 
Facilities Operations & Maintenance, Purchasing, and Facilities Planning & Construction 
Departments, Administration, the Facilities Committee, and the Board of Trustees. This 
project is scheduled as a non-educational improvement to renovate areas of Building A 
for the College President’s Office. 
 
Background 
On April 26, 2022, the Board approved contracting architectural services with The Warren 
Group Architects, Inc. On June 28, 2022, the Board approved the schematic design from 
The Warren Group Architects, Inc. The project consists of demolishing the existing 
spaces, formerly occupied by the Distance Learning department, and renovating them to 
accommodate the Office of the President.   
 
Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on July 27, 2022.  
Construction documents were issued to three (3) plan rooms. A total of two (2) proposals 
were received on August 11, 2022. 
 

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals 

July 27, 2022 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began. 

August 11, 2022 Two (2) proposals were received.   

 
Highest Ranked Vendor 
College staff included a construction alternate in the solicitation for replacing and 
renovating the main entrance lobby area ceiling of Building A.  College staff reviewed and 
evaluated the competitive sealed proposals and recommend CRC Development & 
Construction Co., LLC. as the highest ranked in the amount of $682,000, which includes 
$632,000 for the base bid and $50,000 for Alternate #1. 
 
  

154



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 58, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

Funding Source 

Funds for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for the 
President’s Office Project 2022-040C are budgeted in the FY 2021-2022 Unexpended 
Construction Plant Fund in the amount of $465,000 for construction. Additional funds are 
available in the FY 2021-2022 Unexpended Construction Plant Fund to cover the shortfall. 

Reviewers 
The proposals have been reviewed by The Warren Group Architects, Inc and College 
staff from the Facilities Planning & Construction, Facilities Operations & Maintenance, 
and Purchasing departments. 

Enclosed Documents 
A presentation of the proposed project is included in the packet. The evaluation team 
members completed evaluations for the firms and prepared the enclosed scoring and 
ranking summary. 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting 
construction services with CRC Development & Construction Co., LLC.in the amount of 
$682,000 for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for 
the President’s Office project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

Source of 
Funding 

Construction 
Budget 

Highest Ranked 
Base Bid Proposal 
CRC Development 

& Construction 
Co., LLC. 

Alternate #1 
Construction 

Budget 
Variance 

Unexpended 
Construction 
Plant Fund 

$465,000 $632,000 $50,000 ($217,000) 

Total Amount $465,000 $632,000 $50,000 ($217,000) 

155







45 31.15
45 31.15
45 31.15
45 31.15
45 31.15
6 7
6 10
6 8

7.5 8
7 8
8 8.5
6 10
6 8
7 8
7 8

3.5 4
3 5
4 3
4 4
3 4
6 7
5 7
6 6
6 7
5 6
8 7
5 8

6.5 7.5
6 8
6 7

4.5 5
4 6
5 5
4 5
4 4

5.64 7
5.64 7
5.64 7
5.64 7
5.64 7

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ANN RICHARDS ADMINISTRATION - PECAN CAMPUS BUILDING A 

RENOVATION OF ADMINISTRATION OFFICES
PROJECT NO. 22-23-1010

EVALUATION SUMMARY

VENDOR Kimber 1985, LLC.

2 The Respondent's experience and reputation.
(up to 10 points) 8.2

ADDRESS 302 S Taylor Rd
CITY/STATE/ZIP Mission, TX 78572

CONTACT Joshua Belgum

1 The Respondent's price proposal.
(up to 45 points) 31.15

5 The Respondent's proposed personnel.
(up to 8 points) 6.6

4 The Respondent's safety record
(up to 5 points) 43.5

5.6

7 The Respondent's organization and approach to the 
project. (up to 6 points) 5

6
The Respondent's financial capability in relation to 
the size and scope of the project.
(up to 9 points)

7.56.3

4.3

RANKING 2

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 77.95

8 The Respondent's time frame for completing the 
project. (up to 7 points) 7

83.64

1

5.64

The quality of the Respondent's goods or services.
(up to 10 points) 8.5

CRC Development & 
Construction Co., LLC.

2016 S 45th St
McAllen, TX 78503

208-972-1192
Carlo Cantu

45

6.5

6.8

PHONE

3

956-606-4436



CRC Development & 
Construction Co., LLC. Kimber 1985, LLC.

2016 S 45th St 302 S Taylor Rd

McAllen, TX 78503 Mission, TX 78572

208-972-1192 956-606-4436
Carlo Cantu Joshua Belgum

# Description Proposed Proposed

1
Base Bid:  Ann Richards Administration - Pecan 
Campus Building A Renovation of Administration 
Offices

 $                        632,000.00  $                        923,000.00 

2 Begin Work Within 5 Working Days 5 Working Days

3 Completion of Work Within 150 Calendar Days 120 Calendar Days

4

Alternate 1: Remove and replace ceiling, suspension 
system and lighting at lobby 126 and install new 
ceiling, lighting, and mechanical adjustments at this 
area. Refer reflected ceiling plan and electrical 
drawings.

 $                          50,000.00  $                          62,000.00 

5 Alternate 1: Begin Work Within 5 Working Days 5 Working Days

6 Alternate 1: Completion of Work Within 150 Calendar Days 120 Calendar Days

7

Alternate 2: Provide and install added 6'-0" 
storefront windows as noted on window type "B on 
sheet A6.11. Note: Base bid includes lower portion 
of storefront and wall type "G" above.

 $                          25,000.00  $                          42,000.00 

8 Alternate 2: Begin Work Within 5 Working Days 5 Working Days

9 Alternate 2: Completion of Work Within 150 Calendar Days 120 Calendar Days

632,000.00$                        923,000.00$                        

682,000.00$                        

83.64 77.95

1 2
The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

TOTAL AMOUNT PROPOSED

RANKING

CONTACT

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ANN RICHARDS ADMINISTRATION - PECAN CAMPUS BUILDING A 

RENOVATION OF ADMINISTRATION OFFICES
PROJECT NO. 22-23-1010

NAME

ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP

PHONE

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

TOTAL AMOUNT PROPOSED W/ALTERNATE



Project Fact Sheet

8/17/2022

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):

Total

Project Budget Project Budget

FY 21 22

Actual Expenditures

Variance of Project

Budget vs. Actual

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 22 23

Actual

Expenditures

Variance of

Project Budget

vs. Actual

Expenditures

Total Actual

Expenditures To

Date

Construction: 465,000.00$ $ $ $ 465,000.00$ $ 465,000.00$ $

Design 46,500.00 37,200.00 37,200.00 26,500.00 6,277.50 20,222.50 6,277.50

Miscellaneous: 2,500.00 1,200.00 1,198.96 1.04 1,300.00 1,300.00 1,198.96

FFE: 110,000.00 110,000.00 110,000.00

Technology: 36,000.00 36,000.00 36,000.00

Total: 660,000.00$ 38,400.00$ 1,198.96$ 37,201.04$ 638,800.00$ 6,277.50$ 632,522.50$ 7,476.46$

Approval to Solicit

Architect/Engineer: 3/8/2022 Vendor

Contract

Amount

Actual

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: The Warren Group Architects

The Warren Group

Architects 41,850.00$
6,277.50$

35,572.50$
TBD $ $ $

Contractor: TBD
Substantial

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:
Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to Solicit

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of

Schematic Design

Board Approval of

Contractor

Construction Start

Date

Board Approval of

Substantial

Completion Date

3/8/2022 4/26/2022 6/28/2022 8/23/2022 9/12/2022 2/22/2023

Fiscal Year Construction Design FFE
2021 22
2022 23 6,277.50

Project Total $ $ 6,277.50 $

FPC Project Manager FPC Director

Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for the President's Office

FY 22 23*

6,277.50$

Miscellaneous Tech Project Total

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of Final Completion

Date FFE Completion of Move In

3/22/2023 3/22/2023

2022 040C

Unexpended Plant Fund

Current Agenda Item

08/23/2022 Board Meeting:Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation of Administrative Offices.

FPC Asst. Director

1,198.96 1,198.96$

$ 1,198.96 $ 7,476.46$

FY 21 22

Renovation of the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A

Renovation for the President's Office.

Renovation of approximately 3100 square feet of Office Space in Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A for the

President's Office Area. Space to contain President's Office, 4 Staff Offices, Conference Room, Reception, Workroom, Storage and

Private Restroom.

Project Team Board Status

Board Approval of

Schematic Design 06/28/2022

David Valdez

Project Description Project Scope

*Pending Board Approval of FY23 Budget



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 59, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 

Review and Action to Approve Annual Facility Usage Agreements 
Approval of the FY 2022 – 2023 annual facility usage agreements for use by the 
Kinesiology Program is requested.  

Purpose   
Approval of annual facility usage agreements for various locations that host student 
instruction will be requested for FY 2022 – 2023. 

Justification 
Various locations are needed to accommodate the Kinesiology program courses offered 
at South Texas College. The facilities needed are course specific (ex. golf, swimming, 
tennis, bowling, etc.).  

Background 
The College leases facilities on an annual basis which are used for various instructional 
purposes. The facilities will provide for Bowling, Golf, Basketball, Volleyball, Swimming, 
Softball, Soccer, Flag Football, and Tennis courses in the Kinesiology Program for the 
Fall 2022, Spring 2023, and Summer 2023 semesters. In FY 2021 - 2022 a total of 1,299 
students enrolled in Kinesiology courses and a Physical Education Special Activity fee of 
$55 was charged per student for each course taken. A total of $21,559.00 was spent on 
facility usage fees in FY 2021 - 2022.  

The following includes examples of facilities at which kinesiology courses may be offered. 

• City of McAllen
o Boys and Girls Club Othal Brand Center
o Boys and Girls Club Roney Center
o Boys and Girls Club Pool
o Las Palmas Park
o Los Encinos Park Tennis Courts
o Municipal Baseball Complex
o Municipal Pool
o Palm View Golf Course
o Parks and Recreation Bicentennial Soccer Field
o Westside Park

• City of Mission
o Bannworth Park
o Parks & Recreation North Side Pool

• City of Weslaco
o Weslaco City Park
o Harlon Block Park (Weslaco, TX)

• Main Event (Pharr, TX)
• Flamingo Bowl (McAllen, TX)
• McAllen ISD – McAllen High School Tennis Courts

156



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 60, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Additional facilities may be required at which the Kinesiology program may offer courses 
due to unforeseen circumstances.  In these circumstances, the President will be asked to 
review and approve the use of various facilities as needed, pursuant to Policy 6130.  
 
Funding Source   
Funds will be budgeted in the proposed FY 2022 - 2023 Physical Education Facility Rental 
budget.   

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the FY 2022 – 
2023 annual facility usage agreements for use by the Kinesiology program as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

157



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 61, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects 
and Renewals & Replacements Projects 

The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarizes the status of each capital improvement and 
renewals & replacements project currently in progress, including a categorization based 
on priority. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza will be present to respond to questions 
and address concerns of the Board. 

 
 

 
 
 

  

158



South Texas College

Unexpended Plant Fund ‐ Capital Improvement Projects (CIP)

Project Status 

FY 2021 ‐ 2022

#

Projects FPC Project 
Managers Not Started Project 

Development Design Phase Bidding and 
Negotiations

Construction 
Phase

Substantial 
Completion

Final 
Completion Move In Completed Total Project Budget Amount Paid Total Project 

Balance FY2022 Budget Priority Status Architect/ 
Engineering Firm Contractor

1
Business and Science Building 
G Classroom Renovation

SS •  $               179,677  $          177,495  $               2,182  $                14,450 Completed N/A EGV Architects
Tri-Gen 

Construction

2
Student Services Building K 
Renovations

TBD •  $                 26,200  $                    -    $             26,200  $                26,200  Low TBD Approval of 
Schematic Design

TBD N/A

3
Library Building F Renovation 
and Expansion

DV •  $            4,289,187  $          857,318  $        3,431,869  $           3,778,000  High 
August

2022

Review and Update 
Proposed 

Modifications; 
Approval to 
Terminate 

Architectural 
Services

ERO Architects TBD

4
New Continuing Education 
Building

TBD •  $               398,160  $                    -    $           398,160  $              398,160  Low 
August

2022

Approval to Solicit 
for Architectural 

Services
TBD TBD

5
Ann Richards Administration 
Building A Renovation of 
Administration Offices

DV •  $               660,000  $              7,476  $           652,524  $              660,000  Low 
August

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

The Warren 
Group Architects

TBD

6

North Academic Humanities 
Building P Renovations for
Administrative and Support 
Services Office

DV •  $            1,034,110  $                 456  $        1,033,654  $           1,034,110  Low 
October

2022
Approval of 

Schematic Design
Able City, LLC TBD

7
Pecan Campus Kinesiology 
Building Phase I

SS •  $            3,240,000  $                 446  $        3,239,554  $           3,240,000  Low 
November

2022
Approval of 

Schematic Design

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects
TBD

8

Cooper Center for Performing 
Arts Building L Expansion and 
Renovations for the Music and 
Dance Programs

MV •  $            4,536,000  $                 456  $        4,535,544  $           4,536,000  Low 
November

2022
Approval of 

Schematic Design
DRW Architects TBD

Pecan Campus Subtotal  $            6,587,334  $       1,042,746  $        5,544,588  $           5,910,920 

9
West Building C Kinesiology 
Renovation

MV •  $               207,841  $          189,248  $             18,593  $                55,000 Completed N/A
Alvarado 

Architects & 
Assoc.

Tri-Gen 
Construction

10
East Building B Dance Studio 
Improvements

SS •  $                 51,250  $                    -    $             51,250  $                51,250  Low TBD TBD TBD TBD

11
Human Resources Building A 
Renovation

RG •  $                 15,108  $            24,240  $              (9,132)  $                  5,000 Completed N/A N/A O&M

Pecan Plaza Subtotal  $               274,199  $          213,488  $             60,711  $              111,250 

12
Workforce Center Building D 
Welding Expansion

MV •  $               114,600  $              2,289  $           112,311  $              114,600  High 
December

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
PBK Architects TBD

13
Workforce Center Building D 
Automotive Lab Expansion

MV •  $               208,350  $              6,733  $           201,617  $              208,350  High 
December

2023

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
PBK Architects TBD

14
Workforce Center Building D 
HVAC-R Classroom and 
Outdoor Covered Area

MV •  $               124,000  $              2,475  $           121,525  $              124,000  High 
December

2023

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
PBK Architects TBD

15

Center for Learning Excellence 
Building A Renovation of 
Existing Cafeteria to Culinary 
Arts Instructional Kitchen

MV •  $               110,745  $            88,871  $             21,874  $              110,745  High 
December

2022

Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects
Holchemont

Mid Valley Campus Subtotal  $               557,695  $          100,368  $           457,327  $              557,695 

Upcoming Board Meeting Item

Pecan Campus 

Pecan Plaza 

Mid-Valley Campus

1 of 3 8/4/2022

159



South Texas College

Unexpended Plant Fund ‐ Capital Improvement Projects (CIP)

Project Status 

FY 2021 ‐ 2022

#

Projects FPC Project 
Managers Not Started Project 

Development Design Phase Bidding and 
Negotiations

Construction 
Phase

Substantial 
Completion

Final 
Completion Move In Completed Total Project Budget Amount Paid Total Project 

Balance FY2022 Budget Priority Status Architect/ 
Engineering Firm ContractorUpcoming Board Meeting Item

16

Emerging Technologies 
Building A & Advanced 
Technical Careers Building B 
Renovation (Master Plan Only)

SS •  $               172,195  $            12,000  $           160,195  $              127,500 Completed N/A EGV Architects TBD

17
Welding Lab Expansion 
Building

SS •  $               115,800  $                 456  $           115,344  $              115,800  High 
August

2022
Approval of 

Schematic Design
EGV Architects TBD

18
Advanced Technical Careers 
Building B Automotive Lab 
Exhaust System

MV •  $               200,500  $                    -    $           200,500  $              200,500  Low TBD TBD
Ethos 

Engineering, 
LLC

TBD

19 Exterior Solar Panels Structure SS •  $               103,100  $              1,184  $           101,916  $              103,100  High 
October

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
SAMES, Inc TBD

Technology Campus Subtotal  $               591,595  $            13,640  $           577,955  $              546,900 

20
East Building A Student 
Services Renovation

SS •  $                      425  $          327,633  $          (327,208)  $                     425 Completed N/A Gignac & 
Associates, LLP

Holchemont

21
East Building A Occupational 
Therapy Kitchen Lab Expansion

SS •  $                 73,500  $              4,551  $             68,949  $                73,500 High September
2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP

TBD

Nursing and Allied Health Campus Subtotal  $                 73,925  $          332,183  $          (258,258)  $                73,925 

22
Workforce Center Building D 
Welding Expansion

MV •  $               139,000  $            27,903  $           111,097  $              139,000  High 
August

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Gignac & 
Associates, LLP

TBD

23
Workforce Building D 
Automotive Expansion

MV •  $               243,100  $              8,747  $           234,353  $              243,100 High August
2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
Able City, LLC TBD

24
North Academic Building C 
HVAC-R Classroom and 
Outdoor Covered Area

MV •  $                 31,700  $              1,481  $             30,219  $                31,700 High August
2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
Able City, LLC TBD

Starr County Campus Subtotal  $               413,800  $            38,131  $           375,669  $              413,800 

Technology Campus

Nursing and Allied Health Campus Subtotal

Starr County Campus

2 of 3 8/4/2022

160



South Texas College

Unexpended Plant Fund ‐ Capital Improvement Projects (CIP)

Project Status 

FY 2021 ‐ 2022

#

Projects FPC Project 
Managers Not Started Project 

Development Design Phase Bidding and 
Negotiations

Construction 
Phase

Substantial 
Completion

Final 
Completion Move In Completed Total Project Budget Amount Paid Total Project 

Balance FY2022 Budget Priority Status Architect/ 
Engineering Firm ContractorUpcoming Board Meeting Item

25 Target Range DV •  $               870,627  $            61,519  $           809,108  $              815,000  Low TBD TBD PBK Architects TBD

26
Canopy for Safety Training 
Vehicles

DV •  $                 79,924  $              1,828  $             79,764  $                79,833  High 
September

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Gignac & 
Associates, LLP

TBD

27 Canopy for Students/Instructors DV •  $                 67,424  $              3,497  $             67,264  $                67,333  High 
September

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Gignac & 
Associates, LLP

TBD

28 Chiller Installation MV •  $               170,000  $            13,788  $           157,262  $              158,250  High 
September

2022

Approval of 
Substantial
Completion

Halff Associates, 
Inc

Johnson Controls

29 Fire Training Area DV •  $                 97,524  $              3,497  $             97,364  $                97,433  High 
September

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Gignac & 
Associates, LLP

TBD

30 Site Drainage Improvements DV •  $               230,885  $          167,199  $             63,686  $              179,380 Completed N/A Perez Consulting 
Engineers

McAllen Multi 
Service

31 Perimeter Fencing DV •  $               193,000  $                -  $           193,000  $              193,000 Low TBD TBD TBD TBD

32 Skills Pad and EVOC Lighting SS •  $               342,000  $            12,473  $           341,532  $              342,000 High September
 2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
DBR TBD

33
Two-Story Residential Fire 
Training Structure

SS •  $               381,250  $                 195  $           381,055  $              381,250 Medium
November

2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Martinez 
Architects

TBD

Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Subtotal  $            2,432,634  $          263,997  $        2,190,035  $           2,313,479 

34 Fence Enclosures MV •  $                 35,000  $                    -    $             35,000  $                35,000 Completed N/A N/A TBD

35 Outdoor Furniture AR •  $                 25,000  $                    -    $             25,000  $                25,000  Low N/A N/A TBD

36 Land N/A N/A  $            3,000,000  $                    -    $        3,000,000  $           3,000,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A

37 Renovation and Contingencies N/A N/A  $               948,750  $                 283  $           948,467  $              948,750 N/A N/A N/A TBD

38 Campus Master Plan TBD •  $               375,000  $                    -    $           375,000  $              375,000  High TBD TBD TBD N/A

39 Automatic Doors Phase IV SS •  $                 67,568  $            49,401  $             18,167  $                62,000  High 
July
2022

Approval of Final 
Completion

Ethos 
Engineering, 

LLC

R.E. Friedrichs 
Company

40 Facility Signage DV •  $                 50,000  $              2,135  $             47,865  $                50,000  Low N/A N/A TBD

41 Removal of Existing Trees TBD •  $                 25,900  $                    -    $             25,900  $                25,900  Low N/A N/A TBD

District Wide Subtotal  $            4,527,218  $            51,819  $        4,475,399  $           4,521,650 

Totals 12 3 6 0 8 1 0 0 5  $          15,458,400  $       2,056,372  $      13,423,425  $         14,449,619 

Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence

District Wide

3 of 3 8/4/2022

161



South Texas College

Renewal and Replacement Projects 

Project Status

FY 2021 ‐ 2022

# Projects

FPC Project 
Manager Not Started Project 

Development Design Phase Bidding and 
Negotiations

Construction 
Phase

Substantial 
Completion

Final 
Completion Move In Completed Total Project 

Budget Amount Paid Total Project 
Balance FY2022 Budget Priority 

Status
Architect/

Engineering Firm Contractor

1 Ann Richards Building A Data Cabling 
Infrastructure Replacement

RC •  $           80,000  $      11,494  $           68,506  $           80,000  High 
TBD TBD TBD TBD

2 Art  Building B Data Cabling 
Infrastructure Replacement

RC •  $           40,000  $        6,821  $           33,179  $           40,000  High 
TBD TBD TBD TBD

3 Student Activities  Building H  Data 
Cabling Infrastructure Replacement

RC •  $         150,000  $              -    $         150,000  $         150,000  High 
TBD TBD TBD TBD

4 Information Technology Building M 
Generator Replacement

SS •  $         169,254  $    156,054  $           13,200  $         156,000  High 
N/A Halff Associates, 

Inc
Metro Electric, Inc.

5 Reseeding and Regrading of Athletic 
Fields

DV •  $         125,000  $           409  $         124,591  $         125,000  High 
TBD TBD TBD TBD

6 Stucco Repainting SS •
 $         150,000  $           109  $         149,891  $         150,000  High 

TBD
Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion 

TBD
Noble Texas 

Builders

7 Resurfacing of East Drive SS •
 $           92,000  $           456  $           91,544  $           92,000  High 

November
2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services

Perez Consulting 
Engineers

TBD

8

Sylvia Esterline Center for Learning 
Excellence Building C to Business and 
Science Building G Cabling 
Infrastructure Replacement

RC •
 $           25,000  $      10,599  $           14,401  $           25,000  High 

TBD TBD TBD TBD

9
South Academic Building J Generator 
Replacement

SS •
 $           76,250  $           228  $           76,022  $           76,250  High 

September
 2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
DBR TBD

Pecan Campus Subtotal  $         907,504  $    186,170  $         721,334  $         894,250 

10 Stucco Repainting SS •  $           30,500  $           109  $           30,391  $           30,500  High TBD
Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion 

TBD
Noble Texas 

Builders

Pecan Plaza Subtotal  $           30,500  $           109  $           30,391  $           30,500 

11 Roofing Deferred Maintenance MV •  $         805,309  $    776,639  $           28,670  $         573,872 Completed N/A Beam 
Professionals

Argio Roofing

12
North Academic Building G Analog to 
Digital Conversion

RC •  $         562,000  $    194,677  $         367,323  $         562,000 Low TBD TBD TBD TBD

13
Stucco Repainting and Exterior 
Upgrades

SS •  $         200,000  $           109  $         199,891  $         200,000 Low TBD
Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion 

TBD Terra Fuerte, LLC

14
South Academic Building H Repair & 
Renovations of Damaged Roof and 
Interior Areas

DV •  $         985,700  $           456  $         985,244  $         985,700 Low TBD TBD
Milnet 

Architectural 
Services

TBD

Mid Valley Campus Subtotal  $      2,553,009  $    971,881  $      1,581,128  $      2,321,572 

Upcoming Board Meeting Item

Mid Valley Campus

Pecan Campus

Pecan Plaza 

1 of 2 8/4/2022

162



South Texas College

Renewal and Replacement Projects 

Project Status

FY 2021 ‐ 2022

# Projects

FPC Project 
Manager Not Started Project 

Development Design Phase Bidding and 
Negotiations

Construction 
Phase

Substantial 
Completion

Final 
Completion Move In Completed Total Project 

Budget Amount Paid Total Project 
Balance FY2022 Budget Priority 

Status
Architect/

Engineering Firm ContractorUpcoming Board Meeting Item

15
NAH East Building A Westside Window 
Waterproofing

RC •  $           65,000  $              -    $           65,000  $           65,000 Low TBD TBD TBD TBD

16
NAH East Building A Westside Elevators 
Refurbishment

RC/O&M •  $         200,000  $              -    $         200,000  $         200,000 Medium TBD TBD N/A Oracle Elevator

17
NAH East Building A Roofing Deferred 
Maintenance

MV •  $         286,077  $    259,412  $           26,665  $         206,991 Completed N/A BEAM 
Professionals

American 
Contracting USA

18
NAH East Building A Exterior Stair 
Repairs and Replacement

SS •  $         283,000  $      15,237  $         267,763  $         280,000 High
September

 2022

Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion 

Chanin 
Engineering, 

LLC

5 Star GC 
Construction, LLC

19
NAH East Building A Generator 
Replacements

SS •  $         422,000  $           228  $         421,772  $         422,000 Low
September

 2022

Approval of 
Construction 

Services
TBD TBD

Nursing and Allied Health Campus Subtotal  $      1,256,077  $    274,877  $         981,200  $      1,173,991 

20 Stucco Repainting SS •  $         223,000  $           109  $         222,891  $         223,000 High TBD
Approval of 
Substantial 
Completion 

TBD Terra Fuerte, LLC

21 Roofing Deferred Maintenance MV •  $         702,320  $    860,858  $       (158,538)  $         661,255 Completed N/A Beam 
Professionals

Sechrist Hall

22
Administration/Bookstore Building A 
Data Cabling Infrastructure 
Replacement

RC •  $           60,000  $              -    $           60,000  $           60,000 High TBD TBD TBD TBD

23
Center for Learning Excellence Building 
B Data Cabling Infrastructure 
Replacement

RC •  $           60,000  $              -    $           60,000  $           60,000 High TBD TBD TBD TBD

24
North Academic Building C Data Cabling 
Infrastructure Replacement

RC •  $           60,000  $              -    $           60,000  $           60,000 High TBD TBD TBD TBD

Starr County Campus Subtotal  $      1,105,320  $    860,967  $         244,353  $      1,064,255 

26 Renewals & Replacements N/A N/A  $         484,135  $              -    $         484,135  $         151,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A

27 Fire Alarm Panel Replacement/Upgrade RC/O&M •  $         201,963  $              -    $         201,963  $         182,500 Low N/A N/A TBD

28 Interior LED Lighting Upgrade RC/O&M •  $         577,945  $              -    $         577,945  $         110,000 Low N/A N/A TBD

29 Ext. Walkway LED Lighting Upgrade RC/O&M •  $           98,443  $      17,416  $           81,027  $           49,000 Low N/A N/A TBD

30 Building Automation Systems Upgrade RC/O&M •  $         174,048  $      11,577  $         162,471  $           76,500 Low N/A N/A TBD

31 Flooring Replacement DV •  $         756,380  $    368,142  $         388,238  $         504,000 Medium N/A N/A
Terra Fuerte, LLC
Diaz Flooring, Inc.

32 HVAC Replacement and Upgrade RC/O&M •  $         829,910  $              -    $         829,910  $         660,000 Low TBD N/A TBD

33 Exterior Lighting Upgrade RC/O&M •  $         324,912  $              -    $         324,912  $         279,000 Low N/A N/A TBD

34 Water Tower Logo Replacements DV •  $           80,000  $              -    $           80,000  $           80,000 N/A TBD N/A TBD

District Wide Subtotal  $      3,527,736  $    397,135  $      3,130,601  $      2,092,000 

0 4 6 2 1 3 0 0 0 5  $      9,380,146  $ 2,691,139  $      6,689,007  $      7,576,568 Totals

Dr. Ramiro R. Casso Nursing & Allied Health Campus

Starr County Campus

District Wide

2 of 2 8/4/2022

163



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 62, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
Board action is requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports for 
the month of July 2022.  The approval is for checks submitted for release in the amount 
greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 that were 
released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will provide 
a review of the Financial Report for the month of July 2022, and will respond to questions 
posed by the Board. 
 
The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval are included in the Board 
packet under separate cover. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve the 
following Minute Order proposed for consideration:  
 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the submitted 
checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as 
authorized by Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports submitted for the month of 
July 2022. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

164



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 63, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in the Board 
Packet under SEPARATE COVER: 
 

1) Release of Checks for $25,000.00 - $125,000.00 
Released Prior to Board Approval for July 2022. 

 
2) Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above 

Board of Trustees Approval Required for July 2022. 
 

3) Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above 
Released Prior to Board Approval for July 2022. 

 
4) Release of Construction Fund Checks for July 2022. 

 
5) Quarterly Investment Report and Money Market Accounts for July 2022. 

 
6) Summary of Revenues for July 2022. 

 
7) Summary of State Appropriations Revenue for July 2022. 

 
8) Summary of Property Tax Revenue for July 2022. 

 
9) Summary of Expenditures by Classification for July 2022. 

 
10) Summary of Expenditures by Function for July 2022. 

 
11) Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for July 2022. 

 
12) Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures for July 2022. 

 
13) Summary of Bid Solicitations. 

 
14) Summary of Purchase Orders. 

 
 
  

165



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 64, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Update and Action as Necessary Regarding Pending Litigation 
Mr. Eduardo Garza from Esparza & Garza, L.L.P., will provide an update to the Board on 
pending legal action taken against the College: 
 

a. Cause No. CL-21-0901-E; Deborah K. Villalon vs. South Texas College 
 

Legal action was taken against the College by Deborah K. Villalon.  The lawsuit was 
submitted to the College’s insurance carrier, TASB.  TASB assigned Eduardo Garza from 
Esparza & Garza, L.L.P to handle the case. 

 
Mr. Garza will provide an update in executive session.   
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes action as 
necessary. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President  

166



August 23, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 65, Revised 08/19/2022 @ 9:27 AM 
 

   
 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
 3:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

• Tuesday, September 27, 2022 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
B. Other Announcements: 

• The College will be closed on Monday, September 5, 2022, in observance 
of Labor Day. 

• Wednesday, September 7, 2022 is Fall 2022 Census Day 

• The College will be closed Friday, September 23, 2022 to conduct College 
Wide Professional and Organizational Development Day. 

 

167


	Agenda
	Presentations
	1. Recognition of Dr. Ricardo J. Solis for First Year of Presidency
	2. Presentation on Public Relations and Marketing

	Update by the College President
	Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
	Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Awards and Agreements
	Initial Review and Discussion of Proposed Policies for Adoption and Retirement of Current Policies
	Review of Presentation to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee:
	a. Review and Discussion of South Texas College Proposed 2022 Tax Year Tax Rate

	Conduct a Record Vote to Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding Adoption of the Proposed Tax Rate that Exceeds the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate and/or the Voter-Approval Tax Rate
	Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee
	Consent Agenda: a. Approval of Solicitation of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal Agreement
	Consent Agenda: b: Approval of Vendor Registration on the Electronic Bids and Proposals System for Receiving Notification of College Solicitations
	Consent Agenda: c. Acceptance of Internal Auditor’s Annual Statement of Organizational Independence
	Consent Agenda: d. Approval of Internal Audit Charter
	Consent Agenda: e. Approval of Proposed Projects for Internal Auditor for FY 2022 – 2023

	Review and Action as Necessary on Contract Training Agreement with Pharr-San Juan-Alamo Independent School District
	Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposal for Cyber Liability Insurance
	Review of Updates to the Facilities Committee
	a. Review and Update on Project Scope Location for the Pecan Campus North Academic Humanities Building P Renovations for the Accountability, Risk, and Compliance Department and the Office of Institutional Equity
	b. Review and Update on Proposed Modifications and Phases for the Pecan Campus Library Building F

	Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the Facilities Committee
	Consent Agenda: a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Civil Engineering Services for a Subdivision Plat for the Pecan Campus West Property
	Consent Agenda: b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services and Selection of a Location for the Pecan Campus Continuing Education Building
	Consent Agenda: c. Approval to Terminate the Architectural Services Contract with ERO Architects and Cancellation of the Pecan Campus Library Building F Renovation and Expansion
	Consent Agenda: d. Approval of Schematic Design of the Technology Campus Master Plan Phase I Welding Lab Building F
	Consent Agenda: e. Approval to Contract Construction Services for the Starr County Campus Workforce Center Building D Welding Lab Expansion

	Review and Action as Necessary to Contract Construction Services for the Pecan Campus Ann Richards Administration Building A Renovation for the President’s Office
	Review and Action to Approve Annual Facility Usage Agreements
	Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects and Renewals & Replacements Projects
	Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports
	Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports

	Update and Action as Necessary Regarding Pending Litigation
	Announcements

	Return to Agenda: 


